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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

LR

2014 2013

Turnover (HK$m) EEBEAEEBT
— the Group — KREH 999 6,498
— share of associates and joint ventures —HEBE AR RE 4,926 1,528
Gross profit (HK$m) EN(EEET) 163 329
Earnings before interest and taxation (HK$m) RetFERBAIAF (BEEST) 371 489
Profit attributable to shareholders (HK$m) BREREMRZF(BEEBT) 86 262
Shares in issue (M) DETRN(AER) 4,577 4,577
Net asset value per share (HK$) FREEFEGET) 1.08 1.06
Earnings per share (HK$) FlREN (BT 0.019 0.057
Dividend per share (HK$) TSRS BT 0.010 0.015
Total assets (HK$m) BEE(BEBBIL) 9,097 9,625
Quick assets (HK$m) RE)EE(BEHAT) 1,670 2,562
Net current assets (HK$m) MBEEFE(BEEBT) 1,381 986
Net debt (HK$m) FEE(EEET) 750 420
Shareholders’ funds (HK$m) BRES(HEEBT) 4,923 4,841
Current ratio MEN L R 1.68 1.36
Quick ratio RE X 0.82 0.92
Net debt/equity ratio FaE BN E 0.15 0.09
Gearing ratio BREEFH R 0.46 0.53
Return on equity % HE U2 2 1.7% 5.4%
Total shareholder return fi&% 3 48 W 7= -4% - 3%
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1. Figures for the year ended 31 March 2010 and prior years have been adjusted for rights issue in July 2009

HE2010F3A AR ZAIFE 2T E R E2000F7 A 2 #L A% il 78 2

2. Total shareholder return represents change in share price (ex dividend) over each financial year plus dividend paid during that year

BRERESAXRSEMBRFERE G ZELENMELEFRYZEE

3. Share price (cum dividend) represents the aggregate of share price (ex dividend) and cumulative dividends paid from the date of listing of PYI

shares in Hong Kong on 21 September 1993

BREGERRKRBREGE) RAREROESE LT 2 H (199359 421 B) TR 2 REt IS Z&H
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The Board proposed a final cash
dividend of HKO0.5 cent per share,
together with the interim cash
dividend of HKO0.5 cent per share
paid in January 2014, amounts to
a total dividend of HK1.0 cent per
share, representing a payout ratio
of 53% for this financial year.

ESREARNKEREREE |
RO5EA - ERER2014F1 8§
Rk ZHHBEEREFR05E !
il BETREHER1.07EAL L
AMBFEZREER53% - A

Tom Lau
2ER
Chairman and Managing Director

EFEFRAR



Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual results of PYl and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2014. The Group recorded a consolidated turnover of
about HK$999 million (2013: HK$6,498 million), a decrease of
85% from that of the preceding year. Profit for the year
attributable to the owners of PYI was about $86 million

(2013: $262 million), and earnings per share was HK1.9 cents
(2013: HK5.7 cents). Shareholders’ funds increased by 2% to
HK$4,923 million (2013: HK$4,841 million), representing a NAV
per share of HK$1.08.

The board of directors of PYI (the “Board”) proposed a final
cash dividend of HKO.5 cent per share, which together with the
interim cash dividend of HKO0.5 cent per share paid in January
2014, amounts to a total dividend of HK1.0 cent per share
(2013: HK1.5 cents per share), representing a payout ratio of
53% for this financial year.

In 2013, unsatisfactory performance of global industrial
production and trade and volatility in financial markets
continued. Despite the vulnerable growth performance of global
economy, China’s economy grew at a stable pace with GDP
growth of 7.5% in 2013 and is targeting same growth rate for
2014. During the year, despite the substantial decrease in
turnover due to the deconsolidation of Paul Y. Engineering
Group Limited upon the completion of the deemed disposal of
Louis Xl Holdings Limited in February 2013, PYI achieved
steady performance under its Yangtze Strategy. A detailed
review of the Group’s operations this year is set out in the
Management Discussion and Analysis section.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FRHES

Looking forward, PYI remains positive on the outlook of its port
business in the Yangtze River region and will stay in line with
China’s national policy and general development directions on
implementation of our Yangtze Strategy. While our Yangtze port
units will target organic growth through optimization and
consolidation, PYI will also pursue strategic growth in the resort
and leisure development at Xiao Yangkou. PY! is poised to take
on the challenges ahead.

During the year, with an aim to maximize shareholder value and
at the same time build a solid foundation for the sustainable
growth of the Group, the Group continued to uphold high
standards of corporate governance. We maintained transparent
communications with investors and stakeholders, persisted to
pursue consistent and effective internal control and audit
programs, and offered relevant training across our offices in the
Mainland.

We also demonstrated a strong commitment to corporate social
responsibility. Besides the sponsorship of educational exchange
programs, PYI also donated, together with Paul Y. Engineering,
HK$1 million to Friends of Hope Education Fund this year again
to support the educational works in the Mainland and Hong
Kong. We were awarded with the title of “Caring Company” for
the sixth consecutive years by Hong Kong Council of Social
Service in recognition to our ongoing effort and corporate
citizenship in caring the community, environment and
employees.

Details of our corporate governance practices and corporate
social responsibilities are included in the Corporate Governance
Report.

REARK  REHRTIRIEMWEREQDEZNE
FTERZ UHREERIRBESRFESD
BEZBERERERBERTA M- REKBB
BEREAFRRIEODEZSER AR - TF
FR/NFAEREAKEERIA B BRI E
o RECIEE &M ABERROPE -

FR - KEFERRRREEAL R  kARE
BEETREER BOIRFRKENLEE
B RMEERREERSNELFAERE
MER FEBEKR BREXNAMEZERE
AHEF YRBERRRHRHAMZEI -

RAMBHBITCELCE ST BREHEMR
ARSI RETBABRRERERAEE
AEHBFIVBEAETTFHFEZRAEES UK
BRI EREBSNHABEIE-SFOREEES
ERNFLRERTELSREHSEER BRER
FIEZEHNKRE EETEEEBRELRE  RR
REIFAREEENROCERNRBIS -

EREEZEXERRRAREELERME &
RAEEERIHE)



| wish to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude
to my fellow Board members for their valuable guidance and
monitoring. On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our
appreciation to our executives and staff across the nation for
their dedication and contribution that give impetus to the
development of the Group. | would also like to send our
gratitude to our shareholders, clients and partners for their
continuous support and confidence to the Group.

Yours faithfully,

Tom Lau
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 20 June 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWEDMN

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Ports and Logistics

PYI achieved satisfactory progress in implementing its Yangtze
Strategy during the year. The Group’s network of cargo ports
was strengthened and was generating synergy value.

Nantong Port Group (45% owned)

Nantong Port Group contributed about HK$87 million (2013:
HK$53 million) to the segment’s operating profit for the year.
The higher contribution was benefited from the effective cost

control measures resulting in lower operating and finance costs.

Nantong Port is a major river port in the Yangtze Delta, one of
China’s category-one national ports opened to foreign trade
and an important hub port of the country. The main cargoes
handled by Nantong Port Group are iron ore, minerals, cement,
steel, coal, fertilizers, grains and edible oil. Nantong Port
provides easy access to the Yangtze region by road and
waterway and is an ideal hub port for cargo trans-shipment in
the Yangtze Delta Region.

Annual cargo throughput in 2013 increased by 10% to about
64 million tonnes (2012: 58 million tonnes), while the container
throughput in 2013 increased by 6% to 501,000 TEUs (2012:
473,000 TEUS).

RO

BORY R

FR REEENRTIRBERER - KAEBEZ
EEAOMBKBEMMNE YEEBREE-

MEEOEE(FHE45%ES)

RERN BBRAEOEEARS P 2KLLEFNE
[t #78,700 & % JT (2013 : 5,300 & & JT) © & Bt 1
MBERBRAZEGEERERMESERRBRENX
PR FTER o

HRERR-AMEN —@EEFNE  JHHF
—ERRRFENENRR-—EOR RRER
—HEZNPEED -BREEOSEEENE
EEYRBBTAO BEA - KERH WM K
moACE - RO EEH - mBRERHEREAR
T & Y BEBR KRS - MR — A RR=Al
BOEREMEERELEA -

2013 F 2 2 FEYWAETE FFH10% = 46,4008
W (2012 : 5,800& Mi) * M2013F £ HEFH =
Al £ F+6% %= 501,000 f& 1% % %5 (2012 : 473,000
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Yichang Port Group (51% owned)

Yichang Port Group contributed about HK$15 million (2013:
HK$25 million) to the segment’s operating profit for the year.

Its operating result was affected by the drop in revenue of bulk
cargo trans-shipment and logistics services, owing to lower
demand from coal and mineral customers. During the year
ended 31 March 2013, a write-back of overprovision of deferred
consideration payable in relation to prior year acquisition of
about HK$10 million had been recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Yichang Port Group is principally engaged in transport logistics
and minor properties investments, providing transportation,
cargo loading and discharging, storage, shipping agent, cargo
agent, port logistics and port equipment rental services and
commodity trading in Yichang Port, which is situated on the
Yangtze River near the Three Gorges Dam in Yichang, Hubei
Province.

Annual cargo throughput of Yichang Port Group for the year
ended 31 March 2014 dropped by 10% to about 5.7 million
tonnes (2013: 6.3 million tonnes). Its annual container
throughput increased by 31% to 109,000 TEUs (2013: 83,000
TEUSs).

EEEN®KR D

PYIl remains positive on the outlook
of its port business in the Yangtze
River region.
REHRIABHEBOEKNE
EFEHRE -

HEBBEE (FA51%ER)
IS

FRN BEEABEEAASBZEEEHE
Bk 491,500 7 7T (2013 : 2,500& 7 7T ) » B R &
KREBEBARPHARREFELRY ARG ZE
KR LUWATEE  HEELEER - # 52013
FIASTALFE @ phAEFE WRE R A EEE
EERNRERZRBENI000BETLEREE
WeamkPHER-

HEAKEEIEAESERTEEYALD
EREMAERE REER BOED AHR
BoOBOMMARE  HERE EOMEESD
SBERERBRARES - EEBLNEILR
o BT AL B BT S A -

EEBKEEHE2014FE3A3MBILEEZ S
FEYVAELE T K10%ZE 45708 1 (2013 :
6308 M) c HERMBEE2FAEMHER EHAZI%E
109,000 A2 %48 (2013 : 83,000 fEZ #4E) -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Jiangyin Sunan Container Terminal (40% owned)

Jiangyin Sunan contributed about HK$10 million (2013: HK$9
million) to the segment’s operating profit for the year. Despite a
slight drop in annual container throughput in 2013 to 417,000
TEUs (2012: 419,000 TEUSs), the increase in contribution was
mainly attributable to an improvement in turnover and gross
margin by focusing on higher margin service mix. During the
year, an allowance for other receivable in relation to the prior
year acquisition of about HK$13 million (2013: HK$37 million)
had been recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Jiangyin Sunan is principally engaged in containers loading and
discharging as well as the storage, maintenance, washing and
leasing of containers. The container terminal operated by
Jiangyin Sunan is the only container terminal in Jiangyin.

Jiaxing International Feeder Port (90% owned)

Jiaxing International Feeder Port multi-functional zone is a core
pilot feeder port in Zhejiang Province under the plans of Ministry
of Transport.

Situated at Nanhu District of Jiaxing City, Jiaxing International
Feeder Port occupies a shoreline of 570 m and a land mass of
326,000 sg m. Currently, the port has 10 berths with total
annual throughput capacity of 200,000 TEUs. A customs office
is located in port area for efficient consignment, declaration and
clearance at one stop. The port also features a range of
integrated logistics supporting services such as examination,
quarantine, storage and information services, etc.

IEHEEEETRE(FH40% )

TEGBERFRNAEADH 2 &E &M EB L
1,0008 & £ (2013 : 9008 & T ) ° 4 & 2013
F2EERBAML S MK E417,0001E 12 £ 5
(2012 : 419,0001E 12 % 48 ) - & BA D & F7 38
DEIZEREIRERSENNRBES £
BEHERENRZ - RFERN —HEANUNGEFE
U B8 75 B A9 EL fth 8 U 3R 2 B 4 491,300 8 7 T
(2013 : 3,700 BB L) E N E M m R P ER ©

TEHBEIEREERMEERE AFH #E 8
ALBEREMER TRHREREZEEM
PSR TIEmE— R RIS -
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FEAMBERBEZAZEREREAER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN®KR D

The port declared soft open in mid 2010 and is still in the stage
of trial run. As such, no operating result was contributed by the
port during the year. Its trial run annual container throughput for
the year ended 31 March 2014 reached about 147,000 TEUs.
The port is expected to start commercial operation by the end
of 2014 and is targeted to become the first container feeder
port in the Yangtze Delta region with comprehensive customs
and logistics services.

LPG, CNG and Logistics (100% owned)

The LPG and CNG distribution and logistics businesses of
Minsheng Gas recorded an operating loss of about HK$84
million (2013: HK$48 million) during the year, which included an
one-off write-down in value of LPG related logistics assets of
about HK$41 million (2013: Nil) (included in distribution and
selling expenses) upon transformation of certain LPG fueling
stations into CNG fueling stations. Competition from CNG
continued to put pressure on the sale volume and profit margin
of Minsheng Gas’s main business, LPG distribution, in Wuhan
City. Although a slight operating profit was maintained by its
LPG and CNG retail and distribution business, such profit was
insufficient to cover losses in the logistics business, resulting in
the overall operating loss. As at 31 March 2014, Minsheng Gas
operates twelve LPG and two CNG fueling stations in Wuhan.
Since Minsheng Gas successfully obtained qualification for
natural gas operation in March 2013, two LPG fueling stations
have been transformed into CNG fueling stations and the
transformation of another three LPG fueling stations will be
carried out during the financial year ending 31 March 2015.
Such transformation has improved and will further strengthen
the overall sale performance and profitability of Minsheng Gas.

WHEER2010FFHRNFZHABE BERNERR
LB Al RBEERFRATETMELEE
BEEE - RNEE2014F3A3ALEE  HA %
BEEHZFRLERE A147,000EZ %4 - 18
HZBBER0UFFRZAIHAGREELE B
EERAR-ARGANEEEREZEARY
BE R0 7 AR 745 ) 1A 7] SR BE AR IS 5E o

BICG AR BERXARRIR R

100% & )

RERN REAHENBREABIMEBHERAR
DR EREIGEE EIE 84008 B T
(20183 : 48008 B L) HFBEE TR AR
AMRUEBEABRRARMAILE - HEE
#94,1008 % T (2013« #) 2 /&R {L A h [ A
MREEE—REMB(REESEREESR
B REABRRETHSHEAREEBREEE
¥5 EAXIBERAIZHET  HiEE2 &A
BEESE - BERELOHBIREBHERAARST
ERDHEBHFDELE S HZ s F I
TRABBYRES 2EBE EMEWMERL
EEE - R2014FE3A31H  RAAMAEREL
B+ _EABRICAHRAMBTUE LM EERERXAR
MR- BRARMAE01ZEIAMBRARE
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REZ2015F3A31 B I B BUF EHEITRGE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Ports Development

Yangkou Port (9.9% owned)

There was no contribution from Yangkou Port Co to the
Group’s operating profit for the year (2013: Nil).

PYI continues to enjoy the future growth of Yangkou Port
through the remaining 9.9% equity interest, which is intended
to be held for long-term investment purpose and is classified
as an available-for-sale investment.

Engineering Business
Paul Y. Engineering (47.5% owned)

Upon completion of the deemed disposal of Louis XlII Holdings
Limited (“Louis XIII”) on 5 February 2013, Paul Y. Engineering
Group Limited (“Paul Y. Engineering”) was deconsolidated from
the Group and became an associate of PYI. As a result thereof,
Paul Y. Engineering contributed operating profit of about HK$38
million (2013: HK$46 million) to the Group, which represented
PY!’s share of its operating result during the year ended 31
March 2014. During the year ended 31 March 2013, a gain on
deemed disposal of interest in Louis Xl of about HK$164
million and a bargain purchase gain for additional interest in
Paul Y. Engineering of about HK$58 million had been
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

During the year, Paul Y. Engineering had benefited from the
increase in capital works expenditure in both Hong Kong and
Macau markets and recorded a turnover of about HK$9,244
million (2013: HK$7,132 million). It secured new contracts of
about HK$6,336 million (2013: HK$13,225 million) in aggregate
value during the year. As at 31 March 2014, the total value of
contracts on hand of Paul Y. Engineering was about HK$26,492
million (2013: HK$23,506 million).

B OB R
OB (BFE9%ER)

FOBRRIEEBAEBFERN ZEEHRFEHRK
5Bk (2013 - &) ©

REEBBBEBT 29.9%KRAERSZFFA
AARRORE UHEAZESFEFRARER
#w BREIERAIHEERE -

TEEX
REZZ (FHATS5%ER)

fE20135F 2 AA X AFHER S T=5EF
RARI(BS =% REZXSEERAA
([REZZDZEETBRAEBEEGHAR I
RAREZHERNT -EHit REZXBAEE
248 s T & B 493,800 78 7T (2013 : 4,6008
BIL) HRENREHZ2014F3ANBIEFE D
HEGEEE 7D - REE2013F3A31H L&
FE GIEHERI T2 REH1.641E8
TREBEAREZEBIIEGZ2EZEBARRLD
58008 B LEREA MR NER -

FR REZEXERBEERBMMBZIRE
BEARRZIEM FMERBrEEBHNRQAMERS
JL(2013 : 71.3218 8 L) » W FARBEH TE
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#49264.9215 7% 7T (2013 : 235.06 {88 JT) °



2014 £
REKERRDA

15

"
Pr1 ﬁ)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Property

The property business contributed about HK$369 million

(2013: HK$225 million) to the Group’s operating profit for the
year. The profit was mainly attributable to the gain on revaluation
of investment properties with area of about 3.89 sq km

(2013: 2.89 sg km) located at Xiao Yangkou of about

HK$382 million (2013: HK$137 million) recognised during the
year, before the relevant deferred tax charges of about HK$155
million (2013: HK$63 million). The operating result included net
development expenses for resort project at Xiao Yangkou of
about HK$27 million (2013: Nil) incurred during the year.

The Group has 11.5 sq km land bank situated at Xiao Yangkou
of Nantong City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, which is under the
development as a regional tourism site. As at 31 March 2014,
about 5.88 sq km (2013: 2.99 sqg km) of the land bank has
reached the forming stage or the formed and serviced stage.
About 0.88 sg km (2013: 1.89 sqg km) of the developed land
and about 1 sg km (2013: 1 sg km) of the land under
development at Xiao Yangkou were classified as investment
properties and measured at fair value of about HK$613 million
(2013: HK$750 million). The remaining of about 2.11 sq km
(2013: 0.1 sg km) of the developed land and about 1.89 sq km
(2013: Nil) of the land under development were classified as
trading stock as at 31 March 2014,

EEEN®KR D

; PYIl achieved steady performance
under its Yangtze Strategy.
REBEERIRE  E&ERALE
BFYRRHE-

ES

REN MEEBARNEEZEEHFERY
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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A gross floor area of about 6,000 sg m of Nantong International
Trade Center, a commercial and office development in the heart
of CBD of Nantong City, had been rented out for hotel
operation. Rental income of the investment properties
amounted to about HK$5 million (2013: HK$5 million) was
contributed to the Group’s turnover during the year. The Group
also holds a gross floor area of about 15,000 sq m of Nantong
International Trade Center for sale.

In the main urban district of Yichang City along Yangtze River,
the Group holds certain commercial, residential and industrial
properties with gross floor area of about 60,000 sg m (inclusive
of commercial shops of about 5,000 sg m) through Yichang
Port Group. Rental income of the investment properties
amounted to about HK$6 million (2013: HK$6 million) was
contributed to the Group’s turnover during the year.

In the Hangzhou Hi-Tech Industry Development Zone of
Bingjiang, Hangzhou City, the Group holds jointly with Paul V.
Engineering an office building known as Pioneer Technology
Building, which has gross floor area of about 20,000 sg m. The
building was almost fully leased out as at 31 March 2014 and it
generated rental income of about HK$12 million (2013: HK$11
million) during the year.

Treasury

The treasury investments contributed about HK$56 million (2013:
HK$71 million) to the Group’s operating profit for the year.
During the year, listed securities held for trading recorded a fair
value gain of about HK$11 million (2013: HK$4 million) while
high-yield loans and Renminbi bank deposits in Hong Kong
generated interest income of about HK$30 million (2013:
HK$20 million). A reversal of impairment loss on receivable of
about HK$15 million (2013: Nil) was recognised as a result of
recovery of an aged loan receivable during the year. After the
full settlement of the deferred consideration for the disposal of
50.1% interest in Yangkou Port Co during the year ended 31
March 2013, there was no interest income derived therefrom
(2013: HK$28 million) during the year.

As at 31 March 2014, (a) total value of the Group’s portfolio of
listed securities held for trading amounted to about HK$85
million (2013: HK$64 million), equivalent to about 0.9% (2013:
0.7%) of the Group’s total assets; and (b) portfolio of high-yield
loans receivable amounted to about HK$76 million (2013:
HK$106 million), equivalent to about 0.8% (2013: 1.1%) of the
Group’s total assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN®KR D

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL BEAKBREE

There were no material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries FR AEBTESRKEBELREEWE QAR N
and associates during the year. RN D=7

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD AEEHREZ2EHE

There were no major subsequent events occurred sincetheend B A{EETE B EANKEEZH H 1 - O 3%
of the reporting period and up to the date of this report. EEARHBEE-
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Following (a) the completion of the deemed disposal of Louis
Xl Holdings Limited (“Louis XIII”) (which operates the
engineering business through Paul Y. Engineering Group
Limited (“Paul Y. Engineering”)); (b) the receipt of about 30.34%
interest in Paul Y. Engineering under the distribution in specie
by Louis XllI; and (c) the acquisition of about 17.18% interest in
Paul Y. Engineering from other Louis Xlll shareholders during
the period from February to March 2013, the Group’s interest in
Paul Y. Engineering was reduced from about 61.92% to about
47.52% and Paul Y. Engineering was deconsolidated and is
accounted for as an associate of the Group. As a result thereof,
for the year ended 31 March 2014, (i) the Group recorded a
consolidated turnover of about HK$999 million (2013:
HK$6,498 million), representing a decrease of 85% when
compared with that for last year; (i) the Group’s share of
turnover of associates and joint ventures increased by 222% to
about HK$4,926 million (2013: HK$1,528 million); and (i) the
Group’s gross profit decreased by 51% to about HK$163
million (2013: HK$329 million), representing a gross margin of
16% (2013: 5%) of the consolidated turnover. The Group’s
distribution and selling expenses increased by 51% to about
HK$124 million (2013: HK$82 million), which was mainly
attributable to the one-off write-down in value of LPG related
logistics assets of about HK$41 million (2013: Nil) upon
transformation of certain LPG fueling stations into CNG fueling
stations.

During the year, the Group achieved a profit before taxation of
about HK$318 million (2013: HK$419 million) which was
composed of:

(i)  net gain of about HK$38 million in Paul Y. Engineering
Group mainly engaged in management contracting and
property development management businesses (2013:
HK$271 million);

(i)  net gain of about HK$15 million in ports and logistics
business (2013: HK$12 million);

(i) net gain of about HK$369 million in property business (2013:
HK$225 million);

(iv) net gain of about HK$56 million in treasury business (2013:
HK$71 million);
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(v)  net corporate and other expenses (including inter-segment
profit eliminations) of about HK$107 million (2013: HK$90
million), which included acquisition-related costs of about
HK$35 million (2013: HK$19 million); and

(vi)  finance costs of about HK$53 million (2013: HK$70
million).

Net profit for the year attributable to the owners of PYl was
about HK$86 million (2013: HK$262 million) and basic earnings
per share was HK1.9 cents (2013: HK5.7 cents). The decrease
in net profit for the year was mainly attributable to the absence
of any substantial gain on disposal of investment for the year
ended 31 March 2014 as compared to a non-recurring
substantial gain on deemed disposal of Louis Xlll earned for the
year ended 31 March 2013.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION

When compared with the Group’s financial position as at 31
March 2013, total assets decreased by 5% to about HK$9,097
million (2013: HK$9,625 million). Net current assets increased
to about HK$1,381 million (2013: HK$986 million), whereas
current assets increased to 1.68 times (2013: 1.36 times) of
current liabilities as at 31 March 2014. The improvement in
working capital was mainly attributable to the reduction in
borrowings and capital expenditures liabilities. After taking into
account (a) the net profit of about HK$86 million; (b) the gain in
fair value of available-for-sale investments of about HK$35
million; (c) the surplus from Renminbi exchange translation of
about HK$2 million; (d) the share of other reserves of associates
and joint ventures of about HK$5 million and (e) the dividend
distribution of about HK$46 million to PYI’s shareholders, equity
attributable to owners of PY| was increased by 2% to about
HK$4,923 million (2013: HK$4,841 million), representing
HK$1.08 (2013: HK$1.06) per share as at 31 March 2014.

Net cash inflow from operating activities was about HK$11
million (2013: outflow of about HK$427 million). Net cash
outflow from investing activities was about HK$61 million (2013:
inflow of about HK$335 million) and that from financing activities
was about HK$440 million (2013: inflow of about HK$312
million), resulting in a net decrease in available cash and cash
equivalents of about HK$490 million (2013: increase of about
HK$220 million) during the year.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had total assets of HK$9,097
million (2013: HK$9,625 million) which were financed by
shareholders’ funds and credit facilities. A variety of credit
facilities were maintained to meet its working capital
requirements and committed capital expenditure, which bore
interest at market rates and had contracted terms of repayment
ranging from on demand to six years. The Group mainly
generated revenue and incurred costs in Hong Kong dollar and
Renminbi, and no financial instruments had been used for
hedging purpose during the year. The Group adopts a prudent
funding and treasury policy and manages the fluctuation
exposures of exchange rate and interest rate on specific
transactions.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s total borrowings amounted
to about HK$2,274 million (2013: HK$2,555 million) with about
HK$1,586 million (2013: HK$1,775 million) repayable on
demand or within one year and about HK$688 million (2013:
HK$780 million) repayable after one year. Borrowings

denominated in Hong Kong dollar of about HK$851 million (2013:

HK$1,184 million) bore interest at floating rates. Borrowings
denominated in Renminbi of about HK$829 million (2013:
HK$925 million) bore interest at floating rates and about
HK$594 million (2013: HK$446 million) bore interest at fixed
rates. The Group’s gearing ratio was 0.46 (2013: 0.53), which
was calculated based on the total borrowings of about
HK$2,274 million (2013: HK$2,555 million) and the Group’s
shareholders’ funds of about HK$4,923 million (2013:
HK$4,841 million).
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Bank balances and cash of the Group as at 31 March 2014
amounted to about HK$1,227 million (2013: HK$1,882 million),
of which about HK$1,061 million (2013: HK$1,516 million) was
denominated in Renminbi, about HK$166 million (2013:
HK$366 million) was denominated in Hong Kong dollar and
about HK$0.2 million (2013: HK$0.2 million) was denominated
in other currencies. Also, about HK$474 million (2013: HK$647
million) had been pledged to banks to secure general credit
facilities granted to the Group, which included about RMB353
million (equivalent to about HK$441 million) (2013: RMB516
million, equivalent to about HK$644 million) deposited in Hong
Kong to secure banking facilities denominated in Hong Kong
dollar and available in Hong Kong. As at 31 March 2014, the
Group had a net debt position (being bank borrowings net of
bank balances and cash) of about HK$750 million (2013:
HK$420 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had contingent liabilities in
respect of guarantees provided to banks for banking facilities
granted to third parties of about HK$25 million (2013: third
parties of about HK$69 million and an investee of about
HK$195 million).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2014, certain property interests, property, plant
and equipment, trade receivables and bank balances of the

Group with an aggregate value of about HK$1,388 million (2013:

HK$1,963 million), as well as the Company’s investment in
certain subsidiaries of about HK$217 million (2013: HK$361
million) were pledged to banks and financial institutions to
secure general credit facilities granted to the Group.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had expenditure contracted
for but not provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of acquisition of certain property, plant and
equipment and project under development in a total amount of
about HK$6 million (2013: HK$15 million).
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT
EXBERRE

PYI1 will stay in line with China’s national policy and general development
directions on implementation of our Yangtze Strategy.

NANTONG PORT GROUP YICHANG PORT GROUP
mEEOR HEBEE
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Nantong Port Group

MEAOS

A

Nantong Port is one of China’s category-one national ports opened to foreign trade and an important
hub port of the country. As a major river port in the Yangtze Delta, Nantong Port provides easy
access to the Yangtze region by road and waterway and is an ideal hub port for cargo trans-shipment
in the Yangtze Delta Region.

Nantong Port owns a shoreline of 4.2 km and a land mass of 1.5 sg km with 5 major terminals namely
Tongzhou Terminal, Jianghai Terminal, Yaogang Terminal, Langshan Terminal and Container Terminal,
and they together operate 24 berths. The main cargoes handled by Nantong Port Group are iron ore,
minerals, cement, steel, coal, sulphur, fertilizers, grains and edible oil.

Nantong Port Group recorded an annual cargo throughput of about 64 million tonnes and container
throughput of 501,000 TEUs in 2013.
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Yichang Port is situated on the Yangtze River near the Three Gorges Dam in Yichang,
Hubei Province. Yichang Port Group is principally engaged in transport logistics and
minor properties investments, providing transportation, cargo loading and discharging,
storage, shipping agent, cargo agent, port logistics and port equipment rental services
and commodity trading in Yichang Port.

Yichang Port devotes to capture the opportunity afforded by growing demand on
logistics and transportation services along the middle and upper reaches of the
Yangtze. Yichang Port consists of 51 berths with annual cargo throughput of about
5.7 million tonnes and container throughput of 109,000 TEUs in financial year 2014.
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Jiangyin Sunan
Container Terminal
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Jiangyin Sunan Container Terminal operates in Jiangyin Port which is the only container terminal
in Jiangyin City. Business scope of Jiangyin Sunan includes containers loading and discharging as
well as the storage, maintenance, washing and leasing of containers.

The terminal occupies a land area of 0.49 sq km, a shoreline of 589 m long with 3 berths of
50,000 tonnes maximum capacity and a secondary shoreline of 1,090 m long with 8 berths for
barges of 5,000 tonnes capacity each. It has an annual container throughput of 417,000 TEUs in
2013.
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Jiaxing International
Feeder Port
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Situated at Nanhu District of Jiaxing City, Jiaxing International Feeder Port occupies a shoreline of 570 m
and a land mass of 326,000 sgq m. Currently, the port has 10 berths with total annual throughput
capacity of 200,000 TEUs. A customs office is located in port area for efficient consignment, declaration
and clearance at one stop. The port also features a range of integrated logistics supporting services
such as examination, quarantine, storage and information services.

Jiaxing International Feeder Port multi-functional zone is a core pilot feeder port in Zhejiang province
under the plans of Ministry of Transport. Jiaxing International Feeder Port declared soft open in
mid-2010 and is still in the stage of trial run, its trial run annual container throughput reached about
147,000 TEUs in financial year 2014. The port is expected to start commercial operation by the end of
2014 and is targeted to become the first container feeder port in the Yangtze Delta region with
comprehensive customs and logistics services.
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Minsheng Gas
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Based in Wuhan, Minsheng Gas owns and operates the largest
liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) river terminal and storage-tank farm
in mid-stream Yangtze. Through its mature wholesale and
distribution network, Minsheng Gas has captured a substantial
share of the Wuhan LPG market for automotive consumption.

Minsheng Gas established a Vehicle Conversion Research and
Development Center to support the application of its research and
development on the construction of LPG fueling stations,
conversion of motor vehicles to LPG vehicles and gas fueling. It
has also transformed certain LPG fueling stations to compressed
natural gas (CNG) fueling stations for CNG operation. Minsheng
Gas currently operates twelve LPG and two CNG fueling stations
in Wuhan.

Minsheng Gas registered an annual sale of 31,000 tonnes of LPG
and 860,000 cubic meters of CNG in the financial year 2014.
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Yangkou Port
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Yangkou Port is a natural deep-sea harbour on Jiangsu’s eastern coast that has
declared soft open in October 2008. The port comprises mainly a harbour-front
industrial and logistics park of 30 sq km, a 12.6 km Yellow Sea Crossing and a
man-made island of 1.4 sq km connected to 29 berths in the deep-draft port
district. Strategically located near the mouth of the Yangtze River, Yangkou Port is
poised to become one of China’s largest trans-shipment hubs for dry and liquid
bulk cargoes.

PYI completed the disposal of 50.1% interest in Yangkou Port Co to further
crystallize the value of our investment in Yangkou Port in May 2011 and PYI’s
equity interest in Yangkou Port Co decreased from 60% to 9.9%.
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PYl Property
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PYI captures the opportunities to extract revenue arising from property development and investment.

Xiao Yangkou is situated about 35 km west of Yangkou Port and PYI has 11.5 sg km land bank
situated at Xiao Yangkou, which is under the development as a regional tourism site in support of the
Yangkou Port industrial zone.

Nantong International Trade Center is a commercial and office development in the heart of CBD of
Nantong City with a gross floor area of some 80,000 sq m. A gross floor area of about 6,000 sq m had
been rented out for hotel operation.

Wanhua Zijin Garden is a residential property development near Yangkou Port with a gross floor area
of 65,000 sg m.

Pioneer Technology Building is an office building with gross floor area of some 20,000 sq m situated in
the Hangzhou Hi-Tech Industry Development Zone of Bingjiang, Hangzhou City which is jointly held by
PYI and Paul Y. Engineering. It was almost fully leased out by the end of this financial year.

PYI holds certain commercial, residential and industrial properties near TRREEE

Yangtze River in the main urban district of Yichang City with gross o5k L a_
floor area of about 60,000 sgq m through Yichang Port Group. y LY
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Paul Y. Engineering

g\l

PR 2R

i

Headquartered in Hong Kong, Paul Y. Engineering is dedicated to providing
full-fledged engineering and property services with operations in Hong Kong, the
Mainland, Macau and Singapore. For over 60 years, Paul Y. Engineering has played
a significant role in shaping Hong Kong’s skyline with its world-class infrastructure,
including major commercial and residential buildings, public housing, institutional
facilities, highways, railways, tunnels, port works, water and sewage treatment
facilities etc.

As at 31 March 2014, the total value of contracts on hand of Paul Y. Engineering was
about HK$26,500 million.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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MR LAU KO YUEN, TOM

gEREE

Chairman and Managing Director

FIEFREE

o
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e

MR CHAN YIU LUN, ALAN
PR ST E

Executive Director

HITEF

Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, aged 63, is the Chairman and Managing Director of
the Company. He is also a member of the Company’s Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Share Repurchase Committee,
and a director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr Lau has over 41
years’ international corporate development and management experience in
infrastructure developments as well as construction and engineering
services involving the road, rail, port, power, telecommunications, mining
and resources sectors in the Asia Pacific Region. He joined the Company
as executive director in 1993 and was appointed as Deputy Chairman in
1995. Mr Lau was also appointed as Managing Director of the Company in
2005 and has been responsible for the Group’s corporate development
strategy, and overall performance. He had been re-designated from Deputy
Chairman to Chairman since 26 September 2011. Mr Lau is also the
deputy chairman and an executive director of Louis XlIl Holdings Limited
(0577.HK) and the deputy chairman and a non-executive director of
Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited (0310.HK). He was an independent
non-executive director of China National Building Material Company Limited
(8323.HK) until November 2011.
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Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan, aged 30, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company in November 2011. Mr Chan is also the director of corporate
finance of the Company and an alternate director to his father, Dr Chan
Kwok Keung, Charles, of the Company. He graduated from Trinity College
of Arts and Sciences of Duke University, United States of America, with a
Bachelor of Arts Degree in Political Science — International Relations.

Mr Chan previously worked in the investment banking division of The
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. He is currently an executive director of ITC
Corporation Limited (0372.HK) which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company as disclosed in the section headed “Interests and Short Positions
of Substantial Shareholders/Other Persons” in the Directors’ Report, an
executive director of ITC Properties Group Limited (0199.HK) and a director
of Burcon NutraScience Corporation, the securities of which are listed on
the Toronto Stock Exchange (BU.TSX), the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (WKN
157793-FWB) and the NASDAQ Global Market (BUR.NASDAQ). Mr Chan
is also an adviser of Bisagni Environmental Enterprise (BEE Inc.).
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Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, aged 59, is a non-executive director of the
Company. He is also a member of the Company’s Nomination Committee
(alternate to Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom). Dr Chan holds an Honorary Degree of
Doctor of Laws and a Bachelor’s Degree in Civil Engineering and has over
34 years’ international corporate management and strategic investment
experience in a diversified range of businesses including construction,
property, infrastructure, entertainment and media, hotel and related
business, information technology, pharmaceutical and health products. He
joined the Group in 1987 and was the Chairman of the Company until July
2005. Dr Chan is also the chairman and an executive director of ITC
Corporation Limited (0372.HK) which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company as disclosed in the section headed “Interests and Short Positions
of Substantial Shareholders/Other Persons” in the Directors’ Report and a
non-executive director of Television Broadcasts Limited (0511.HK). Dr
Chan is also the father of his alternate director, Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan who
is an executive director of the Company.
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Mr Chan Shu Kin, aged 59, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in September 2004. He is also the
Chairman of the Company’s Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance and Compliance
Committee and Share Repurchase Committee. Mr Chan has over 37 years’
experience in auditing, accounting and financial management services. He
graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a fellow
member of both the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, as well as an
associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. Mr Chan is a partner of Messrs Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified
Public Accountants. He is also an independent non-executive director of
PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited (0850.HK).
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MR LEUNG PO WING,

BOWEN JOSEPH s, ,p
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Independent Non-Executive Director
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Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 455 5, aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in August 2006. He is
also a member of the Company’s Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance and
Compliance Committee and Share Repurchase Committee (alternate to

Mr Chan Shu Kin) and an independent non-executive director of a
subsidiary of the Company. Mr Leung previously served the Hong Kong
Government for over 32 years until his retirement as the Director of the
Office of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
in Beijing (“Beijing Office”) in November 2005. He joined the Administrative
Service in June 1973 and rose to the rank of Administrative Officer Staff
Grade A1 in June 1996. During his service in the Administrative Service,

Mr Leung had served in various policy bureaux and departments, including
Deputy Secretary for District Administration (later re-titled as Deputy
Secretary for Home Affairs); Deputy Secretary for Planning, Environment
and Lands; Private Secretary, Government House; Secretary for Planning,
Environment and Lands; and Director of the Beijing Office. Mr Leung has
extensive experience in corporate leadership and public administration.
During his tenure as the Director of the Beijing Office, Mr Leung had made
commendable efforts in promoting Hong Kong in the Mainland, as well as
fostering better understanding, establishing closer links and facilitating
exchanges in various spheres between Hong Kong and the Mainland.

Mr Leung is also an independent non-executive director of Paliburg Holdings
Limited (0617.HK), North Asia Resources Holdings Limited (0061.HK) and
Quali-Smart Holdings Limited (1348.HK), and a special adviser to the board
of directors of Sands China Ltd. (1928.HK).
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Mr Li Chang An, aged 79, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in January 2007. Mr Li was the Vice Secretary of
Shangdong Provincial Party Committee from 1983 to 1987 and was further
appointed as the Governor of Shangdong Province in June 1985. He was
the Deputy Secretary-General of the State Council between 1987 and
1998, and was elected as an alternate member of the Eleventh CPC
Central Committee and a member of Twelfth CPC Central Committee.

Mr Li was the executive vice chairman of China Poly Group Corporation
from 1993 to 2001 and was also the chairman of the board of China Orient
Telecomm Satellite Company, Limited from 1995 to 2003.
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Ms Wong Lai Kin Elsa, aged 48, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in November 2012. She is also a
member of the Company’s Audit Committee and Corporate Governance
and Compliance Committee. Ms Wong holds a Bachelor’s Degree and a
Master’s Degree in Law from The University of Hong Kong, as well as a
Master’s Degree in Corporate Finance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. She is a solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong and the
Supreme Court of England and Wales and holds the Chartered Financial
Analyst designation. Ms Wong has over 24 years of experience in the legal
profession, with majority years working as corporate counsel and company
secretary of Hong Kong listed companies (including the Company during
the periods from February 1995 to January 2000 and from May 2003 to
December 2007). Ms Wong is currently employed as Senior Legal Director
of Alibaba.com China Limited. She is also an independent non-executive
director of Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited (0310.HK).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SREEE

MS YANG YAN
[ F o
Chief Representative — China
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MR WONG YIU HUNG
BERERE

Chief Financial Officer
EEHHE

Ms Yang Yan, aged 46, joined the Group in 2003. She is the Chief
Representative of the Company in China and is responsible for originating
and monitoring the performance of the Group’s investments in the
Mainland, and holds directorship in a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms Yang has many years of experience in corporate
development and general administration and holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Business Administration.
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Mr Wong Yiu Hung, aged 49, joined the Group in 2004. He is the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company and is responsible for all financial
management and accounting matters of the Group. Mr Wong holds
directorship in a number of subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 27
years of experience in auditing, accounting and financial management in
both international accounting firms and listed companies. Mr Wong holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Chinese Law from Peking University. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a
practising certified public accountant in Hong Kong.

BRI RE CRFA95) N2004FMAXEE  BRARBZERYHE AR
AEEMEMBEENEHEE BEXEHELARRZINBARZESER
- RERREAMEEARLTRARAZEZE S RYEERETEER
ERB - BAERBALRKRBZHBEZEARBLEM RBEEGNAEE
B HRERFASHMASEREE TREEBRESHE -



2014 £ 3

REZEERAA

CORPORATE SUPPORT TEAM

1 5% AR %5 B Bx

LEGAL & COMPANY SECRETARIAL

MR KO HIU FUNG

Group Legal Counsel and Company Secretary

MS MEI HONG

Legal Counsel, China

FINANCE & ACCOUNTS
MR CHAN DIK KEUNG, WILLIAM

Financial Controller

MS LI YEE PING, SARAH

Assistant Financial Controller — Treasury and Investment

MR LEUNG HO MAN

Group Chief Accountant

INVESTMENT
MR ZHU YONG MING

Investment Director, China

MR SU ZHI JUN

Investment Consultant, China

INTERNAL CONTROL
MR CHEUNG KIN CHUEN

Group Senior Manager — Internal Control & Risk Management &
Corporate Compliance

INTERNAL AUDIT
MR CHU WAI YEUNG, WALLACE

Group Internal Audit Senior Manager

MR WANG BAO GUO

Senior Director of Internal Audit, China
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MR WEI WEN KUI
Director and General Manager

Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and Development Co., Ltd.

MR WANG WEI GUO
Director and General Manager
Nantong Port Group Limited

MR CHEN FA YI
Chairman
Yichang Port Group Limited

MR WANG HONG
Director and General Manager
Yichang Port Group Limited

MR CHEN BAO Xl
General Manager
Jiaxing International Container Feeder Port Limited

MR ZHOU XIAO JUN
Director and General Manager
Jiangyin Sunan International Container Terminal Co., Ltd.

MR WANG JIN JUN
Director and General Manager
Hubei Minsheng Liquified Petroleum Gas Limited

MR LIU DONG
Financial Controller
Nantong Port Group Limited

MR WEI JIANG TAO
Financial Controller

Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and Development Co., Ltd.
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MS TSANG SAU YING
Financial Controller
Yichang Port Group Limited

MR CHEN KAl
Deputy Financial Controller
Jiaxing International Container Feeder Port Limited

MR LI YONG
Financial Controller
Hubei Minsheng Liquefied Petroleum Gas Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

PY!1 Corporation Limited (“PYI” or the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) strives to attain and uphold high
standard of corporate governance and maintain well-established
corporate governance practices for the benefit of shareholders
of PYl and other stakeholders.

In the corporate governance report published in PYI's 2013
annual report (which can be viewed on PYl’s website:
www.pyicorp.com), we reported that, save for the deviation
disclosed therein, PYI has applied the principles and complied
with all applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)),
and adopted some of the recommended best practices for the
year ended 31 March 2013.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2014, PYI continued to
comply with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code and
adopt some of the recommended best practices, except for the
following deviation:

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of the chairman and chief executive officer (“CEQ”) should be
separated and performed by different individuals. Following the
retirement of Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph on 16 September
2011, Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, the Managing Director (equivalent
to CEQ) of PYIl, has been appointed as chairman of PYI
(“Chairman”) and has performed the roles of Chairman and
CEO with effect from 26 September 20171.

The board of directors of PYI (the “Board”) believes that it is
appropriate and in the interests of PYI for Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
to take up both roles at the present stage as it helps to ensure
consistent leadership within the Group and enable more
effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the Group.
The Board also believes that the balance of power and authority
for the present arrangement will not be impaired and is
adequately ensured by the current Board which comprises
experienced and high calibre individuals with more than half the
number thereof being independent non-executive directors.
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In addition, to demonstrate PYI’s continued commitment to high
standards of corporate governance, the Board adopted a Board
Diversity Policy, a summary of which is set out at page 49 of
this report, in June 2013.

PYI has also adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules applicable to PYI
directors as well as relevant employees of PYI. After having
made specific enquiries, all directors and relevant employees of
PYI have confirmed their compliance with the required standard
set out in the Model Code during this financial year 2013/2014.

Since the launch of the Code of Conduct of PYI (the “Conduct
Code”) in October 2009, all PYI directors, senior management
and staff have been under specific obligations to comply with
the ethics and principles under which our business is conducted
and have been allowed to report actual or potential violations of
the Conduct Code through stated procedure. Non-compliance
with the Conduct Code will result in disciplinary action. During
the year, we are not aware of any non-compliance with the
Conduct Code.

"~ 2014 £ 8
S drerTiTry

41

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRERME

o BT REREHEFSKFLERE LR
o BERR201BFOARMTEERKES
TAEBE  ZBRZMEHIINAREF498 -

REFELRMCETRAD &+ R AT
TAEFTETESFZZNBRESFRD((GREST
A - MUSEFADEARNREEEREHE
B -EREH RAREEENEHEEHTRE
RIEAR2013/2014 M FE —H B B TR ESE
BINBI 2 TR iR 4 o

B2009F 10 A HTRENTATRIGITRT
AR MEREEE SRAEEEMBEICRK
BERT BTETERMAXRBOHERTRMER
A WA EBETREFHREERIBEEERRE
Mo EBERIRTANDERINLRED - REA
BFPLBEREATETITRTEIDHBER



" 2014 Annual Report
4 2 w'ﬁ) PYI Corporation Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE TEERERE

The structure below shows the key parties involved in our REB ZAEERTFTMEBERE SRZTEK
corporate governance practices and policies within the Group. BT :
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SHAREHOLDERS

Communication with Shareholders

As part of corporate governance, PY! is committed to
safeguarding shareholders’ interests. To achieve this, PYI has
established a Shareholders’ Communication Policy (which can
be viewed on PYI's website: www.pyicorp.com) setting out
various channels of communication with shareholders and
investment community for ensuring effective disclosure of the
Company’s performance and business activities.

PYI regards its shareholders’ meetings as valuable forum for
PYI shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with
the Board face to face. All our directors and senior management
and representative from external auditor will make effort to
attend shareholders’ meetings and address queries from
shareholders. Also, simultaneous translations in English and
Cantonese are arranged during the meetings to ensure that the
shareholders understand the content of the issues discussed
during the conduct of the meetings.

"~ 2014 £ 8
S drerTiTry

43

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRERME

IR R

HRFEE

EALEEAN—IH REBAREBEREFR
EHNEX - ATERBE—BIZ REZUKRRE
AT B (AT R EE 48 U www.pyicorp.com B
B) RESEREBEARIREEALTER MU
MREIBEERDIEERER -

REREBRRASARERRAEZRRELZ
BLRBERN-—EEEFE -MARENE
= SREEENIIEZEMAREEERT
HERRRE  UEERROER - 5 £
ZHE RMELHRBRERFBNEEZ
MR - ARERBIR T BAE S & E1TH IR E
BHAR -



" 2014 Annual Report

4 4 P{Iﬁ) PYI Corporation Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERME

During the year, PYI held one general meeting. Voting on
resolutions put forward at the general meeting has been taken
by way of poll and the poll results have been published and
posted on the websites of PY| and Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (“HKEX”"). All resolutions put to shareholders
were passed at the said general meeting. The resolutions and
the percentage of votes cast in favour of the resolutions are set
out below:

RERN REBETT -RBRRAE -BKRRKEH
REBEEAUEBRZNTARR - FERENER
EERENBERGREEMEBRARDTEE
M) 2BuTE - FMARZBRRARE LR
EZHERVEBBE MREZZERRERE
MR IR R JIHNT

Annual General Meeting on 6 September 2013
R2013F9A6HBTHRREFAS

V" Approval of the 2013 audited accounts
BB2013FENREZER

V" Declaration of final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2013

SIREZE2013FE3AZI B IEFEZ RS

v Re-election of Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom as director
EEISRAEARAES

v Re-election of Mr Chan Shu Kin as director
EERBBREERAES

V" Re-election of Mr Li Chang An as director
BREFELREERES

v Approval of directors’ fees in aggregate amount of not exceeding HK$4,000,000

per annum for all directors

BBEGATERESHABIEASTF4000008 THEEHRE

V" Re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor and authorisation to

Board to fix their remuneration

BEZEIRY - BERTEFAMTARBMAREREEERETEANS

V" Grant of general mandate to directors to issue shares
BTESBTRON —BREE

V" Grant of general mandate to directors to repurchase shares
ETESFOERON —BREE

V" Extension of the share issue mandate to directors
BABRTESBRITRODZED

V" Approval of the refreshment of the 10% limit on grant of options

under the Share Option Scheme
BOEE IR IR B RS 81R T R E 2 10% R 58

% of Votes Cast For
BREHML R

99.89%

100%

99.51%

98.67%

99.89%

99.65%

99.94%

80.68%

100%

80.68%

91.61%




Apart from holding shareholders’ meetings, PY! also endeavours
to maintain effective communication with all shareholders
through other channels such as the publication of annual and
interim reports, announcements, circulars as well as news
releases (all in bilingual) so as to provide extensive information
on the Group’s activities, financial position, business strategies
and developments to enable them to make informed decision
on matters relating to their investment and the exercise of their
rights as shareholders of PYI. Such information is also available
on PYI's website: www.pyicorp.com and HKEX's website.

Our website is an effective mean of communication with
shareholders. Any shareholders who have questions or
comments on what we are doing are most welcome to contact
us at any time through the website. We will try our best to
answer the questions in a short time.

At pages 68 to 72 of this annual report, we have designated a
section called “PYI and Shareholders” which serves to provide
shareholders with more information such as the shareholding of
PYI and details of top shareholders as at the year end.

Shareholders’ Rights

PYI recognises the importance of ensuring that shareholders’
rights are protected. In accordance with PYI’s bye-laws and the
applicable laws of Bermuda, all PYI's shareholders are entitled
to attend or be represented by proxy and vote at general
meetings. PYI’s shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of PYI carrying the right of voting at general
meetings have the right to require a special general meeting to
be convened and propose transaction of business.

All PYI's shareholders have the right to propose person for
election as director of PYI. The relevant procedure for proposing
a person for election as director of PYl is set out in the Letter
from the Board in the circular for re-election of directors and in
our Shareholders Communication Policy.
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BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES

Board’s Role and Delegation

The primary role of the Board is to maximize long-term
shareholder value. It assumes the responsibility for providing
effective and responsible leadership and control of the
Company, and directing and supervising the Company’s affairs
in pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives.

The Board, led by the Chairman, approves and monitors
group-wide strategies and policies, evaluates the performance
of the Group and supervises the management.

To enhance efficiency, the Board has delegated the Managing
Director the day-to-day leadership and management of the
Group. The senior management of the Group, on the other
hand, is responsible for the management and administrative
functions and the day-to-day operations of the Group under the
supervision of the Managing Director. The corporate governance
structure of PYI as disclosed in this report at page 42 shows
the detailed relationship between the Board, the Managing
Director and the senior management as well as other
stakeholders.

Below is a summary of specific matters which are reserved for
the Board:

ESRREERZRSE

EFRNACREDER

EERNIZACRARRREFMERZRETN
# BRAARTHAERNAREENEEREER
RAZEBEE ARHEREBEARRZEH
EXAFENRBERIRER-

SERETRHEET RENEEREEE
MFBREGE  FEARENER  URERE
2Tk -

REAME EFRESAKERERERE
ENRAOTHTHRRAE -Z—TTH AKES
REREBELHREET BAEEMITHBAE
MEE UWRBETASEAELENRSE - #10
AHEFRENRELEELARE REES
B #H aREBEAREMBEOENFAB
1% e

UTREEREEEBHNRHE

v Financial reporting and control
B 75 R i K BE 4

v Equity fund raising
BARER

v' Recommendation/declaration of dividend or other distributions

BB EMDIRNERE TR

v Notifiable and connected transactions under the Listing Rules and inside information

under the Securities and Futures Ordinance

(EHRADAANAETRHMEERS R(EHFRBBHRIDAANATHEE

v' Capital reorganisation or other significant changes in the capital structure of the Group




Board’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group and for ensuring
that the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of
the Group is in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable standards.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company
concerning its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report at pages 87 and 88 of this annual report.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, there are 7 directors in our Board
consisting of 2 executive directors, 1 non-executive director and
4 independent non-executive directors. Non-executive directors
accounted for a majority of the Board members whereas
independent non-executive directors represented more than
half of the Board members, thus exhibiting a strong independent
element which enhanced independent judgement. Mr Chan Shu
Kin, an independent non-executive director of the Company,
has the appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under the
Listing Rules.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

BYFHITES BITES

Mr Chan Shu Kin [ 18] E2 4 4=

Executive Directors

Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

Non-Executive Director

FUITES

Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles

Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 2 & 28 5t £ 2= R EE PR B9 54 18 &
Mr Li Ch A g8 % I hail
ity Am 2212 7 56 52 (Chairman & Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan 5 1 8 4 4
Ms Wong Lai Kin Elsa = B8 B2 22 & Managing Director
TEEER) (Alternate to
M Chan ¥i Ii Al Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
r Chan Yiu Lun, Alan —
EFBREY 5% 1 )

PR a2 % 5 £
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Each of the Board members is totally unrelated to each other
and the senior management in every aspect including financial,
business, or family except the father and son relationship
between Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles and Mr Chan Yiu Lun,
Alan.

There was no change of directors and committee members
during the year. Brief biographical details of each director
(including his/her age, gender, term of office, professional
qualification and experience) are set out at pages 32 to 35 of
this annual report and also available on PYI's website:
WWW.pyicorp.com.

PYI has also maintained on its website and HKEx's website an
updated list of its directors identifying their roles and functions
and whether they are independent non-executive directors.
Independent non-executive directors are also identified as such
in all corporate communications that disclose the names of
directors of the Company.

Each independent non-executive director is required to inform
PYI as soon as practicable if there is any change in his or her
own personal particulars that may affect his or her
independence. No such notification was received during the
year. Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing Rules, the
Company has received a written confirmation on independence
from each independent non-executive director. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.

All Board members have complied with the requirement of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance regarding disclosure of their
respective interests in PY| and its associated corporations, if
any. Interests and short positions of PYI’s directors in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of PYIl and its associated
corporations are disclosed in the Directors’ Report at pages 80
and 81 of this annual report.

BRTRERBTHRBBEERXFIN EF
RE—R2KERUKZANRESREREE
B - EZTHERVE E¥AFRESHTEHEE

RERN EERZESGHELEEY -BuES
MEEFB(REEFR R - TH 2%E
BREH) BN AFRNFEI2EISE - LR AR
R Bk - www.pyicorp.com A | B o

RETEEPULBREI MW EREFRA
MEERKERE LHREAEMBE UK
HRERERBUFATERT ERERER
NRABEFHAMNARENT - B BB LIEHR
TEFHS -

MEEABAZSHUARAEEFEL BT
BEBUFNTESAEYNEANTHNEEAS
RBARE - RER - RELZBWI UL BB
Mo RBC(EMRADZEFR - XRBE R EH
BUFATEEREB LML A E@MER -
RAREMEBYIFNITESTRBILAL

MEEZERRBEEET(EHFLYERINDZE
RO RERESERREREEBREZE(NA)
MMz RESEFNAREREABAE 2K
- BB REFOEERRR SRR FR
FEBOMBIEMEZRMEETN -



Board Diversity Policy

As mentioned above, a Board Diversity Policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board was adopted in
June 2013. Under the policy:

(@ the Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board, and sees diversity at Board level
as an essential element in achieving a sustainable and
balanced development of the Company;

(b)  the Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identifying and selecting suitable individuals to the
Board and making recommendations to the Board on any
proposed changes to the Board; and

(c) selection of candidates for directorship with the Company
will be based on diversity of perspectives which can be
achieved through consideration of a number of factors
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional and
industrial experience, skills, knowledge and independence
(if applicable).

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of
the policy and review the policy, where necessary, to ensure its
continued effectiveness.

Board Meetings and Process

In order to ensure that the Board plays an effective role in
steering the Group to do businesses in the interest of
shareholders, a schedule of Board and Board committees
meetings to be conducted within the next financial year are
issued well in advance to all members, thus well-facilitating
more participation by the directors in every meeting. Within the
year, 4 Board meetings were held and the overall attendance of
Board meetings attained over 96% whereas 100% attendance
was recorded for Board committee meetings.
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The Board meets at least 4 times a year to review financial
performance, strategy and operations. Notice of not less than
14 days (or other reasonable period) will be given for each
meeting and agenda and board papers will be given 3 days (or
other reasonable period) prior to the meeting.

Senior management and professional advisers are invited to
attend Board meetings to brief the Board on issues considered
by the Board where appropriate. In the event where
independent professional advice is required, the request for
seeking such advice was abided by pre-approved procedures.

The minutes for all of the Board meetings, which were recorded
in sufficient detail, were circulated to all directors within a
reasonable time period after meetings for their comments and
were kept in the minute book for inspection by directors.

Also, each director is required to make disclosure of his/her
interests or potential conflict of interests, if any, in any proposed
transactions or issues discussed by the directors at Board
meetings. Any director shall not vote on any resolution of the
Board approving any contract or arrangement or any other
proposal in which he/she is materially interested nor shall he/
she be counted in the quorum present at the meeting.

Board Tenure

As stipulated by PYI’s bye-laws, all directors (including
non-executive directors) are required to retire by rotation at least
once every three years and seek for re-election at annual
general meeting. At each annual general meeting, one-third of
the directors for the time being shall retire from office. Any new
directors appointed either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board during the year by the Board following the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee are subject to
re-election by shareholders of PYI at the next following general
meeting after their appointment.
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All directors (including non-executive directors) have entered
into letters of appointment with PYI for a term of three years
subject to retirement from office by rotation and re-election at
annual general meeting.

In the annual general meeting of PYI held on 6 September 2013
(the “2013 AGM”), Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, Mr Chan Shu Kin and
Mr Li Chang An, who retired from office by rotation, were
successfully re-elected as directors of PYI.

In accordance with bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s bye-laws,
Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan, Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles and Mr
Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph will retire from office by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Except Dr Chan
Kwok Keung, Charles and Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph
who will not offer themselves for re-election, Mr Chan Yiu Lun,
Alan, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election as director at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. Biography of Mr Chan
Yiu Lun, Alan is set out in the Letter from the Board in the
circular for re-election of director.

Directors’ Commitments

All directors are committed to devoting sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Group. They have disclosed to PY!
the identity of public companies or organizations in which they
have held offices, and the number and nature of the offices, as
well as other significant commitments and are required to notify
PY! of any changes of such information in a timely manner.
Directors are also required to confirm details of biographies and
their time commitments to the affairs of PY| as well as the time
committed to other public companies or organizations and
other significant commitments on an annual basis.
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Training and Professional Development

For all newly appointed directors, a comprehensive and tailored
induction programme is administered to ensure full awareness
of director’s duties and responsibilities under statute and
common law, the Conduct Code, the Listing Rules and other
regulatory requirements and the business and governance
policies of the Group.

PYI recognises the importance of continuing professional
training for directors and management and believes that it is
effective to enhance corporate governance through regular
training within the Group. Apart from reading monthly
management updates, directors are encouraged to keep up to
date on all matters relevant to the Group and attend briefings
and seminars at the expense of PYI on an ongoing and regular
basis.

This year, our directors and management continued to keep
abreast of any updates on the governing laws and regulations
of the jurisdictions where PY| operates businesses and
applicable guidelines and rules issued by regulatory authorities
and attended seminars organised by professional bodies and/or
been provided with materials of such seminars. Our Hangzhou
training centre is responsible for organising regular internal
training for management of the Group. In addition to regular
attendance at Board and Board committees meetings and in
order to have a better understanding of our business
operations, directors including all independent non-executive
directors have participated in field trip to Xiao Yangkou in
October 2013.
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All directors and senior management are required to provide
PY!1 with their training records on an annual basis, and such
records are maintained by the Company Secretary for regular
review by the Corporate Governance and Compliance
Committee. The training records of the directors and senior
management for this year were reviewed by the Committee in

June 2014.

According to the records, PYI directors received the following
training with an emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a
director of a listed company in compliance with Code Provision
A.6.5 of the CG Code during the year:
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYEHTES

Mr Chan Shu Kin B 15 8¢ 5 4

Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 22 & 45 5¢ 4
Mr Li Chang AnZ= & %2 %t 4

Ms Wong Lai Kin Elsa s & 8 % £
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Executive Directors

HTES

Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 2l & IR % 4+
Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan B #2 i 5 4
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Non-Executive Director
FHITES
Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles g & 35 18 +
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Board Committees

Constantly striving to achieve greater transparency and
accountability to PYI shareholders, the Board has established
five Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee, and the
Share Repurchase Committee; each having specific roles,
authority and functions as detailed in the respective written
terms of reference which are available on PYI’s website:
www.pyicorp.com. A majority of members of all Board
committees are independent non-executive directors.

The Board may also establish committees (including
independent board committee) on an ad hoc basis to approve
projects as it deems necessary.

All Board committees have adopted, to a large extent, the same
principles, procedures, and arrangements as those of the Board

and are provided with sufficient resources to perform their
duties. The Board committees will make recommendations to

the Board on a regular basis unless there are legal or regulatory

restrictions on their ability to do so.

EFEREZEE
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BOARD COMMITTEES X Z8 &

Corporate
Governance and Share
Board Audit Remuneration Nomination Compliance Repurch Shareholders
BEER TR B RE LEEARER R 13 E i &

Number of meetings held during the year
RERETERRE 4 3 2 1 2 0 1
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTES
Mr Chan Shu Kin [ 1 B2 5 & 4/4 3/3 2/2 1 2/2 0/0 11
Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 22 £ 4% /¢ & 4/4 3/3 2/2 11 2/2 0/0 1/1
Mr Li Chang An 2= & &2 5t &£ 4/4 11
Ms Wong Lai Kin Elsa & £ B 22 + 3/4 3/3 2/2 1A
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 2|5 8 %t & 4/4 2/2 11 0/0 11
Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan PR 12 f# 5%t £ 4/4 0/1
Non-Executive Director
FHTES
Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles [ B 3 & +

(with Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan as alternate

BB ERELESE) 4/4* 0/
Group Legal Counsel and Company Secretary
EEERAERARARE
Mr Ko Hiu Fung = B2 1§ 5t &£ 4/4 3/3 2/2 il 2/2 0/0 1

*

REBEEGAREBFE LI EETEE HNEE-—REEREH -

Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan attended a board meeting in the capacity as the alternate director of Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles.
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The following tables show the composition of the Board LNTHEBTIRFEFAEEREZEGMAN - H

committees, their respective roles and functions and a summary AEEBERE TIERE R SRS -
and/or report of the works performed by them during the year:

Composition

E

Independent Non-Executive Directors Executive Director
BYFHTES HITES
Mr Chan Shu Kin f 18] B2 & 4 (Chairman %= /&) + Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 21 R %t 4

Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 2 8 45 % 4

Role & Function*

AGHEBE

Reviews the remuneration policy of the Company

12 R 7R A A B B R

Makes recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for the remuneration of all directors and
senior management and on the establishment of formal and transparent procedures for developing a policy
on such remuneration

HAEEFHESREEENTMBUR R - ARRHIEZE 5B R & — B E R M A F A
EORF RMESERELER

Determines or makes recommendations to the Board on the specific remuneration packages of individual
executive directors and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment
AEXMEZRERENNTEZRSRAEEENFETHNEE  BEEYNE  RINSET
REEeHA(AEER R RIEABB R EEMENNERMEES)

Makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive directors

REFRERIFNTEFOFHH

Summary of work
performed

THERE

Recommended the aggregate amount of directors’ fees for shareholders’ approval at the 2013 AGM

REEFRAT HREE013FREBF Ng Litk

Reviewed the share incentive schemes
18 51 IR 0 B B &t &l

Considered and approved the grant of additional incentive bonus and variable bonus (including year-end
bonus) for the financial year 2012/13 to Managing Director and Senior Management
ZREMERBEEBRERER HR2012/13 BUF E RN REINEBITEAL R Al #IEA (B IEF KR
TE4T)

Reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval the increase of the directors’ fee

ERRMEEREZANESES

Reviewed the report on review of executive reward

ERTHRABRRM 2 @RS

Reviewed and determined the remuneration packages of Managing Director and Senior Management for
the financial year 2013/14
R & A e AR E IR B R 2013/14 81 B T 0 B B 5 08

* BRE—HFT

Please refer to the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee on PYI’s website: www.pyicorp.com for further details.
RS FHNREB/IL - www.pyicorp.comZ HINE B 2 B E -
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Performance-based Remuneration Policy

Director’s fee is determined with reference to factors including
the prevailing market conditions, salary paid by comparable
companies, the duties and responsibilities of a director,
employment conditions elsewhere and the time committed by
the director.

A performance-based element was considered instrumental in
aligning the interests of individuals with those of the Group and
has been built into top-management compensation.

PYI has adopted its own reward strategy which forms an integral
part of its remuneration policy and the basis for future awards to
employees. The key aspects of such reward strategy include:

v’ toattract and retain talents, base pay and benefits will be
market competitive;

v to support the growth strategy of the Group, short-term and
long-term performance-based rewards will be emphasized;

v to align employee interest with shareholders, the
performance-based rewards will either be equity-based
and/or cash-based; and

v equity-based and/or cash reward will be considered in light
of an employee’s level of responsibility and influence on the
Group’s performance and share price.

PYI1 effectively deploys an appropriate mix of its existing
equity-based reward vehicles, including the share option
scheme, share award scheme and share financing plan as well as
cash bonus.

Details of remuneration of directors and senior management are
set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

FE A 75 A 7Y Fr B B R

EEMehK2E2EREMERS  BERT
THER  BRARXAAINZHELKT  EFH
WHEHEML HM T ZEBEBEEAREERA
2 o

AR A N 1) 70 3 % LA V) 2 B AN 5% [ 6] 25 68
ERTHESENER ME RIS ER
SEEERET-

RECRME BTN RERE  FRHH K
REVARKED R AR EREBMEE - [ RE
RESH T EHB I

v EAFMERANTEATSES N ARSI
MBS

v ORBEERREHNERRARE
SEIERREE B

ZHEAR

Vo OBRBREIBEBUABROR RBEERE
BoEEEERRMNGSEMAEN &

vV O BEEREEMNEARERAEUNEERE
BEENTEEE  ZEURO LR
ERERMWEE -

REBEHARLREURG BERLER
$ - 2 IEBARAERT 8)  IR() S 8RR A A
BB XRRSIAL -
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Composition
# X

Independent Non-Executive Directors Executive Director
BYFHTES HTES
Mr Chan Shu Kin BR & B2 5 & (Chairman &= /&) Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 2= R %t A&
Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 2 & £ 4¢ 4 Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
FeR B 5% 188 =+
(Alternate to Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
B2 mREE)

Role & Function* v

AGHEBE

Reviews the structure, size and diversity (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional and industrial experience, skills, knowledge and length of service) of
the Board at least annually and makes recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes
ZLOBFRAIEZRNEE ABRERS T EL(BEETRNMLR  FE XERIEFER &
e BERTHEFEEZER Rt MEERBFH)  UAEARELPRESTRIRLES

|dentifies individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and selects, or makes recommendations
to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships
MEABEERNEGBEANEREAESTRNE RNEXINESFRRLEZERATHAEES

Assesses the independence of independent non-executive directors

B SFMITERRB I

Makes recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors, in particular, the Chairman and Managing Director

REFZIABHZE URESF(LERIFEARECHIREERRELZE

Reviews and recommends to the Board for adoption of measurable objectives for achieving and improving
diversity on the Board

REBRIBEZEZEFRAEZ L BRAREEIGAEERTEZRE B REM

Monitors the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy (a summary of which is set out at page 49 of this
report )
ERBEERKXEZTIBR (ARHEHINARS E498) WATHER

Summary of work v

performed

IHAEE .
v
v
v

Nominated the retiring directors for re-election by shareholders at the 2013 AGM
REBREESTHE01BFRRBFAG FEEEE

Reviewed and assessed individual independent non-executive director’s annual confirmation of
independence declared pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules

2B M AP B S JE 1T EE AR IRC L T AR BID 58 313 16 T FR 3 -2 F /& 98 37 1 FE A8 B

Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board

WU EFRORE - ABRAEK

Reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval the Board Diversity Policy
EHREBEEERHNEZ TIEBRETESREL

Reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval the revised terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee

EHREBRET RAZECRBEEETESRER

Please refer to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee on PYI’s website: www.pyicorp.com for further details.

* BBEE—FFEE BT LHMNRENI  www.pyicorp.comZ IREZEE@BEHE -



2014 Annual Report

1%y

5 8 Py &* | PYI Corporation Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERME

NOMINATION PROCEDURES, PROCESS AND CRITERIA
REERF BEUAREN

Nomination Committee
makes recommendations

to the Board on any
proposed changes

RAEZ B G R E5
EEBHMEZRELY

]

Nomination Committee Nomination Committee The Board makes formal
identifies individuals selects or makes invitation to selected
suitably qualified to recommendations to the persons for appointment
become directors Board on the selection of to the Board

persons nominated for

directorships
RAELZEEWEAE RAEZEEHENN EZRMEKEAL
BEEERAELESE EERREEEZEIE BHEFESEHER
EMAL FEALTHEEZES B K

Composition

A

Independent Non-Executive Directors Company Secretary
BYFHTES ATRWE
Mr Chan Shu Kin B 11 E2 4& 4= (Chairman 3= /&) -+ Mr Ko Hiu Fung 5 i & 4 4

Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 22 & 4% %t 4
Ms Wong Lai Kin Elsa = 8 B % +

Role & Function* v

AGERE

Develops and reviews the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and makes
recommendations to the Board
FIERBNAABNECEESBERER YRAEFRHIELHER

Reviews and monitors the training and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management

BAEREFEERSREEENEIIRSEEXEER

Reviews and monitors the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and meets regularly with the management of the Company to assess the Company’s
compliance policies, programs and procedures

R RERARNAEETEEREERTEIEANBRERER  WEARFNEREEEHRTS
U EARANERER  FRRIER

Develops, reviews, monitors and approves any code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and directors of the Company
FIE - R BEERREHEAREARAGEEREFNEMNTRALEINRERFMIA)

Investigates or causes to be investigated any significant instances of non-compliance or potential compliance
violations that are reported to the Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee
AESLRHAEMCEE O REREZEERRNEMNERERIEEERBR

Reviews the Company’s compliance with the CG Code as contained in the Listing Rules and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report
A ARAEF(ETRADAZCEEFRDNER REH(EEERRE)NEKE

further details.

Please refer to the terms of reference of the Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee on PYI’s website: www.pyicorp.com for

* BREE B FAE LHNRERIL  www.pyicorpcomZ BEER LA ZESHMIESHE -
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Summary of v Reviewed the Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 March 2013
work performed EHEE2013F3AN B IEFRE 2(BEERBRSE)
ITHERE

v Reviewed updated compliance reports of the Company and its major PRC subsidiaries

EHARAREGTHEEMNBRARANEN SR ELRE
v Reviewed the form for confirmation of directors’ participation in training provided by each director in
compliance with the CG Code

EHNREFRUEZEF2ERIIZERRSE  NET(RETAD

v Reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval the revised policy on disclosure and public relations

EUREBEETZRBERARBERRTEEZREL

v Reviewed the Shareholders Communication Policy

R AT IR 3R 3 LR R
Composition 1 Independent Non-Executive Director Executive Director
A R BYHTES HTES

Mr Chan Shu Kin B 1 B2 %& 4 (Chairman 3= /&) + Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 2|5 & 5% &
Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 2 B 4 4t 4
(Alternate to Mr Chan Shu Kin & (F B 151 BX 5% 4£)

Role & Function* v Exercises the general mandate granted by shareholders to the Board to repurchase shares of PYlin

£ & B g accordance with the Listing Rules, PYI’s bye-laws and the applicable laws of Bermuda
REBCETRAD REQARNBAUNRAREEREZE TERRRTESFROUBRERN 2
%7

Summary of work v During the year, no meeting was held by the Share Repurchase Committee

performed REN BRODBEZEESTEZRTZE
IHBE
* Please refer to the terms of reference of the Share Repurchase Committee on PYI’s website: www.pyicorp.com for further details.

* ERE—FFHE FRE LHNREB U - www.pyicorp.comZ IROHBIEEZ S S BEHE -
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Composition Independent Non-Executive Directors

# BYEHTES
Mr Chan Shu Kin BR 15 B2 %t & * (Chairman = /&)
Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 22 8 45 5 4
Ms Wong Lai Kin Elsa & 8 B2 2 +

# Mr Chan Shu Kin is currently a certified public accountant with extensive experience in auditing, accounting and
financial management services.

BRERELERDS - ZREGHN ERH AU BEERBE I AHRALELR -

Role & Function* v Makes recommendations to the Board on appointment of external auditor

£ B B AL HEFINEZBMAES BIREZEZ
v Reviews the Group’s financial information
HH RSB BER
v Oversees the Group’s financial reporting system and internal control procedures
B 7N 5% [ B S B R L R MR BR R AR
v Reviews the interim and final results of the Group prior to submission to the Board for approval

ERREZRILEZN  BHAKETHRRRESR

v Meets regularly to review financial reporting and internal control matters and to this end has
unrestricted access to both the Company’s external and internal auditors
é?%ﬁ%ﬁ@%ﬁﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁiﬁﬂ NEPEEES=H - WA A LL B A i &R iR AR A B HNEE Ik A B A% &L

i ER A5 B

Report on work v Reviewed unaudited interim consolidated financial statements and audited annual consolidated

performed financial statements of the Group with a recommendation to the Board for approval
IEHSE ERAEERECEZNTRGEUBBRRREEZNEFERAVBRE  WEREER

v Reviewed internal control and risk management framework of the Group
EHAEBE AR R E R EEESR

v Received and reviewed progress reports on internal control, risk management and internal audit
actions implemented/planned by the Group
ERREHARERZE  RREEERAREMEBETHENABEFT TENERRSE

v Approved audit fee proposal of external auditor in connection with the audit of the Group’s 2013 final
results

BOESNE BB XA EE2013F RPEEMEENREE

v Approved audit fee proposal of external auditor in connection with the review of the Group’s 2014
interim results

HAEINEREM A B A EE04FHHREEREZENREE

v Approved the engagement of external auditor to provide non-audit services with service fee over
HK$500,000
BUAE Z= £ J1NEE A% L AD 12 44t AR 75 & i 38 500,0007% 7T 2 JE 2 BUR 5

v Reviewed connected transactions of the Group

EHAKREZHERS

v Recommended the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Group’s external auditor at
the 2013 AGM
BEN013FRRAFAG FEFEEEY « BEMRT ST ARNEEINEZ A

v Met with external auditor in the absence of executives of the Group

EABAKETBRABESNERT & RINBZEAE

* Please refer to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee on PYI's website: www.pyicorp.com for further details.
* BRE B FAE LHNRERL - www.pyicorpcomZ B ZE ESMIESHE -



INTERNAL CONTROL

Responsibility

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to establish, maintain
and review the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal
control to ensure that PYI shareholders’ investment and PYI's
assets are safeguarded. Such system of internal control was
developed by making reference to the Internal Control
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOQ) in the
United States in 1992 and the Guide on Internal Control and
Risk Management issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

Management is responsible for the design and implementation
of the internal control system of the Group to achieve the
following business objectives:

v Effectiveness and efficiency of operations
v' Reliability of financial reporting
V' Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

Such system is designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and aims to
provide a reasonable, as opposed to an absolute, assurance in
this respect.

The Audit Committee performs review of the effectiveness of
the Group’s system of internal control and reports to the Board
regularly. This review covers areas of material controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management system.

Risk Management and Internal Control

To cope with the risks associated with the achievement of its
business objectives in a continually changing environment, the
Group has recognized the importance of risk management and
has performed risk assessment to evaluate the nature and
extent of the risks to which it is exposed. During the risk
assessment process, the Group was able to identify the key
risks facing the Group. The risks are prioritized according to the
likelihood of their occurrence and the significance of their impact
on the businesses of the Group and risk management measures
are in place to manage the risks to an acceptance level.
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To support management in responding to risks arising from the
complex and changing business environment, training is
provided to our management to strengthen their awareness of
risk and capability to manage risks on a regular basis. Training
provided to management this year mainly included topics such
as impact of RMB internationalization to Mainland China
enterprise, latest capital financing policies and development in
China, latest trends in enterprise resources and planning system
and human resources management, brief introduction to COSO
Internal Control Integrated Framework 2013 and Environment,
Social and Governance Reporting.

The revised Disclosure & Public Relations Policy has been
implemented since 20 June 2013 in response to the statutory
requirements for disclosure of inside information. Proper
measures have been taken by the Group to ensure compliance
with the disclosure requirements. Such measures include
establishment of the inside information identification, reporting,
and disclosure protocol and procedures; in-house training to
senior management and relevant officers at Group level and
business units level to introduce the statutory requirements as
well as the implementation of the revised policy.

Review of Internal Control System

Management at business units level is required to perform
control self assessments annually at both company and
business process levels to assess the effectiveness of their
systems of internal control. The control self-assessment is in the
form of questionnaire that sets out key factors in each of the five
components of the COSO Internal Control Integrated
Framework. These five interrelated components are Control
Environment, Risk Assessment, Control Activities, Information
and Communication and Monitoring.

During the year, the Legal, Finance and Accounts as well as
Internal Control departments of the Group have set up project
teams to review the internal controls with focus in operational,
financial and compliance controls of all subsidiaries in China to
ensure their compliance with the Group’s internal control
policies and procedures and the accuracy of relevant reports
submitted to the Group.
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Moreover, the Group is in the process of adopting the new
COSO framework (COSO Internal Control Integrated Framework
2013). The preparation measures include a revision of the
control self-assessment questionnaire based on the new COSO
framework and delivery of relevant training to key business units
when implementing the revised questionnaire.

In addition, the internal audit department has carried out
independent audits to evaluate the effectiveness of the Group’s
system of internal control according to the approved three-year
internal audit plan for the Group. This audit plan was determined
using a risk-based approach and is re-assessed annually to
ensure adequate audit resources are deployed to achieve the
objectives of the internal audit plan.

Finally, management has formulated remedial action plans to
address the gaps and weaknesses identified during control
self-assessments, internal control reviews and internal audits.
The internal audit department has conducted follow-up reviews
periodically to ensure remedial actions are taken in a timely
manner, and has reported the results of the follow-up reviews
to the Audit Committee.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Board was not aware
of any significant issues that would have an adverse impact on
the effectiveness and adequacy of the internal control system of
the Group.

Review of Accounting and Financial Reporting Function

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget, and was satisfied with
the results of the review.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit department of PYI set up in November 2007
is headed by the Group Internal Audit Senior Manager who
reports directly to the Audit Committee of PYI. It plays an
important role in the internal governance of the Group. With the
assistance from external internal audit consultant, the internal
audit department is primarily responsible for conducting review
and audit on the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal
control periodically.
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The internal audit department is independent from operational
management and is fully empowered to access to data required
in performing the internal audit review. Moreover, the
department comprises well qualified and capable staff and is
provided with adequate resources to perform its duties.

In the year 2014, the internal audit department has completed
internal audit works for its second three-year internal audit
strategic plan, which was developed by adopting risk-based
approach and was approved by the Audit Committee to guide
and direct the internal audit assignments over the period.

During the year, the internal audit department has conducted
audits and reviews according to the internal audit work plan as
well as ad hoc assignments requested by the Audit Committee.
During the process of audits, the internal audit department
identified internal control weakness, made recommendations for
improvement, obtained remedial action plan of management
and followed up remedial status of the management action plan
and its timeliness. Besides, in order to ensure the continuity of
the ISO9001 certification in PYI (Hangzhou), the internal audit
department has performed internal audit review on the
compliance of PYI (Hangzhou) with the certification
requirements.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) has been re-appointed as
the Company’s external auditor at the 2013 AGM until the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting. The Audit
Committee in its meeting on 19 June 2014 recommended the
re-appointment of Deloitte as the Company’s external auditor at
the 2014 annual general meeting and the Board has adopted
the same view as that of the Audit Committee.
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In order to maintain independence, Deloitte is primarily
responsible for providing audit services in connection with the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, and only provides
non-audit services that do not impair their independence or
objectivity and are approved by the Audit Committee.
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IR -

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000

Services Rendered 12 4 19 BR %5 FTHERT FAT

Audit services %R 4,071 7,899

Non-audit services 4% E R 75

Review of interim condensed consolidated %% & B B B 45 &

financial statements B % 3R & 1,340 2,258

Taxation advisory i 15 55 30 80 521

Special engagements (Note) 1 E BB (HfaE) 60 5,145

Total Foogc) 5,651 15,823

Note: The amount for the year ended 31 March 2013 mainly represented
services for acting as reporting accountants in the proposed deemed very
substantial disposal of Louis XllIl Holdings Limited (“Louis XIlI”) (formerly
known as Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited) for the Company and in the
proposed very substantial acquisition for Louis XilI.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s memorandum of association and bye-laws (in
both English and Chinese) are available on the websites of PYI
(www.pyicorp.com) and HKEX.

To bring the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”) in line
with certain amendments made to the Listing Rules and to
incorporate certain housekeeping amendments, the Board had
proposed, for shareholders’ approval at the 2014 annual
general meeting, certain amendments to the Bye-laws. Details
of such amendments are set out in the notice of the 2014
annual general meeting.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In 2013/2014, the Group continued to discharge its corporate
social responsibility in many areas, both internally and towards
to the community.

Since 2012, PYIl and our associate, Paul Y. Engineering Group
Limited (“Paul Y. Engineering”), have committed to donating
HK$1,000,000 each year to Friends of Hope Education Fund
for three consecutive years as a token of our support to
education works in both Hong Kong and the Mainland China,
which include (i) sponsorship of tuition fees for Hong Kong
students with financial difficulties and AIDS infected children in
Hubei and (ji) renovation of facilities of primary schools in
Guizhou. In September 2013, PYI and Paul Y. Engineering
donated a total of HK$ 1,000,000 to the said fund.

In July 2013, PYIl was honoured to have sponsored a study tour
to Hong Kong for 30 outstanding secondary school students
from Nantong for the seventh year. PY!I organised trips to the
Legislative Council Complex, Monetary Authority Information
Centre, amusement parks and universities in Hong Kong with
an aim to educating the students on the educational and
commercial operations in Hong Kong as well as fostering the
potential of the next generation.

At PYI, our businesses are intricately connected to the
environment. With a sense of social responsibility towards the
environment, we supported the global “Earth Hour” campaign
organised by World Wide Fund (“WWF”) by turning off the
non-essential lights in our office for an hour at 8:30 p.m. on 29
March 2014. We also encouraged our staff to support “Earth
Hour” campaign through our internal communications. In
appreciation of our efforts, PYI is pleased to have received
thanks from the WWF.

In addition, PYI's PRC subsidiaries have adopted proactive
measures to use resources (including energy, water and other
raw materials) efficiently and to reduce noise, gas emissions
and discharges into water and land for their construction
projects and operating activities, thus minimising pollution and
related environmental problems. The Group also makes
extensive use of electronic communications in conducting its
business, thus assisting in the conservation of natural resources.
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“Staff” is a valuable asset to the Group. While PYl remains
committed to the good of the society, both locally and
regionally, we also focus on caring for our staff’s well being. To
this end, safe workplaces have been provided to all staff and
workshops have been provided to enhance their awareness
over occupational health and safety issues. Training has also
been provided to improve our staff’'s knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. We also encourage our staff to
maintain a healthy work-life balance and continue to support
their efforts towards voluntary work. In addition, PYl is proud to
be accredited, for the sixth year running, with the title of “Caring
Company” by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service.

As we progress into the new financial year, PYl would like to
maintain our focus to be a responsible and caring corporate

citizen, contributing to the community while driving profitability
for our shareholders.

By Order of the Board

Ko Hiu Fung
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 20 June 2014
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The Board is committed to enhancing value for our shareholders
through sustainable growth. This section serves to provide
information relating to our shareholders.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board proposed to pay a final cash dividend of HKO.5 cent
per share (which, together with the interim cash dividend of
HKO.5 cent per share paid in January 2014, amounts to a total
dividend of HK1 cent per share, representing a payout ratio of
53%) for the year ended 31 March 2014 to shareholders whose
names appear on PYI’s register of members as at the close of
business on Wednesday, 17 September 2014. Subject to the
approval of PYI's shareholders in the 2014 annual general
meeting to be held on Friday, 5 September 2014, cheques for
payment of the final cash dividend are expected to be
despatched to shareholders by post on or around Wednesday,
24 September 2014.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of PYI will be closed during the period
from Monday, 15 September 2014 to Wednesday, 17
September 2014, both dates inclusive, during which period no
transfer of share(s) of PYI will be effected. In order to qualify for
the final dividend, all transfer document(s), accompanied by the
relevant share certificate(s), must be lodged with PYI's branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on Friday, 12 September
2014.
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SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholdings as recorded in PYI's register of members as at
31 March 2014 are as follows:
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R2014F3A31H B ERERELM 2R
BRENT :

500 or below AT 337 56.92% 43,429 0.00%
501 - 1,000 88 5.57% 24,355 0.00%
1,001 — 10,000 114 19.26% 388,283 0.01%
10,001 - 100,000 72 12.16% 2,685,804 0.06%
100,001 - 1,000,000 22 3.72% 5,459,924 0.12%
1,000,001 - 10,000,000 9 1.52% 23,430,904 0.51%
10,000,001 — 100,000,000 1 0.17% 10,859,933 0.24%
Above 100,000,000 A 4* 0.68% 4,534,467,940 99.06%
Total 45t 592 100.00% 4,577,360,572 100.00%
* The four shareholders were: %P AREE 5 R4
1 HKSCC Nominees Limited  F&EhR4aE (RIEA) BRAT
Clearing Participants/ rEsmE/
Custodian Participants HEmSREE 3,135,127,697 68.49%
Investors Participants KEEFAOFAEA 45,262,207 0.99%
Hong Kong Securities BEERREH
Clearing Company Limited BRAT 576 0.00%
3,180,390,480" 69.48%
2 Hollyfield Group Limited 995,039,069 21.74%
3 Jadeview Limited 201,210,772 4.40%
4 Rich Concept Investments
Limited 157,692,718 3.44%
4,534,333,039 99.06%

The breakdown of the shareholding in the name of HKSCC Nominees
Limited was obtained from the record shown in the CCASS Participants
Shareholding Report (the “PSH Report”). The number of shares registered
in HKSCC Nominees Limited as shown in the PSH Report is different from
that shown on PYI's register of members because some shares
withdrawn from or deposited into the CCASS depository had not yet been
re-registered.
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Top two shareholders according to disclosure of interests under 720143 A31H + IREBE(EH KB E KRHI)#E =
the Securities and Futures Ordinance as at 31 March 2014 are BETZAMABRENAT :

as follows:

1 Hollyfield Group Limited 1,226,971,695 26.80%

2 FIL Limited 412,132,000 9.00%

Total &zt 1,639,103,695 35.80%
FINANCIAL CALENDAR Bt i B i

2013 final results and final dividend of HKO.5 cent/share announced 21/06/2013

2013 F RAEA R ER0SEBIZ RAKE

2013 PYI AGM 06/09/2013
2013 RERRAFAE
2013 final dividend of HKO0.5 cent/share paid 25/09/2013

K {2013 F F A% 0.5 Il 2 KEIA B

2014 interim results and interim dividend of HKO.5 cent/share announced 22/11/2013
EM2014F R HIEE R SROSBI Z R HIRE

2014 interim dividend of HKO.5 cent/share paid 06/01/2014
KA 2014 6 G AR0.548 U 2 1 HARR 2

2014 final results and final dividend of HKO.5 cent/share announced 20/06/2014
EM2014F REAEE R BROSBN 2 RHEK S

2014 PYI AGM 05/09/2014
2014 RERRAFRE
2014 final dividend of HKO0.5 cent/share payable Around #)FA 24/09/2014

RS 2014 % & IRO.578 1l 2 R ERAR &2




SHARE INFORMATION

Share Listing

PYI shares were first listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
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on 21 September 1993. e
Stock Code B o1
Hong Kong Stock Exchange 498 FHEE ﬁﬁ 498
American Depository Receipt PYIFY =EFE:EHE PYIFY
Frankfurt Stock Exchange PYW ABREEXZAT PYW
Board lot 2,000 shares E&EH 7 (FF) 2,000 P&
Securities in Issue BT H
Shares 2 15
As at 31 March 2014 4,577,360,572 shares W 20143 H31H 4,577,360,572 %
As at 20 June 2014 4,577,360,572 shares  #2014E6 A20R 4,577,360,572 1%
Share Price
K1E
— Share price (cum dividend)*
RRECGER)”
— Share price (ex dividend)
AXE (BR2)
HK$ 1.0
BT
08
06 F
04 F
02 ~
0.0
(e8] [ep] [e0] [e0} (a0} [e0) (0] () ™0 < <t <t
8 8 8 8 8 8 8 g 8 8 8 8

Share price (cum dividend) represents the aggregate of share price (ex dividend) and cumulative dividends paid from the date of listing of
PYI shares in Hong Kong on 21 September 1993

* BRECESIRERBRE(RE) RERERNEETE LT H(19935F9 /21

B AR 2 RET IS Z 8
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MARKET CAPITALISATION

Total Market Capitalisation
As at 31 March 2014

As at 20 June 2014

Public float capitalisation*

As at 31 March 2014
As at 20 June 2014

*

and directors) of PYI.

HK$778 million
HK$760 million

HK$534 million
HK$522 million

Public excludes all connected persons (including substantial shareholders

m{E

AmE

52
n2

A
72
72

*

0144 3H31H
01456 H20A

RIFRmE"

01443 H31H
01456 H20H

7781 T
7.601E7% T

5.3418 8 T
522187 T
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of PYI
Corporation Limited (“PY1” or the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2014,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures as at 31 March 2014 are set out in note 53 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2014 are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 89 of this annual report and in the
accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

An interim cash dividend for the year ended 31 March 2014 of
HKO.5 cent per share amounting to a total sum of approximately
HK$22,887,000 was paid to the shareholders during the year.

The directors have resolved to recommend for shareholders’
approval the payment of a final cash dividend for the year ended
31 March 2014 of HKO.5 cent per share to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members on 17 September
2014. The estimated total sum payable in respect of this final
dividend is approximately HK$22,887,000.

Details of the distribution are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the five largest customers
and the single largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 56% and 48% of the turnover of the Group
respectively. The five largest suppliers of the Group accounted
for less than 30% of the total purchases of the Group.

As far as the directors are aware, none of the directors and their
associates within the meaning of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”), or those shareholders who to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital, has an interest in any of the five
largest customers and/or five largest suppliers of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2014.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group currently maintains a variety of credit facilities to
meet its working capital requirements. As at 31 March 2014,
the Group’s total borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$2,274,210,000 with approximately HK$1,586,091,000
repayable within one year, approximately HK$688,119,000
repayable after one year. Cash, bank balances and deposits
as at 31 March 2014 amounted to approximately
HK$1,226,870,000. The Group’s current ratio (calculated as
total current assets divided by total current liabilities) was 1.68
and the debt to equity ratio (calculated as total borrowings
divided by equity attributable to owners of the Company) was 0.46
as at 31 March 2014.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent approximately
HK$131,964,000 in respect of the construction of ports and
approximately HK$23,778,000 on the other property, plant and
equipment.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 17
to the consolidated financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$82,171,000
on investment properties, transferred approximately
HK$115,817,000 from project under development to investment
properties and approximately HK$694,667,000 from investment
properties to stock of properties. All investment properties were
revalued at the year end date.

Details of these and other movements in the investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in note 18 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES

1. Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme of the Company (the “2012 Share
Option Scheme”) was approved and adopted by the
shareholders of the Company at its annual general
meeting held on 10 September 2012. A summary of the
2012 Share Option Scheme is set out below:

(1) Purpose

To provide incentive or reward to the participants (as
defined in paragraph (2) below) for their contribution
to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of,
the Group.

(2) Participants

Any employee (whether full time or part time),
executives or officers, directors (including executive,
non-executive and independent non-executive
directors) of any member of the Group or any entity
in which the Group holds an equity interest (“Invested
Entity”) and any celebrity, consultant, adviser or
agent of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity, who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have
contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the Group or any Invested Entity.
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES (Continued)

1. Share Option Scheme (Continued)
(8) Total number of shares available for issue

(@ Mandate Limit — Subject to paragraph (b)
below, the total number of shares in the
Company, which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the 2012
Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Company’s
issued shares as of 6 September 2013, being
457,736,057 shares.

(b)  Overriding Limit — The Company may by
ordinary resolutions of its shareholders refresh
the Mandate Limit as referred to in the above
paragraph (a) provided that the Company shall
issue a circular to its shareholders before such
approval is sought. The overriding limit on the
number of shares in the Company, which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must
not exceed 30% of the Company’s issued
shares from time to time.

(c) As of the date of this annual report, the total
number of shares in the Company available for
issue under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
was 457,736,057 shares, which represented
approximately 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company (that is, 4,577,360,572 shares)
on that date.

(4) Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options (whether
exercised or outstanding) in any 12-month period
granted to each participant must not exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue. However,
subject to separate approval by the shareholders of
the Company in general meeting with the relevant
participant and his associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) abstaining from voting and provided
that the Company shall issue a circular to its
shareholders before such approval is sought, the
Company may grant a participant options which
would exceed the aforesaid limit.
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES (Continued)

1. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

()

(7)

©)

Option period

The period during which an option may be exercised
as determined by the Board in its absolute discretion
at the time of grant, save that such period must not
exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant option.

Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it is vested

The minimum period, if any, for which an option
must be held before it is vested, shall be determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion. The 2012
Share Option Scheme itself does not specify any
minimum holding period.

Payment on acceptance of the option and
period for acceptance

HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to the Company
on acceptance of the option offer. An offer must be
accepted on or before a date as specified in writing,
being a date not later than 30 days after (i) the date
on which the offer was issued; or (i) the date on
which the conditions for the offer are satisfied.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price shall be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion at the time of grant
of the relevant option but shall not be less than the
higher of: (i) such subscription price as is permissible
under the Listing Rules from time to time; and (i) the
nominal value of the share of the Company.

Remaining life

The life span of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is
10 years commencing from 10 September 2012 and
will expire on 9 September 2022.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, no share options
were granted, nor exercised, cancelled or lapsed under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme.
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES (Continued)

2. Share Award Scheme

This scheme, adopted by the Company on 23 February
2006, allows the Company to make bonus payments to
eligible persons (including employees, directors,
consultants, advisers and agents of the Group) by way of
the Company’s shares acquired by and held through an
independent trustee until fulfilment of specified conditions
before vesting.

During the year, no shares of the Company were awarded
under this scheme.

3. Share Financing Plan

This plan, adopted by the Company on 14 February 2006,
allows eligible persons (including employees, directors,
consultants, advisers and agents of the Group) to borrow
funds from the Company or from a company within the
Group to acquire new or old shares of the Company on a
non-recourse basis with the subject shares pledged to the
Company as security, subject always to connected
transaction and other relevant provisions under the Listing
Rules.

During the year, no financing to eligible persons was
provided by the Group under this plan.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share incentive schemes disclosed above, at no
time during the year or at the end of the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

The Company’s reserve available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 March 2014 amounted to approximately
HK$1,024,998,000 (2013: HK$645,628,000).

B% 10 88 E 5 &8l (#)
2. RiZEREZE

200642 A23H B AR A Al FR ) 2 A5t &l
AT ARAAAERAT(BEAEER
BEE EF B SRARREA)IRE
H—R2BUXTABALBEE(EERE
IEBEREEXNRIL) 2ARAIKRGES

TE4T ©
RER - BERBATEBEEARRAMRMD -

K1 a & a2

2006452 414 B B A A &R 2 A 5t &
RHAGEBAT(BEAEEZEE &
FERE - BRARRBAIETHER
MERTRARAXANEEARN—KAQAME
FUBEAQARIZHKERD MBS
BHEFLEARARERERR  HARS
(EWHRANDEBEBER S R EH M AER K
ZHRTE e

RER AEEBYERBERFERAER
AT REEFBE -

BEROIESF 2L

B bl 4% 52 2 By A 5 &840

R F A B

Al sk F A By - AN D RS E AP A R B AT
TEMRYEMEARBDEEAZBEALRRG
HEMEMEABRBZEORESFMESHE -

o]t 7 K it

R2014F3A31H AT I& FRRE 2 A Q7 #
% #1 1,024,998,0007 7T (2013 : 645,628,00075

7T) e



DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Independent non-executive directors

Chan Shu Kin

Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph ggs, o
Li Chang An

Wong Lai Kin Elsa

Executive directors

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom (Chairman & Managing Director)
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan

Non-executive director

Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (with Chan Yiu Lun, Alan as
alternate)

In accordance with bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s bye-laws,
Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan, Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles and Mr
Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph will retire from office by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Except Dr Chan
Kwok Keung, Charles and Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph
who will not offer themselves for re-election, Mr Chan Yiu Lun,
Alan, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election as director at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Non-executive directors are subject to retirement by rotation
requirements under the Company’s bye-laws, and they are
appointed for a specific term of approximately three years.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Group which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2014, the interests and short positions of each
of the directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company, as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”) or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules,
are set out below:

EERRSTRAEREKSG  HER
RESZEERAE

MR2014F3A31H ARARESTEREETHAER
RAREZ KD RABRO TR TR VELERN
RB(GEELBREBEMN)EGETUFE 2B
MASRIBECETARRDM ST+ EMBETAE
FERTHFARHHEZETAND(UZEESTAN]) H
BRARARARBEABEXSHARR R ([H R
FT Rz ESRABHINAT

Number of shares/underlying shares held

BERG/ HERGHE
(Note {1 #F 1)
Approximate
Name of director/ Personal Family Corporate Other % of issued
chief executive Capacity interests interests interests interests Total share capital
B2 /B8 HERTRA
THRABER =30 B AREE RixER DEEE HipfE s wE ZEHEO
(Note [} 2
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom Beneficial owner, family 14,672,605 157,692,718 157,692,718 — 172,365,323 3.76%
ZRR interest & interest of (Note fff:#3)  (Note fff7+3) (Note [134)
controlled corporation
ERBEEAN REER
REEEEER
Chan Kwok Keung,  Beneficial owner & interest of 35,936,031 — 1,226,971,695 — 1,262,907,726 27.59%
Charles controlled corporation (Note [117£5)
PR B3 ERBEEAR

REEEER
Notes:

1. All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company were long positions. None of the directors and the chief
executive of the Company held any short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as at 31 March 2014.

2. Based on the Company’s issued share capital of 4,577,360,572 shares
as at 31 March 2014.

3. The two references to 157,692,718 shares relate to the same block of
shares in the Company. Such interests are indirectly held by a company
which is equally owned by Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and his spouse in the
proportion of 50% and 50%.

FRARBRD REBERD 2 EEH RBITE -
MR20145F3A31H  ARRIEFER&ZRITHAE
MERARRBRG RABBEBRDFIFEXE -

LA 201443 A31 B 2 4,577,360,572 X A 2 A B
BITRARRE

B BT 32 ) 157,692,718fX R R B Ik 15 » B 5 H
— B H e ZEERXBEE AR REER
HE B D B LA St H150% 50% AT B 2 A
AIfEEEAE -



DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

4. This figure refers to an aggregate of the 14,672,605 shares under
personal interests and the 157,692,718 shares under family and corporate
interests.

5. Such interests were held by Hollyfield Group Limited (“Hollyfield”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Investment Holdings Limited (“ITC
Investment”) (which was, in turn, a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC
Corporation Limited (“ITC”)). Galaxyway Investments Limited (“Galaxyway”),
an indirect wholly-owned company of Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles,
owned approximately 26.08% of the issued share capital of ITC. Dr Chan
Kwok Keung, Charles also personally held approximately 10.30% of the
issued share capital of ITC. By virtue of his aggregate interest of
approximately 36.38% in ITC, Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles was
deemed to be interested in the shares held by Hollyfield.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

As at 31 March 2014, none of the directors of the Company is
interested in any business (apart from the Group’s businesses)
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly and
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER
PERSONS

As at 31 March 2014, so far as is known to the directors and
the chief executive of the Company, the interests and short
positions of the substantial shareholders/other persons in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO
are as follows:

(1) Substantial shareholders

TERR HMALTZEBRAR

MR2014F3A31H MARARIEER&ERITHRA
BT FEREHEMATRARB KRG KE
B HEAALERBIEGESF RBEEG)D
EIBRBETEEZELMAZEZRAR W

T

(1) FERR

Number of
shares/ Approximate
underlying % of the issued
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held share capital
HEBT
BERG BA&ZBQ
BRERERB &% HEROHE Aot
(Note [f1311) (Note [ff712)
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles Beneficial owner 35,936,031 0.79%
Bk B 58 EmEB A
Interest of controlled 1,226,971,695 26.80%
corporation
A E
(Note [} 7 3)
Ng Yuen Lan, Macy Interest of spouse 1,262,907,726 27.59%
{h 150 38 il B
(Note [} &% 4)
ITC Corporation Limited Interest of controlled 1,226,971,695 26.80%
EHECEESERRAA corporation
EEEEE R
(Note fff 33)
ITC Investment Holdings Limited  Interest of controlled 1,226,971,695 26.80%
corporation
REEEEER
(Note [} i 3)
Hollyfield Group Limited Beneficial owner 1,226,971,695 26.80%
EmEB A

(Note fff i£3)



INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER
PERSONS (Continued)

(2) Other persons
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FERE HMALTZEBZRXAE @
2 EBMAL

Number of
shares/ Approximate
underlying % of the issued
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held share capital
L 8T
BERH BAEZHA
BRREB 514 MHERAEA Bol
(Note f1zt1) (Note f1z+2)
FIL Limited Investment manager 412,132,000 9.00%

wAEKE
Notes: st -

1. All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the 1. FRARRARBRG REBERGO 2 ERHE AR

Company were long positions.

2. Based on the Company’s issued share capital of 4,577,360,572
shares as at 31 March 2014.

3. Hollyfield Group Limited (“Hollyfield”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
ITC Investment Holdings Limited (“ITC Investment”) (which was, in
turn, a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Corporation Limited (“ITC”)),
owned 1,226,971,695 shares in the Company. Accordingly, ITC
Investment and ITC were deemed to be interested in the said
1,226,971,695 shares held by Hollyfield. Galaxyway Investments
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned company of Dr Chan Kwok
Keung, Charles (“Dr Chan”), owned approximately 26.08% of the
issued share capital of ITC. Dr Chan also personally held
approximately 10.30% of the issued share capital of ITC. By virtue
of his aggregate interest of approximately 36.38% in ITC, Dr Chan
was deemed to be interested in these shares held by Hollyfield.

4, Ms Ng Yuen Lan, Macy, the spouse of Dr Chan, was deemed to
be interested in the said 1,226,971,695 shares held by Hollyfield
and 35,936,031 shares held directly by Dr Chan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, the Company
had not been notified of any interests or short positions in the

shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in

the register of the Company required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO.

8.

2. LA 72201443 31 B 2 4,577,360,572 f% 7K
NABBITRABELE

3. ITC Investment Holdings Limited ([ITC
Investment]) (B EH X £ B ER A A
(IMEFErEDZ2ENBRAR) 22 &M
B A & Hollyfield Group Limited ([ Hollyfield |)
W 51,226,971,605% A A @ & 7 &
It + ITC Investment & 12 # 1 ¥ # 1% & R
Hollyfield+% & 2 I #lt 1,226,971,695 i% % 1)
FHARER BRERE LT ([RIE+])E
% 2 & %A 2 2 7Galaxyway Investments
Limted 8| HEE B HF CEBEBETRALD
26.08% c BRI+ IMUBEABEHGEH
EBBEITRAL10.30% - HRRIGL#E
BRECEAALN36.38%EE ' MERA
R Hollyfield 8 2 ZE R D B °

4, Bt zEBHEBHEZEIHR AR
Hollyfield ¥ & £ it 2 1,226,971,695 % % 19
R REE T EEFHR 235,936,031 K i (5
PRS-

B XA ESE I R2014FE3831H » KA A
WREMSAZERBBE(ESRPEEH)E
3BHEBEFHEEZARAZLRMAZ AR ARG
AR 2 T MESESAE -
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

Including the directors of the Group, as at 31 March 2014, the
Group employed a total of 1,759 (2013: 1,791) full time
employees. Remuneration packages consisted of salary as well
as performance-based bonus. In appreciation of continuing
support of the Group’s employees, a bonus payment to
employees was made during the year.

Under the Group’s existing emolument policy, pay rate of
employees are maintained at competitive level with reference to

the merits, qualification and competence of the employees while

promotion and increments are based on performance of the
respective employees.

The emolument of the directors of the Company is decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to various factors
including the prevailing market conditions, salary paid by
comparable companies, the duties and responsibilities of a
director, employment conditions elsewhere and the time
committed by the director.

Further, the Company has implemented three share-related
incentive schemes to provide alternative means to motivate
employees and promote their loyalty in line with the Group’s
strategy. Such schemes benefited the Group’s staff in both
Hong Kong and the Mainland.

Details of remuneration policy of the Company are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on page 56 of this annual report.
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ARRCHEESBYFATESTRE(LETR
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Information on the Group’s retirement benefit schemes is set
out in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders although there are no restrictions against
such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 40 to
67 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the directors acknowledge that
approximately 68.64% of the issued share capital of the
Company are held by the public.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During the year, the Group did not have material acquisition and
disposal of subsidiaries.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.20 AND
13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES

(1) Advances to entities

As at 31 March 2014, advances to entities did not
individually exceed 8% under the assets ratio as defined
under Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules.

(2) Financial assistance and guarantees given to
affiliated companies

As at 31 March 2014, the aggregate amount of the
financial assistance provided by the Group to its affiliated
companies (as defined under Chapter 13 of the Listing
Rules) did not exceed 8% under the assets ratio as
defined under Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules. As at 31
March 2014, there was no guarantee given by the Group
for facilities granted to its affiliated companies.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
of approximately HK$1,007,000 (2013: HK$1,056,000).

AUDITOR

A resolution to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor
of the Company and to authorise the directors of the Company
to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 June 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF PYl CORPORATION LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of PYI
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 89 to
231, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2014, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90
of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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BUREMBES

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March
2014, and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 June 2014
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mE W
N esoresoRst A e

2014 2013
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B 7 FHET FAT
Turnover -t
The Company and its subsidiaries KA REMERQ G 6 998,652 6,497,590
Share of associates and joint ventures  #(hH & A & &N E 4,926,481 1,527,932
5,925,133 8,025,522
Group turnover EEEEH 6 998,652 6,497,590
Cost of sales 85 5 B AR (835,838) (6,168,342)
Gross profit ES ] 162,814 329,248
Other income H g A 8 23,157 62,936
Administrative expenses THER (166,540) (319,534)
Distribution and selling expenses DHENEEE R (123,716) (81,763)
Other gains and losses HElizm kAR 9 23,743 27,217
Other expenses H & A 10 (61,514) (19,470)
Finance costs B & KA 11 (52,781) (70,366)
Gain on fair value changes of WEMEANFEEEY 2 W
investment properties 18 390,228 190,410
Fair value gain on transfer of ERIFHEHEMEERS
completed properties held for sale to KEWMEZRFEE
investment properties g 18 - 34,568
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries & £ H & it B A 7] 2 Yt 25 43 - 170,021
Share of results of associates (B ia* UNETE ¥ 122,164 84,914
Share of results of joint ventures BEHAELEhEES 744 10,575
Profit before taxation % 5 B 05 A 13 318,299 418,756
Taxation g 14 (182,360) (114,230)
Profit for the year FEHF 135,939 304,526
Profit for the year attributable to: ATATEEEERN
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIE PN 85,586 262,343
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR = 50,353 42,183
135,939 304,526
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Earnings per share FRAEF 16
Basic earnings per share R& = AN & A 0.019 0.057
Diluted earnings per share 5SS 2 N/A =~EHA 0.057
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2 A 22
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HZE2014F3A31AILFE

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Profit for the year F [ A 135,939 304,526
Other comprehensive income Hib2mEk
Iltems that may be subsequently reclassified AIRE#E D EAEERIEH
to profit or loss
Exchange differences arising from translation MEBINEBMEEZ
of foreign operations ME N = 1,839 23,552
Share of exchange differences of associates BEBMELAAIRAEELEZ
and joint ventures &5 =58 585 15,585
Reclassification adjustment of translation BIELEEW B QT BE L FE
reserve upon deemed disposal of subsidiaries 7 & ¥l 7 & - (24,859)
Gain on fair value changes of available-for-sale At HE & E 2 A FBE S
investments PR g 35,029 28,425
Reclassification adjustment on disposal of HERfHEg g &5 5
available-for-sale investments - (2,596)
Other comprehensive income for the year FEHEME2EKE 37,453 40,107
Total comprehensive income for the year FEIHEWR A 173,392 344,633
Total comprehensive income for the year LW ATEEEE
attributable to: P H AR
Owners of the Company VIN/NE=IE RSN 123,095 296,712
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR ME 50,297 47,921
173,392 344,633
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B AR OR R
At 31 March 2014
201443 A31H

2014 2013
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 7 FET FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment I ERE L& 17 1,585,828 1,517,924
Investment properties &Y 18 859,327 975,658
Project under development ERPIER 19 256,064 637,648
Prepaid lease payments A EKIEA 20 333,446 350,582
Other intangible assets HEmpEE 21 65,581 74,680
Interests in associates Bt 8 N B M 2 22 1,688,875 1,549,656
Interests in joint ventures AETEER 23 87,730 91,696
Available-for-sale investments A EERE 24 702,754 667,724
Other non-current assets HuIEReEE 25 93,025 -
5,672,630 5,865,568
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Stock of properties MEFE 26 1,723,474 1,130,558
Prepaid lease payments BB ERE 20 3,053 3,307
Inventories of finished goods HmmEE 27 28,152 63,430
Loans receivable B W E 28 76,000 106,425
Amounts due from associates JE U B 2 N B RRIE 29 38,470 19,102
Amounts due from joint ventures FE Yy & % ﬁ%mlﬁﬁ 30 - 19
Amount due from a non-controlling interest & U 3E 428 I% # 25 7 18 30 1,250 1,248
Trade and other debtors, deposits and B 5 K E b e YL BR 78
prepayments e MBI FIE 31 242,299 400,855
Investments held for trading HIEEEHRE 32 84,984 64,225
Available-for-sale investments A EERE 24 - 82
Pledged bank deposits BB ITER 33 473,683 646,520
Short term bank deposits HHRITIER 33 312,639 790,593
Bank balances and cash WTEERERES 33 440,548 445,013
3,424,552 3,671,377
Assets classified as held for sale DEABIELEZEE 25 - 88,383

3,424,552 3,759,760
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBI R
At 31 March 2014
201443 A31H

2014 2013
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B 7 FHET FAET
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other creditors and B 5 M H M ERR
accrued expenses MR H X 34 397,200 864,736
Deposits received for pre-sale of properties FEE W% > B Wil & - 25,974
Amounts due to associates XN R NCIE 35 140,918 110,630
Amount due to a joint venture EN—HEAaY%ERIE 36 131 112
Amounts due to non-controlling interests FER IR AR REZS TR 1B 37 9,225 16,854
Taxation payable JE A 18 2,381 9,806
Bank and other borrowings — due within  —F R Z| 8 7 R 17 & H b
one year =R 38 1,494,149 1,720,531
2,044,004 2,748,643
Liabilities associated with assets classified M4 AEELHE 2
as held for sale BERBzAE 25 - 25,331
2,044,004 2,773,974
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 1,380,548 985,786
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBAERE
LIABILITIES 7,053,178 6,851,354
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBARE
Bank and other borrowings — due after —FREBPZRTREM
one year & & 38 675,619 764,702
Amounts due to non-controlling interests FEfHIEIE PR iE S TR 1B 37 12,500 17,952
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEAE 39 747,449 582,582
Deferred income PR IE U A 40 53,459 50,896
Other payables Eh JE A BR 3R 34 57,541 62,873
1,546,568 1,479,005
5,506,610 5,372,349
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A AR &
At 31 March 2014
201443 A31H

2014 2013
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
Bt 5 FEx FiET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRHE

Share capital R% 7R 41 457,736 457,736
Reserves & 4,464,938 4,383,439

Equity attributable to owners KARHAAZEGRER
of the Company 4,922,674 4,841,175
Non-controlling interests IR 583,936 531,174
TOTAL EQUITY R 5,506,610 5,372,349

The consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 231 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
20 June 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

Tom Lau 257
Chairman and Managing Director F J& # #8 &

BN ESIEB1BE 2 A B IREKREN2014F6
A20BEEERZERFETIE  Th THE
ERREZRESR:

Alan Chan FZE
Executive Director #77& %
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FRERRBPR
BEaer oA AR

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

KAREEAREES
Share-
Investment based Non-
Share Share Special Capital revaluation Other Translation payment Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserves reserve reserve profits  Sub-total interests equity
U A
RE XARE FER
BA RGEE BHHE EXEE ERFHE HtHEE ELRE ®E REEN Pt BE AR
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET ThEr FEL TEx TEL FTiEx TEL FiEr  TEx ThEr  FEx FET
At 1 April 2012 R201254A1R8 455,849 493,494 124,695 (95,368 - 69,987 410,703 2,449 3,148,130 4,609,939 678,319 5,288,258
Exchange differences arising BEBNEBTES
from translation of foreign ZEXRER
operations - - - - - - 17,814 - - 17,814 5,738 23,652
Share of exchange differences of BB DA KA E
associates and joint ventures rEZERZS - - - - - - 15,585 - - 15,585 - 15,585
Reclassification adjustment of BELEMHB QAR
translation reserve upon EiRE2EN AL
deemed disposal of
subsidiaries - - - - - - (24,859) - - (24,859) - (24,859)
Gain on fair value changes of ARHEREZAT
avallable-for-sale investments BEZD U - - - - 28,425 - - - - 28,425 - 28,425
Reclassification adjustment on HEAHREEREZ
disposal of available-for-sale E2IEE:S
investments - - - - (2,596) - - - - (2,59) - (2,59)
Profit for the year FERF - - - - - - - — 262343 262,343 42,183 304,526
Total comprehensive income for &2 &
the year ek - - - - 25,829 - 8,540 - 262,343 296,712 47,921 344,633
Deemed disposal of subsidliaries 18 /& 1\ & i1 B 22 7
(note 43) (Hr3t43) - - (124,6%) - - - - - 12469 —  (254,470)  (254,470)
Distribution (note 15) Pl (H i 15) - - - - - - - - (68566)  (68,566) - (68,566)
Share of other reserves of BEBERAZ
associates Hib ki - - - - - 3 - - - 3 - 3
Issue of shares under scrip REARR SE 8
dividend scheme BIRMG 1,887 1,200 - - - - - - - 3,087 - 3,087
Release upon lapse of vested EEBRERELUE
options j:4El - - - - - - - (2449 2,449 - - -
Transfer of reserves of EEMBRRZ
subsidiaries =4 - - - - - 6,797 - - (6,797) - - -
Dividend distributed by HERR DKL
subsidiaries ks - — - — - — - — - — (6,462) (6,462)
Contribution from non-controlling 3¢ & 3E 42 % 2%
interests HE - - - - - - - - - - 65,866 65,866
At 31 March 2013 R2013F3A31H 457,736 494,694 - (95,368) 25,829 76,787 419,243 — 3462254 4841175 531,174 5,372,349
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GABBRBRBX

For the year ended 31 March 2014

HE2014F3A31HIEFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

AAREEAEEES
Investment Non-
Share Share Capital revaluation Other Translation Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve  profits Sub-total interests  equity
RE
BRE ROEE EXEE BREE ERRE RIEH Mt OEZREE  ARR
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr FEr T FTET TErT TFThExr ThEx TET TFTEx
At 1 April 2013 R2013F4F1H 457,736 494,694  (95,368) 25,829 419,243 3,462,254 4,841,175 531,174 5,372,349
Exchange differences arising BEBNEBT
from translation of foreign EEZERES
operations - - - - 1,895 - 1,895 (56) 1,839
Share of exchange differences of ~ H{EBL NI RAL
associates and joint ventures rEVERES - - - - 585 - 585 - 585
Gain on fair value changes of AREEREZATE
available-for-sale investments EEH 2 hE - - - 35,029 - - 35,029 - 35029
Profit for the year EEHF - - - - — 85586 85586 50,353 135939
Total comprehensive income for EE2ENRE
the year ok — — - 35,029 2480 85586 123,095 50,297 173,392
Distribution (note 15) IR (K1 15) - - - - —  (45,774)  (45,774) — (45,774
Share of other reserves of BABMENARAEE
associates and joint ventures rEZEMREE - - - - - - 4,178 - 4,178
Transfer of reserves of subsidiaries & &M B AT 2 (& - - - - - (1,549 - - -
Dividend distributed to IR R D R
non-controlling interests BE - - - - - - - (63) (63)
Contribution from REFERERLE
non-controlling interests - - - - - — - 2,528 2,528
At 31 March 2014 R2014%53A31H 457,736 494,694  (95,368) 60,858 421,723 3,500,523 4,922,674 583,936 5,506,610

REBNR2012F4A1H 2 BRI REEENB L
ARNERAEEKESE B 2 BAEERRKRME
B EFEAREREMBET ZRATERZE
B

The special reserve of the Group as at 1 April 2012 represented
the difference between the nominal amount of the share capital
and share premium of the subsidiaries at the date on which
they were acquired by the Group and the nominal amount of
the share capital issued as consideration for the acquisition.
BERBEBEEAESEMKENBLAR 2 BIMER
BEzHAEERBBEZATEEREEER
CEB - FHRSBEHERNEENBAR 2R X
HEBEE(UREERE)RBRB R I -

The capital reserve represents the difference between the fair
value and the carrying amount of the underlying assets and
liabilities that are attributable to the additional interests in
subsidiaries acquired by the Group. The amount would be
charged to retained profits upon disposal of interests in the
subsidiary or the relevant assets, whichever is earlier.

HihFEHEFEHEBRBEREAREMBE(HE]
ERBEREKL 2 WE AT ZBREE R AR
ETHABEEERHEBERBELBEAAREE
Other reserves mainly represent statutory reserve which is the EZHMEE -
appropriation of certain percentages of profit after taxation of

subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China (the

“PRC”) as pursuant to the PRC regulations and share of other

reserves of associates and joint ventures.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AN =B
GEHERER
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HZE2014F3A31AILFE

2014 2013
HK$000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES me K
Profit before taxation B B4 A1 5 A 318,299 418,756
Adjustments for: LTF|IEE EITHE
Finance costs A& AR 52,781 70,366
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant HEWE BRAREZER
and equipment (Yezx) 1,382 (1,316)
Loss on disposal of a joint venture HE—HegbE BB 8,014 -
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries RELEMBR R 2 W - (170,021)
Share of results of associates BEmE NP EE (122,164) (84,914)
Share of results of joint ventures BIEEEDERESE (744) (10,575)
Release of prepaid lease payments FARENEERE 3,359 4,060
Amortisation of other intangible assets EmmpEEgE 10,348 3,675
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - W EEREZITE 77,743 64,858
Gain on fair value changes of investments held BIEEEREZATEEES
for trading Z W Es (11,320) (3,713)
Fair value gain on transfer of completed properties ERIBELEMEERRSE
held for sale to investment properties BEWEZ A ATFEEKE - (34,568)
Gain on fair value changes of investment properties REWMEATEEZS 2 Wa (390,228) (190,410)
Interest income B WA (20,312) (51,186)
Dividend income from investments held for trading BEEEEREZRBEWA (2,144) (1,264)
Impairment loss recovered on receivables JE LS R TE A a1 3% (B S 18 (16,210) (881)
Write-back of overprovision of deferred consideration 5 [B] i 1+ i IE (X (8 ~ #B 2B s &
payable - (9,683)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments HEHEERE 2 & - (2,596)
Operating cash flows before movements in working AL EESCEHA L ER
capital REeERE (91,196) 588
Changes in amounts due from (to) customers for FEW(EMN)BRPAHTIRREE
contract works - (147,625)
Decrease (increase) in stock of properties Y EETFEOR A (35 n) 416,270 (86,247)
Decrease (increase) in loans receivable FE W E FOR A (3 n) 12,000 (11,937)
Decrease (increase) in inventories of finished goods T E R () 35,357 (40,550)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other debtors, B REMEBKER ek
deposits and prepayments TE A R IR A (380D 121,981 (145,669)
(Increase) decrease in amounts due from associates JE i Bk 5 ) B RRIE (3 hn) s (470) 4,380
Increase in amounts due from joint ventures FE U & & 1 5 R IE L 0 - (68,845)
Decrease in investments held for trading BIEEERERD 10,015 —
Decrease in deposits received for pre-sale of properties 5t T8 & ¥ 2 ~ B Wik & 7 (25,974) (16,500)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other creditors and B REMBENERRRETHX
accrued expenses OR ) & n (409,901) 210,480
Decrease in amounts due to associates JE <) Bt i N R RIE R A (7,815) (42,057)
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to joint ventures FENA & DEFREENCHD) 38 (57,275)
Cash generated from (used in) operations e (AR)KEEB RS 60,305 (401,257)
Overseas tax paid 218N IR (49,109) (25,721)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTMITIES  HE (AR) S 2% > 5 & 518 11,196 (426,978)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2014

HE2014F3A31HIEFE

2014 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$ 000
{522 Fix FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEK
Release of pledged bank deposits AR EFRITEX 646,520 730,911
Refund of deposits paid for potential projects REBEEBETEHEBEZENES 50,000 -
Interest received 2 U 8 37,592 85,768
Dividend received from associates B = AR E 19,102 18,123
Repayment from an associate &N EE R 6,000 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME - KW RRE
and equipment P18 K18 5,926 15,703
Proceeds from disposal of a joint venture HE—HeEEMBREA 5,106 -
Proceeds from disposal of prepaid lease i & 8 - 1 & SRR & AR
payments and related other intangible assets HEihEmEEEMBRIEA 4,714 31,349
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties HEREYEMEBRIA 3,036 —
Government grants received 2 W BT 8 AL 2,535 10,043
Dividend received from investments held BERBIEERIRE
for trading iz 2 2,144 1,264
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HEMHBEREY
investments Fr {8 318 81 17,490
Additions to pledged bank deposits B F R IT 7 FE (473,683) (646,520)
Payment for property, plant and equipment L W E A N (166,760) (191,342)
Additions to investment properties "B (82,171) (34,854)
Payment for project under development BERPIEE ZHR (52,842) (188,227)
Advance to an associate Bl 2=NEIE-F (44,000) -
Contribution to joint ventures AGELERA (14,540) (950)
Prepayment for acquisition of properties L3 ESEENE- (4,594) -
Payment for transaction costs on deemed WA EH B A
disposal of subsidiaries ZRGEAZ TR (4,000) -
Additions to other intangible assets Hfth #8 2 & 2= 4 0 (1,130) -
Additions to prepaid lease payments TE & FRIAE N (253) (75,095)
Net cash outflow on deemed disposal BIEHENBRARR 2
of subsidiaries e FE 43 - (66,972)
Additions to interests in associates B A E) 2 R 1N - (63,838)
Additions to available-for-sale investments A SR A M - (48,620)
Settlement of deferred consideration payable BEEMNBELERE - (2,647)
Repayment of deferred consideration receivable B8 FE SR TR (B - 743,284
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING (AR REBRELBRS

ACTIVITIES

R (61,217) 334,870
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= ==
mMEBRERER
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE201463A31HIEFE

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BEERIT R HMER (2,611,798) (2,803,982)
Interest paid 214 F 2 (104,260) (149,561)
Dividends paid EfR’RE (45,774) (65,479)
Repayment of amounts due to non-controlling BERMIETERER
interests ZPE (138,127) (6,368)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BT E A R IEIE R =
of subsidiaries ZR’E (63) (6,462)
New bank and other borrowings raised MEBRT REAME R 2,294,602 3,240,871
Advance from an associate — g E AR ZBK 38,023 37,453
Contribution from non-controlling interests KEFERERFZLEE 2,528 65,866
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING (AR)REBMEZTH 2
ACTIVITIES HEFHE (439,869) 312,338
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND HeRERLEMEER
CASH EQUIVALENTS OR &) B niF 88 (489,890) 220,230
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE IEERNBTE
CHANGES 7,471 7,141
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT REeERERESEEERBRA
FORWARD 1,235,606 1,008,235
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED RePHERESEEERLE
FORWARD 753,187 1,235,606
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH REeRERESEHEEHR
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R
Short term bank deposits RERITIE K 312,639 790,593
Bank balances and cash BITEFLERS 440,548 445,013
753,187 1,235,606
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability. Its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
the principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the

annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional

currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in note 53.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following new and revised HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the

“HKICPA”).

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12

HKAS 19

(as revised in 2011)
HKAS 27

(as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28

(as revised in 2011)
HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13
HK(FRIC)-Int 20

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Consolidated Financial
Statements, Joint
Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Consolidated Financial
Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities

Fair Value Measurement

Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of a
Surface Mine

RE MR M
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HZE2014F3 A1 BIEFE

R At

ARAEBREIMKNLIARZHBLAR
R EBELFEBEEBARSZMERATR
(B Pr]) BT o AR B 2 5 M3 5 52 A
RETELEWHBERNERIQAER]
—EEEH AR EE -

BAMBREUBTES  BEHFBEA
A2 AL -

ARAR—HREZERAR -HEXEZMNE
NE BERRRAELEZEBFBH
I B RE 53

BRFIREEREBMHERS
ZA(TERYBREERD

RAFEER AKEERERBEEG
g ((BEGTERE]) M2 T
AR BERBETHHREEL -

BEGHER 2N EMEEREEE
ERLACS )

BEMBRE 2009-2011 FEAEES
B8 (&1E5T) BB REEAFELRE

BAERBREER RE-HHEeREER
ENEACS ) SRARE

BEPMBRELENEI0 HAYVBRR AELH
%oBAABRSE EREREBERZ
EUE1EREE B BE MRS
HHBREENE 1257

i D

€2-H))

BB G EE10% EERF
(2011 E 4 ER)

BRI ERER ERE B RE

(2011 EEER)

BA G ERF 85 RELARRALLE
(2011 FE&EH) ZEE

FEMBREENE 0% FAYBHRR
BRMBRELUS NG aETH
BEPMBRELENE 125 NERELER
21
BEMBRELNE13G AFEEIGAE
EEERREZES)- BRRBLEERERD
AEF20% FIRA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRERMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE201463A31HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income”

The amendments to HKAS 1 introduce new terminology
for statement of comprehensive income and income
statement. Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a “statement
of comprehensive income” may be renamed as a “statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income” and an
“income statement” may be renamed as a “statement of
profit or loss”. However, since the new terminology under
amendments to HKAS 1 is not mandatory and the
directors of the Company determine to remain using the
titles of “statement of comprehensive income” and “income
statement”.

In addition, the amendments to HKAS 1 require items of
other comprehensive income to be grouped into two
categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis — the amendments do not change the
existing option to present items of other comprehensive
income either before tax or net of tax. The amendments
have been applied retrospectively, and hence the
presentation of items of other comprehensive income has
been modified to reflect the changes. Other than the
above mentioned presentation changes, the application of
the amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact
on profit or loss, other comprehensive income and total
comprehensive income.

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
the package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures comprising
HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”, HKFRS
11 “Joint Arrangements”, HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities”, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
“Separate Financial Statements” and HKAS 28 (as revised
in 2011) “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”,
together with the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12 regarding transitional guidance.

BRMAIREEREBEMBRS
HA(TEBMBREEAD @

EBETERFE1R (KIEET) 2
FIRE M2 E W E A

ErgtENF1IREEIT)IIAZER
BRRBERZHME REBFEGE
AIE1SE(RER])  [2EBERIAZER
(BakHEpEmka®] mMIRERIA
SERIBHER] - A ARBEGE
A5 (BAERT) TSl A Z 138 2 7F 98
HER BARREEFRERTEAI2
BRI MR Z M -

BEAN - FAE G EREIR(EER) BEXR
Hit2HMBRBEDRME: @RS
ENORERDZC2ER  ROEFTARKE
GRUrE ERAIESEN I BRERRZE
B-Ht2EKEHE ZAEHRARER
R BC — % F 18 57 I 8 5 A BR 7 Al
ZHEBRHAZIEMEERERR Z
BREZE - ZFEFCEBPRR Bt
Hit2mWeH B 2 25 EFERTIARR
ZEEY -BLAZREHI BRAEBE
SR EAFIREER) HiBs Ei 2
HRERE2EREARLETAZE -

BRESKER S8%H BER

Al R % 7 2 # AT RAEIE K ER]

RER AEEEHXERRLERBRE
EHRE AL BMEQARARBEBRZE
Al RIEEBUBHRELELFI0REE
MKl BEAVBEREENEHE
B2 BEMBREEAF12HRFEE
REMEBB =] BB S ERF27
5 (0N FLER) AR B RE ] RES
@5t Bl 52857 (2011 F &£ & ) [ B &
RAREGETCEZRE|ERESUBIR
EREAF109 - BBV IEIRELE 1158
REBUBHREENE 125 FHEBIEIES
ZAEET °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to these
consolidated financial statements as it deals only with
separate financial statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out
below.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements” that deal with
consolidated financial statements and HK(SIC)-Int 12
“Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities”. HKFRS 10
changes the definition of control such that an investor has
control over an investee when (a) it has power over the
investee, (b) it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and (c) has the
ability to use its power to affect its returns. All three of
these criteria must be met for an investor to have control
over an investee. Previously, control was defined as the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Additional
guidance has been included in HKFRS 10 to explain when
an investor has control over an investee.

The directors of the Company made an assessment as at
the date of initial application of HKFRS 10 (i.e. 1 April
2013) as to whether or not the Group has control over its
investees in accordance with the new definition of control
and the related guidance set out in HKFRS 10. The
directors of the Company concluded that it has had
control over the investees which were consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements before the
application of HKFRS 10. The adoption of HKFRS 10 has
therefore had no material effect on the amounts reported
in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRERMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE201463A31HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures”,
and the guidance contained in a related interpretation,
HK(SIC)-Int 13 “Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-
Monetary Contributions by Venturers”, has been
incorporated in HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011). HKFRS 11
deals with how a joint arrangement of which two or more
parties have joint control should be classified and
accounted for. Under HKFRS 11, there are only two types
of joint arrangements — joint operations and joint
ventures. The classification of joint arrangements under
HKFRS 11 is determined based on the rights and
obligations of parties to the joint arrangements by
considering the structure, the legal form of the
arrangements, the contractual terms agreed by the parties
to the arrangement and, when relevant, other facts and
circumstances. A joint operation is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement (i.e. joint operators) have rights to the assets,
and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the
arrangement. A joint venture is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement (i.e. joint venturers) have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement. Previously, HKAS 31
contemplated three types of joint arrangements — jointly
controlled entities, jointly controlled operations and jointly
controlled assets. The classification of joint arrangements
under HKAS 31 was primarily determined based on the
legal form of the arrangement (e.g. a joint arrangement
that was established through a separate entity was
accounted for as a jointly controlled entity).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11 (Continued)

The initial and subsequent accounting of joint ventures
and joint operations is different. Investments in joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity method
(proportionate consolidation is no longer allowed).
Investments in joint operations are accounted for such
that each joint operator recognises its assets (including its
share of any assets jointly held), its liabilities (including its
share of any liabilities incurred jointly), its revenue (including
its share of revenue from the sale of the output by the joint
operation) and its expenses (including its share of any
expenses incurred jointly). Each joint operator accounts
for the assets and liabilities, as well as revenues and
expenses, relating to its interest in the joint operation in
accordance with the applicable standards.

At 1 April 2013, the directors of the Company reviewed
and assessed the classification of the Group’s investments
in the joint arrangements in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS 11. The directors concluded that
the Group’s investment in each of the joint arrangements,
each of which was classified as a jointly controlled entity
under HKAS 31 and was accounted for using the equity
method, should be classified as a joint venture under
HKFRS 11 and continues to be accounted for using the
equity method. In respect of certain joint arrangements
owned by Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited (“Paul .
Engineering”, formerly known as “Paul Y. Engineering (BVI)
Limited”) which was deconsolidated from the Group on 5
February 2013, the directors of Paul Y. Engineering had
assessed the impact and with a view that the joint
arrangements should be classified as joint operations
under HKFRS 11. The directors of the Company consider
that the impact of net assets and impact of profit for the
year to the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 is
insignificant and no restatement is considered necessary.
There is no impact for the year ended 31 March 2014 as
the Group no longer consolidates Paul Y. Engineering and
only equity picked up its 47.52% equity interests as an
associate for the current year. The adoption of HKFRS 11
has therefore had no material effect on the amounts
reported in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated
structured entities. In general, the application of HKFRS
12 has resulted in more extensive disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements (please see notes 22, 23
and 53 for details).

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of
guidance for, and disclosures about, fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad: the fair
value measurement requirements of HKFRS 13 apply to
both financial instrument items and non-financial
instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or permit
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value (e.g.
net realisable value for the purposes of measuring
inventories or value in use for impairment assessment
purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price
that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer
a liability, in the case of determining the fair value of a
liability) in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is
an exit price regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure
requirements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” (Continued)

In accordance with the transitional provisions of HKFRS

13, the Group has applied the new fair value measurement
and disclosure requirements prospectively. Disclosures of

fair value information are set out in notes 18 and 44(c).
Other than the additional disclosures, the application of
HKFRS 13 has not had any material impact on the
amounts recognised in these consolidated financial

statements.

Except as described above, the application of the other
new or revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no

material effect on the amounts reported and/or disclosures

set out in these consolidated financial statements of the

Group.

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Amendments to
HKAS 32

Amendments to
HKAS 36

Amendments to
HKAS 39

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions®
Offsetting Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities'
Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets'
Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting’
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle*
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle?
Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures®
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to Investment Entities’
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27
Amendments to Accounting for Acquisitions of
HKFRS 11 Interests in Joint Operations®
Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable
HKAS 16 and Methods of Depreciation
HKAS 38 and Amortisation®
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be
determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
limited exceptions

5 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on
or after 1 January 2016

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
the requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further
amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for
hedge accounting.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent
reporting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is
not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in
the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value
of the financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting. However, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the
types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial items
that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with
the principle of an “economic relationship”. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer
required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about an
entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in
the future may have impact on the amounts reported in
respect of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities. Regarding the Group’s financial assets, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect
until a detailed review has been completed.

Except as described above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of other new or revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (“the Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments and investment properties which are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the
other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders’ meetings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
palance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ji) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
values, with certain exemptions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-
by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specified in another standard.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset
(or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of
that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, regardless of whether
the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in its former
subsidiary after the sale.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs of disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes (other than construction in
progress as described below) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment (other than
construction in progress) less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes. Construction in
progress is carried at cost less any recognised impairment
loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy. Construction in progress is
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties include land held for undetermined
future use, which is regarded as held for capital
appreciation purpose, and land under development for
future use as investment property.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at their fair values. Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of investment property are included in profit
or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

An investment property carried at fair value is transferred
to properties for sales when there is a change in use
evidenced by commencement of development with a view
to sale of the relevant properties. The fair value of the
property at the date of transfer is the deemed cost of the
property for its subsequent accounting in accordance with
HKAS 2 “Inventories”.

Land under development

Land under development for rentals and/or capital
appreciation as investment properties are recognised and
classified as investment properties upon the
commencement of land leveling process after the intended
purpose of the land development can be determined and
transferred from project under development. Construction
costs incurred for development are capitalised as part of
the carrying amount of the land under development. Land
under development is measured at fair value at the end of
the reporting period. Any difference between the fair value
of the land under development and its carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Project under development

Project under development are carried in the consolidated
financial statements at cost less any identified impairment
loss. Cost of project under development includes, where
appropriate, relevant development costs and borrowing
cost capitalised. No depreciation is provided for project
under development.

Project under development are transferred at the carrying
value to stock of properties under development for sale or
property, plant and equipment or investment properties,
as appropriate, when the intended purpose of the land
development can be determined upon commencement of
land leveling process.

Stock of properties

Stock of completed properties is stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and stock of properties under
development for sale is stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value less applicable selling expenses and the
anticipated costs to complete. Cost of stock of properties
is calculated using the weighted average cost method.
Net realisable value is determined by reference to sale
proceeds received after the end of the reporting period,
or, if not yet sold after the end of the reporting period, by
management estimates based on prevailing market
condition. The relevant costs include acquisition costs,
development expenditure, borrowing costs capitalised
and other direct costs attributable to such properties.

Stock of properties is transferred at fair value to
investment properties upon the commencement of a lease
as evidence for a change in use.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

FESHBEE @

REFIEH

R IA B EAAR D B E IR R AR
EUBHRRINK - BRTBERBZKNARR
(ER)HEERRARBEAEEAZEE
AR - AL R IRB AT RITE ©

Miiﬁ?ﬂ?&lﬁﬁZT“E%LTEAif@?”
RFRAGREREE BRTEBREEES
%éiﬁ’%%ﬁi*qﬂ%iﬁ ERYE R 17
RBIEWE(WER) -

WEFE

EXxIMEFERRARAER FERE
ZREEIER MEERBETPTNEFER
P 7 2 R 825 35 )5 R I A 88 B B ST RUE B
ELZERARAZBEEINR - MEFE
BTy E R INAEF AR AL E - 2R
FENDSRBEHCTERNEZHENF
KRB AWRBEEBRIDAEL  ERXH
TSR 2 B IR b 5 B E - R
ABBERBRA BERXH BRELRE
BERAREMZEMEREEEKA -

MEFERRG - AHEFERNEREZ
FRREZATEEEREREME -

RBEZNAREELTEZRE

RERBRNAKRBEAREAFEIZE
B-BAFENE2ENRETWHREZE
BRRZES M IFZFHE ZIE I
ok 3 R 4% 4 -

eELXE-BARTH  HRHEAXK
REHEZTOT BB RRZH 2 EE
FERBREN KFRZEHREREZREEH
%’ﬂﬁ“ﬁ%lﬁ?ﬁtﬁﬁ LA M KFE
HIEEEEAREBERK H¥*ﬁ? il 4
ZEFEL—HRABZAERFE -



MC’ ﬁﬁ;%ﬁ?};z%& 1 17

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a
joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate
or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint
venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate
or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate or
a joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwiill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets” as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate
or a joint venture, or when the investment (or a portion
thereof) is classified as held for sale. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture at the date the equity method was discontinued,
and the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the associate
or joint venture is included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would
be required if that associate or joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement
to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to
use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or
loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income relating
to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of
assets), profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are
not related to the Group.

Acquisition of additional interests in associates

On acquisition of additional interest in an existing associate
whereby the Group continues to have significant influence
but not gaining control, the cost of acquiring the additional
interest is added to the carrying value of the associate.
Goodwill or gain arising on the purchase of the additional
interest is calculated as the difference between the cost of
the additional interest acquired and the share of the net
fair value of all identifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate attributable to the additional interest acquired.

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Alternatively, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRERMEE
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Other intangible assets (Continued)
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effective of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at cost less any subsequently accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the period
when the asset is derecognised.

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the end of the reporting period measured based
on the contract revenue for work performed to date
relative to the total estimated contract revenue. Variations
in contract work and claims are included to the extent that
the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is
considered probable.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses
in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Construction contracts (Continued)

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as
an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is shown as amounts due from customers for
contract works. For contracts where progress billings
exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as
amounts due to customers for contract works. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are included
in the consolidated statement of financial position, as a
liability, as advance receipt from customers. Amounts
billed for work performed but not yet paid by the customer
are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position under trade and other debtors, deposits and
prepayments.

Inventories

Inventories, including liquefied petroleum gas (‘LPG”) and
compressed natural gas (“CNG”) for sales, are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of
inventories are determined using the weighted average
cost method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. Al
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets at FVTPL comprise financial assets held
for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

o on initial recognitions, it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, loans receivable, trade and other
debtors and deposits and amount(s) due from a non-
controlling interest/associates/joint ventures) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or are not classified as financial
assets at FVTPL or loans and receivables.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale investments and are traded in an active
market are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount of
available-for-sale investments relating to dividends on
available-for-sale equity investments are recognised in
profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of
available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of investment revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss (see accounting policy on impairment of financial
assets below).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below
its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
debtors, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade debtors, loans receivable and amount(s)
due from associates/joint ventures/a non-controlling
interest, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When a receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to
be impaired, cumulative losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss in the period in which the impairment takes place.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
carried at fair value will not be reversed through profit or
loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
instruments in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other creditors,
amount(s) due to associates/a joint venture/non-controlling
interests, other payables and bank and other borrowings)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In the event
that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the fair
value model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference
to the value of work certified during the year.

Revenue from distribution of LPG and CNG is recognised
when the goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Development management, project management and
facilities and asset management services income are
recognised when services are provided.

Revenue from sale of completed properties is recognised
upon the execution of binding sales agreements and
delivery of the properties. Deposits and instalments
received from purchasers prior to this stage are included
in the current liabilities.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group’s right to receive payment has been established.

Income from port, port logistics and supporting services is
recognised when the respective services are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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REMBRERMEE
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes including Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
and state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense or capitalised in contracts in
progress, where appropriate, when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated income statement because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
interests in associates and joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect
is included in the accounting for the business combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal
of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to
non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of associates or joint arrangements that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 April 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation and retranslated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in equity
under the heading of translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period/recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share-based payment reserve. When the share options
are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share-
based payment reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services
are measured at the fair values of the goods or services
received, unless that fair value cannot be reliably
measured, in which case the goods or services received
are measured by reference to the fair value of the share
options granted. The fair values of the goods or services
received are recognised as expenses, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment
reserve), when the Group obtains the goods or when the
counterparties render services, unless the goods or
services qualify for recognition as assets.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgment, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(@) Deferred tax liability recognised in respect of
fair value adjustments on investment
properties

As described in note 3, for the purpose of measuring
deferred tax for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted.

Based on the above basis, the directors have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios
and concluded that the deferred tax consequences
in respect of investment properties are assessed
based on the best estimate of the tax consequence
upon sale of the properties directly or sale through
entities holding these properties or consume
substantially over time.

For the leasehold land and buildings which were
classified as investment properties, these properties
are held under a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring the
Group’s deferred taxation on the leasehold land and
buildings, the directors have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of the
leasehold land and buildings measured using the fair
value model are recovered entirely through sale is
rebutted.

Deferred tax consequences in respect of the
developed land and land under development are
assessed based on the best estimate of the tax
consequence upon sale of the properties directly or
sale through entities holding these properties. For
those properties which would be subject to PRC
Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) upon disposal,
deferred tax on the temporary difference between
the tax base and their carrying amounts would
include PRC LAT in addition to enterprise income
tax.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY 4.
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(@) Deferred tax liability recognised in respect of
fair value adjustments on investment
properties (Continued)

The relevant amount of potential PRC LAT had been
recognised as a deferred tax liability based on the
above judgment. The amount of PRC LAT of
developed land and land under development as at
31 March 2014 is approximately HK$143,569,000
(2013: HK$208,184,000).

(b) Project under development

Development costs of project under development
include, where appropriate, relevant development
costs and borrowing cost capitalised. Upon
commencement of land leveling process, the
intended purpose of the land development can be
determined and relevant project development costs
will be transferred at the carrying value to

(1) properties under development for sale if the
properties are for sales purpose during the ordinary
course of business ; (2) property, plant and
equipment if the properties are for own use; or

(8) investment properties if the properties are held for
rentals and/or capital appreciation.

() Judgments on the cost and completion date
of construction-in-progress

The construction of port facilities involves various
points in time and different parts of the construction
projects to complete and reach to its intended use.
The Group transfers the construction-in-progress to
relevant categories of property, plant and equipment
upon the completion of respective parts of the port
facilities and obtains approval from the authorities for
the rights to operate. Management considers the
approval by authorities for the rights to operate is an
activity necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for
its intended use.

RE M BEmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE201463A31HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(d) Interests in associates

As at 31 March 2013, for the recognition of 30.34%
interest in Paul Y. Engineering as detailed in note 43
and of the acquisition of additional interest of
17.18% in Paul Y. Engineering as detailed in note
22, the fair value of Paul Y. Engineering was
determined based on the income approach valuation
method on the most recent financial budget
approved by its management. The fair value
determination involves significant assumptions about
the estimated amount of future cash flows to be
derived by Paul Y. Engineering. The actual amount
of future actual income stream to be realised may be
different as projected if the conditions change.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following is the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

(@) PRC LAT

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC which has
been included in income tax expense of the Group.
However, the Group has not finalised its LAT returns
with the tax authorities for certain of its property
development projects. Accordingly, significant
judgment is required in determining the amount of
land appreciation and its related taxes. The ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises these
liabilities based on the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover the
carrying amount of its assets.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY 4.

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(@ PRC LAT (Continued)

Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax expense and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made. As at 31

March 2014, the carrying amount of LAT provision
(included in deferred tax liabilities) was approximately
HK$423,062,000 (2013: HK$344,252,000).

(b) Deferred tax asset

At 31 March 2014, no deferred tax asset in relation
to unused tax losses of HK$745 million (2013:
HK$677 million) has been recognised in the Group'’s
consolidated statement of financial position due to
unpredictability of future profit streams of those
subsidiaries. In cases where the actual future profits
generated by those subsidiaries are more than
expected, a material deferred tax credit would be
recognised in the consolidated income statement in
the period in which the tax losses are utilised.

(c) Construction contracts

The Group recognises contract revenue and profit of
a construction contract according to the
management’s estimation of the total outcome of
the project as well as the percentage of completion
of construction works. Notwithstanding that the
management reviews and revises the estimates of
both contract revenue and costs for the construction
contract as the contract progresses, the actual
outcome of the contract in terms of its total revenue
and costs may be higher or lower than the estimates
and this will affect the revenue and profit recognised.

RE M BEmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE
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5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 38, net of
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and their associated risks thereto. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.

EAXARAKBER

FEFBERHEER  UBRHATFEKLS
X% REEaBBLEBEARATE B
S 98 FNEE KN -5 )
EFHER e

AEBE2EARBEEHNKRRERASSE
BERBRZFER(BEMESWE ZF
FORARAREAANELER(BED BT
AR Z )

ARREFEHMRITERNRE - FRME
=By EFEBEARALABER
ERZRAR AEESRBKNRE - #
THEORBETHERXBERRAER  F
MHBEBEARRE -

6. TURNOVER &R
Turnover is analysed as follows: EEBE2OWNET :
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FiET
Sale of properties HEME 513,546 99,612
Sale of LPG and CNG products HERIABR KB
RAREm 264,192 240,205
Income from port related services 7 O AR RS A 195,467 181,307
Property rental and related income Y e RAERKRA 10,722 19,775
Interest income from loans receivable FEWRE R 2T B A 12,581 4,825
Dividend income from investments held BIEEERE ZRERA
for trading 2,144 1,264
Revenue from development management, #EE®E -BEHEBRUANEE
project management and facilities and MBEEEREWA
asset management services - 5,428
Revenue from construction contracts BEAHKA - 5,945,174

998,652

6,497,590
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The operating segments of the Group is determined
based on information reported to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker (the Managing Director of the
Company) for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

The information focuses more specifically on the strategic
operation and development of each business unit and its
performance is evaluated through organising similar
business units into an operating segment. The Group’s
operating and reportable segments are as follows:

Paul Y. Engineering — Building construction, civil
Group engineering, development
management, project
management, facilities
and asset management
services and investment in
properties

Ports development — Development of ports
facilities and ports related

properties

Ports and logistics

Operation of ports, LPG and
CNG products and
logistics businesses

Property — Development, sale and
leasing of real estate
properties and Formed
Land (as defined in note
18)

Treasury — Provision of credit services
and securities trading

The Managing Director of the Company assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on a
measure of earnings before interest expense and tax (“EBIT”)
and earnings before interest expense, tax, depreciation
and amortisation (“EBITDA”).

Inter-segment revenue, if any, is charged at market price
or, where no market price is available, at terms determined
and agreed by both parties.

FEMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

EZE2014F3H31HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. FTEER @
Segment revenues and results DEB Y R EAE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and INTARRLESE RAEBINZ RES
results by operating segment: Y
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ2014F3A3MBLEFEE
Paul Y.
Engineering Ports Ports and
Group development logistics Property Treasury Segment total Eliminations Consolidated
REEEEE BORR  BORMR nE E# 2@ He &E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TR TER TR
TURNOVER gL
External revenue HHE - - 459,659 524,268 14,725 998,652 - 998,652
Inter-segment revenue 2 BERE - - - - - - - -
Total ok - - 459,659 524,268 14,725 998,652 - 998,652
EBITDA EBITDA 38,221 - 95,868 375,857 56,152 566,098 - 566,098
Depreciation and amortisation* REREH - - (81,036) (7,052) ) (88,091) - (88,001)
Segment result — EBIT DEHEE-EBT 38,221 - 14,832 368,805 56,149 478,007 - 478,007
Corporate and other expenses™ rEREMES (106,927)
Finance costs BEKAK (52,781)
Profit before taxation TR A& A 318,299
Taxation HE (182,360)
Profit for the year EEEA 135,939



. 2014 £ 3§

145

REZEERAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M BEmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. TEER @
Segment revenues and results (Continued) T ES W 2 R FEAE (8)
For the year ended 31 March 2013 BZ2013FE3A31HILEEE
Paul'Y.
Engineering Ports Ports and
Group  development logistics Property Treasury ~ Segment total Eliminations  Consolidated
RERXEHE BORR  AORWR n% E#% A& HiH Fa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL Tix TET TR TAL TR FAL FEL
TURNOVER EEE
External revenue B PV e 5,950,602 - 421,512 119,387 6,089 6,497,590 - 6,497,590
Inter-segment revenue P EENE - - - 74 - 74 (74 -
Total ekl 5,950,602 - 421,512 119,461 6,089 6,497,664 (74) 6,497,590
EBITDA EBITDA 295,067 - 51,621 229,768 70,995 647,451 (3,652 643,799
Depreciation and amortisation* FERBHE (24,470) - (39,748) (4,312) &) (68,533) - (68,533)
Segment result — EBIT™ DHEE-EBT 270,597 - 11,873 225,456 70,992 578918 (3,652 575,266
Corporate and other expenses™ rEREMBT (86,144)
Finance costs RERK (70,366)
Profit before taxation B AER 418,756
Taxation WA (114,230)
Profit for the year FEHF 304,526
* Including depreciation of property, plant and equipment and : BEVE BERRRETERAMGETE
amortisation of other intangible assets. EEHH -
- Including acquisition-related costs for potential projects of ** BREAKEEEHEBEMABZRAL

approximately HK$34,660,000 (2013: HK$19,470,000).

i During the year ended 31 March 2013, results of the Paul Y.
Engineering Group segment and the property segment included
gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries before taxation of
approximately HK$164,121,000 and HK$5,900,000 (note 43),

respectively.

34,660,000/ 7T (2013 : 19,470,000/ 7T) °

o RAEE2013FIAIALFE  REEE
EESBRMESIBRLERIELENE
AR Z BB AU E D B 4)164,121,0007%8
7T }% 5,900,000 7T (Hff 55 43) ©
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by operating segment:

At 31 March 2014

R2014%3H31H

Paul Y. Segment
Engineering Ports Ports and total and
Group development logistics Property Treasury consolidated
REZX BOR 7 BT
&= BOBR L3 LE 3 BE#% kRiz&
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER FERT FERT FERT FET
ASSETS EE
Segment assets D EpE E 685,731 401,378 3,770,582 3,238,614 990,051 9,086,356
Unallocated assets KOBEE 10,826
Consolidated total assets #r & 42& & 9,097,182
LIABILITIES =R
Segment liabilities nEaE - - 1,576,060 1,175,155 817,364 3,568,579
Unallocated liabilities KB A & 21,993
Consolidated total SEBEAaE
liabilities

3,590,572
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

At 31 March 2013 (Restated)

Paul Y.
Engineering

Ports

Group  development

mEMBHRKRNE
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE

7 EBE R (&)
TEEERBE (#)
M2013FE3H31 8 (KEF)

Segment
Ports and total and
logistics Property Treasury consolidated

RERZE BO & o ER4aE
58 BOEE R LS JE5 7 RiFa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FHET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEHEE 608,108 401,378 3,754,389 3,176,370 1,580,685 9,520,930
Assets classified as held A A EL &
for sale (note 25) ZAE(Kit25) 88,383
Unallocated assets APEEE 16,015
Consolidated total assets 454 48 & &= 9,625,328
LIABILITIES =N
Segment liabilities nEEE - — 1,741,329 1,351,353 1,107,726 4,200,408
Liabilities associated with £2 73 ¥8 A& 35 1F 1 &
assets classified as held 7 & &E #HRI 2
for sale (note 25) A& ME2s) 25,331
Unallocated liabilities Ko aE 27,240
Consolidated total mERAaE
liabilities 4,252,979

Segment assets and liabilities comprise assets and
liabilities of the operating subsidiaries that are engaged in
different businesses. Accordingly, segment assets exclude
corporate assets which are mainly bank balances and
cash and other receivables, and segment liabilities exclude
corporate liabilities which are mainly other payables.

IHMEERABERRUEETAEXEH 2K
MWEARZEERAGE - At 7HEE
TERIBARTHEFERE NEMER
ERCEREE - MOBRENTEEE
EREMENERZERAE -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. FTEER @
Other information HEHL
The following is an analysis of the Group’s other TRAERSLHSMIRAEREMER 2
information by operating segment: DA
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ2014F3A3MBLEFEE
Paul Y.
Engineering Ports  Ports and
Group development logistics Property  Treasury Eliminations Consolidated
RERE
58 BORE BORMR mE E# He ®E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
Amounts included in the measure of ~ H AN B P&
segment results or segment assets: RAWEEZLHE:
Additions to non-current assets other than EEIERHEE - - 145,573 239,590 - - 385,163
financial instruments and interests (CRIARHE
in associates/joint ventures DA/ BBLE
ko)
Release of prepaid lease payments ARBRAESE - - 3,359 - - - 3,359
Impairment loss recovered on receivables FE Y R IB W R E
58 - - (910) - (15,300) - (16,210)
Loss on disposal of a joint venture HE-HAgtEr
(3 - - - 8,014 - - 8,014
Loss on disposal of property, HEDE  BH R
plant and equipment REZER - - 1,222 160 - - 1,382
Interest income A2 WA - - 3,149 1,202 15,946 - 20,297
Unallocated interest income KABHEKA 15
20,312
Interests in associates BE AR ER 385,332 - 1,303,543 - - - 1,688,875
Interests in joint ventures AEPERER - - - 87,730 - - 87,730
Share of results of associates BN NREE 38,221 - 83,943 - - - 122,164
Share of results of joint ventures BLEEECEER - - - 744 - - 744
Gain on fair value changes of investments BIEEEREZ
held for trading ATEEED Wi - - - - 11,320 - 11,320
Amounts regularly provided to the chief EHHEELE RE
operating decision maker but not EREBRITA
included in the measure of segment FELREE
results: M
Finance costs BMERA - - 31,261 7,861 13,659 - 52,781
Taxation (credit) charge HMEEE) L H - - (15,002) 197,645 (283) - 182,360
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Other information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2013

mEMBHRKRNE
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE

7 EBE R (&)

HM & (#)
BZ2013F63A31BLEE

Paul'Y.
Engineering Ports Ports and
Group  development logistics Property Treasury  Eliminations  Consolidated
£E BORR BORDR bIES BT i SE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET FTAEL FET FTAET FTET FET
Amounts included in the measure of it AT B HES
segment results or segment assets: RAWEEZLE:
Additions to non-current assets other than EEERHEE
financial instruments and interests (6RIARKE
in associates/joint ventures REl/BELE
= 58,334 - 227,379 243,943 - - 529,656
Release of prepaid lease payments AEEMRETE 480 - 3,580 - - - 4,060
Impairment loss recovered on receivables JE YR IR W AL (E
B - - (881) - - - (881)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEERE
investments pdl & 2,596 - - - - - 2,596
(Loss) gain on disposal of property, HEME Rk RE
plant and equipment 2 (E1R) s @) - 1,315 5 — — 1,316
Interest income FEHA 1,085 - 5,214 2,045 42,853 - 51,177
Unallocated interest income AABFEBA 9
51,186
Interests in associates HE AR ER 342,738 - 1,206,918 - - - 1,549,656
Interests in joint ventures AR EER - - - 91,696 - - 91,696
Share of results of associates BIEBENRES 61,007 - 23,907 - - - 84,914
Share of results of joint ventures BhAehEES 10,410 - - 165 - - 10,675
Gain on fair value changes of investments BIEBEREY
held for trading AEEEEDH W - - - - 3,713 - 3,713
Amounts regularly provided to the chief EHi[H EEEE
operating decision maker but not REERBERTA
included in the measure of segment TEDDEE
results: ZHAE:
Finance costs RERA 10,958 - 34,864 7,186 20,936 (3,578) 70,366
Taxation HIE 4,590 - 705 105,978 2,957 - 114,230
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong
and the PRC other than Hong Kong and Macau (2013:
Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC other than Hong Kong
and Macau).

The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover by
geographical market based on location of customers,
irrespective of the origin of the goods/services:

7 EBE R (&)

1th BB & #Y

AEBZEBIZMNRBELTE(TE
EEARRF) - (2013 HF - BFI R H
B (T eEEERBM)) -

TER/AAEEEXBERRRBETISE D
(REBEEFHMENE - TwE MR/ RS K
IRH) 2 AT

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FET

Hong Kong BB 9,588 3,353,577
The PRC other than Hong Kong and Macau [l - 4% % % K )2 P9 984,231 905,694
Macau R - 2,236,253
Others Hith 4,833 2,066
998,652 6,497,590

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
non-current assets excluding financial instruments,
analysed by the geographical location of assets:

M RIERDEERMEREEZ AL
EED(TEEEMITR) 20 :

Non-current assets
excluding financial

instruments
FREEE
(TEFE4mIA)

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Hong Kong EB 389,771 347,589
The PRC other than Hong Kong and Macau [ - % &8 K 8 Y 4,580,105 4,850,255

4,969,876 5,197,844
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 March 2014, there is one customer
from the property segment who individually contributed
more than 10% of total turnover of the Group, having
revenue of approximately HK$480 million (2013: Nil).

For the year ended 31 March 2013, there were three
customers from the Paul Y. Engineering Group segment
who individually contributed more than 10% of total
turnover of the Group, having turnover of approximately
HK$1,254 million, HK$1,165 million and HK$758 million,

respectively.

mEMBHRKRNE
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE

7 EBE R (&)

FEEFZEN
REE2014F3A83MBIEFE MEDH
F—RAEFEMAEE s REXTHEBER

10% 45 z #) 73480,000,0007& 7T (2013
&)

NEBE2013FE3A3NB ILFE - REZE
SESBEZRREFPENEAEE RS
XEHBI0O% FEZEBERMCEXERED
Al #) A1,254,000,0005% JT * 1,165,000,000
7 7T & 758,000,000 78 JT °

OTHER INCOME Hfth g A
Other income includes: HAa A B
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
Other interest income H A F B IA 20,312 23,311
Interest income from deferred FEWCEERAE 2 FIEHBA
consideration receivable - 27,875
Write-back of overprovision of deferred [0 fE IR R (B
consideration payable - 9,683
Rental income from short term leasing HHEEMEFTECHS KA
of stock of properties 1,291 1,252
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE201463A31HIEFE

9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HiWumREE
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FAET
Gain on changes in fair value of investments #{EEZ=RE 2 A FBEE
held for trading Il g 11,320 3,713
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAJHBERE 2 e
investments - 2,596
Impairment loss recovered on receivables FE U I U8 8] 7 1A RS 1R 16,210 881
Net exchange gain E 5 F R 5,609 18,711
Loss on disposal of a joint venture (note) HE—HEeEELEZER
(K7 z%) (8,014) -
(Loss) gain on disposal of property, HEWME WHEREZ
plant and equipment (E518) U2 (1,382) 1,316
23,743 27,217
Note: On 15 June 2013, Yichang Port Group Limited (the “Yichang Port Ktat - 201346158 N RAREBS1%ER
Group”), a 51% owned subsidiary of the Company which is REBOLEZHBRAREERKSE
engaged in port operation, entered into a sale and purchase EREFAB(EEEHERD I —
agreement to dispose of its entire interest in a 45% owned joint MEEWZ  UKELH ARIEK9029,000
venture, J$1b 78 B E 1 E R ZE B R A 7, to the joint venture partner TT(HEER#411,4440008 T) L EEER
at a consideration of approximately RMB9,029,000 (equivalent to 5% w2 & & B ERIL B EE M E R
approximately HK$11,444,000). This transaction has resulted in HERARZEHBEETHAZLER
the Group recognising a loss of approximately HK$8,014,000 in o RRFIERAEBRERTRERY
profit or loss. 8,014,000/ T &518 °
10. OTHER EXPENSES 10. HWEHA
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Acquisition-related costs for VB TEIE B 2 YK BE AR A AR
potential projects 34,660 19,470
Net development expenses for FEEBNER ZER
resort project in the PRC X RS 26,854 -
61,514 19,470
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FEMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE

FINANCE COSTS 11. BERX
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FiET
Borrowing costs on: =N
Bank borrowings wholly repayable HRAFANEEEE 2IRTT
within five years &= 85,156 93,972
Bank borrowings not wholly repayable BERAEAZHERZ
within five years RITHE 4,645 26,224
Amounts due to non-controlling interests BEARAFAEZHEEZ
not wholly repayable within five years FE - JEHR B A 25 2 FRIE 171 178
Imputed interest expense on other payables H b fE R 2k 2 #E FI| B 1,860 2,064
Amounts due to associates wholly repayable ZER A E AN HEE 2
within five years JiE < B 4 X B 2 3RO0E 7,046 1,123
Other borrowings wholly repayable BRAFALHEEREZ
within five years H Al 3% 2,959 5,496
101,837 129,057
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BIEERIREAZHE
construction in progress (included in (BERWE - Bk
property, plant and equipment) HAE) (34,769) (85,189)
Amount capitalised in respect of project BiEBREPEBEEAZ
under development 2158 (4,601) (2,970)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIEBERMERE
properties under development for HFERERMEER
sale (included in stock of properties) s ¢ (9,686) (14,950)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIEERAANIREER
contracts in progress & - (5,582)
52,781 70,366
The capitalised borrowing costs represent the borrowing BRrBEAZEEXN A EEBRNEERBR G

costs incurred by the entities on borrowings whose funds
were specifically invested in the project and properties

during the year.

YES

ERA - MERNERBEERRE

ERERBER R
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12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(@) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
seven (2013: seven) directors are as follows:

12. E5 - BETBRAEBREENSE

@

EFERBBITERAEME

ENHENLER(2013: £R)ES
BEANZMEWT

FAREBETMNESHETAME

None of the directors has waived any emoluments (2013 : #&)
during the year (2013: Nil).
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other Discretionary scheme
Name of directors EEEB Fees benefits bonus contribution Total
£ DN EREF
we HEF BB AL Bk REEN &5t
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
AT FAT FAT FAT FAT
2014
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom*** = 396 4,632 3,070 463 8,561
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan s 506 1,200 100 15 1,821
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles Bk B9 54 176 - - - 176
Chan Shu Kin eR A B2 715 - - - 715
Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph ~ R & 4 572 - - - 572
Li Chang An TEL 429 - - - 429
Wong Lai Kin Elsa EER 486 - - - 486
3,280 5,832 3,170 478 12,760
2013
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom** Bl R 360 4,501 6,744 441 12,046
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan 50 12 ik 460 1,200 — 15 1,675
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles PR B 54 160 - - - 160
Chan Shu Kin** ek A B2+ 650 — — — 650
Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph** 228 &5+ 520 - - - 520
Li Chang An** =g 405 — — — 405
Wong Lai Kin Elsa*/** R 184 — - — 184
2,739 5,701 6,744 456 15,640
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

@

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, is also the Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company (which is
equivalent to chief executive) and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the Chairman and Managing Director.

*

ko

Remark:

Appointed during the year ended 31 March 2013.

With effect from 1 April 2012, there is a 30% increase in
each of the directors’ fee to independent non-executive
director (“INED”), the fee to INED who acts as chairman
of each and all of the Board committees and the fee to
INED who acts as member of each and all of the Board
committees.

A discretionary bonus as an incentive based on
performance for the year ended 31 March 2013
amounted to approximately HK$6,076,000 was
determined and paid during the year ended 31 March
2014. Accordingly, the amount of discretionary bonus
disclosed for the year ended 31 March 2013 was
restated to include the emolument.

A discretionary bonus amounted to HK$3,664,000 has
been determined and accrued (not yet paid) for the year
ended 31 March 2014. HK$2,684,000 will be payable in
cash, which is included in the amount of discretionary
bonus disclosed for the year ended 31 March 2014. The
remaining emolument of HK$980,000 will be rewarded
in form of share options to be granted subsequently,
which is accrued but not included in the disclosure.

With effect from 1 April 2013, there is a 10% increase in
the director’s fee for each director and the fee for being
a member or the chairman of any Board Committee.

mEMBHRKRNE
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE

12. EE BETBRAEBREENSE

(%)

@

EERRSTHASME (#)

FeRAEEMBARBDEIFERAR
(HERZSTHRAER) » EXFHE

5 2
AR 2 T

ek

TEREEE/TRRMAEIRE

REZE2013F3A3TALFEERME

2012F 4 A1 B8 FBLIEBTT
EE((BUENTES) EES
EERZECIR2BIUENTE
EURETSESEREZEEERE Y
BAUFNTEFT 20 E EFH30% -

BETHE2013F3A31HILFE
ZREBRBERIBERETELNA
6,076,000 7T + 3 7420144 3 A 31
AIEFE X Bt #8E20134F
SABIBLFECHBEZBMBILL
SHEEBYUREEHEMSE -

CETRBR(AAIMN &Z
2014F3ABT A IEFE 2 WIFIE4LL
3,664,000 JT ° 2,684,000 7T #5 LA
ReXH BEREREE201453
ABLFEERECBEELS
R o 2 T B £ 980,000 7T #5 LA B8 A%
BEAREERL  AHSECDE
RETRBERBEEA-

i H2013F4 1A BREESEZE

FRERHTESEREZEEXNE XK
TR 2B E E3E10% °
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12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 12. EE BEeTBRAEREEMS

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (#)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) EEME
The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the AEBRAFEANRSHFAESR
year included one director (2013: one director) of the HEARNG —ZEH0013: — £ 8
Company, details of whose emoluments are set out =) HMS B0 LM E12() A7
in note 12(a) above. & e
The aggregate emoluments of the remaining four (2013: HHpBASEEES Z2M4 (2013 1
four) highest paid individuals, who are employees of VRS HEAB AT :

the Group, are as follows:

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi#xT FiET
Salaries and other benefits He REMET 10,728 12,342
Discretionary bonus (note) BB T4 (M 3E) 6,134 10,139
Retirement benefit scheme contributions iR vk 7@ ) 5T 2 it 2% 244 228
17,106 22,709

Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEMSARNDT

Number of employees

EEAH
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7T — 2,000,000 7T 1 —
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7T - 2,500,000 7% 7T 1 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7 JT — 3,500,000 7T - 1
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 (note) 6,000,001 i 7T — 6,500,000 3% 7T
(Kf &) 2 —
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 (note) 7,500,001 3% 7T — 8,000,000 3% 7T
(B3 - 1"
HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000 (note) 9,500,001 % 7T — 10,000,000 % 7T
(B13) - 1"
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12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 12. EE BEeTBRAEBREEME
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (%)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (Continued)

(b) 1EEM=Z (#)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals and
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Note: The discretionary bonus is an incentive based on individual

performance. An aggregate sum of approximately
HK$8,300,000 accrued and payable (not yet paid) to

members of senior management as at 31 March 2013 was
determined and paid during the year ended 31 March 2014.
Accordingly, the amount of discretionary bonus disclosed

for the year ended 31 March 2013 and the band of
emoluments of members of senior management were
restated to include the emoluments.

An aggregate amount of discretionary bonus of

HK$5,421,000 has been determined and accrued (not yet
paid) to members of senior management for the year ended

31 March 2014. HK$3,821,000 will be payable in cash,
which is included in the amount of discretionary bonus

disclosed for the year ended 31 March 2014 and the band

of emoluments of members of senior management. The

remaining emolument of HK$1,600,000 will be rewarded in
form of share options to be granted subsequently, which is

accrued but not included in the disclosures.

payable to members of senior management (excluding
directors) classified by band of emoluments.

The above emoluments represent the remuneration paid/

FR-AEEVEMOIUSRSH AR
REEINHESUIEANMALAEE
N MMARE B 2 BE - HIEREE
BorhE -

Hiat BB RBEEARBELZ
$2E o M2013F3 A3 B 2 TEIE &
ERNANSREBEAE, — %
42 %88,300,000/ Jt 2 KRB B R &
E2014F3A31ALEEEERE
Fo ALt B &5 5t & =20134F3
ASIBLFERBEZRBILASE

BRERBABZHMEERILE
EZENE -

— S 48 %8 5,421,000 7T 2 BB TE 4L
EREE2014F3A31BILFEE
FXFUBER ERRIATFaR
EIEB A8 3,821,000/ T A
& E M ZEET AHE2014F3
ASIBLFEMBEBEZBBILLR
SREEBABZMESMAN - &
1,600,000 7T 2 Bl & #5570 E 1% LA
BEBREZAXAFLER  FIU
TBIREL KRB EREEER -

' Lt EeRZEMERANE D 2B
N/ BRI REBEAB(TRE
ER)ZHM -
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13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

13. BRBANER

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit before taxation has been arrived B A% A A 2 0Bk
at after charging:
Amortisation of other intangible assets H b & A
(included in distribution and selling expenses) (BERoENEEERN) 10,348 3,675
Auditor’s remuneration % R B & 4,071 7,899
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense BWRAEIHZFERAR 731,746 283,557
Cost of construction works recognised WRAZTHZEETERAR
as an expense - 5,767,991
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BB EREBEZITE
(note (a) below) (FZHt (@) 77,743 64,858
Operating lease rentals in respect of: MEMRHNHES
Land and premises TH REF 10,239 22,663
Plant and machinery e K2 3% 5,325 4,780
Release of prepaid lease payments FEENEHERIER 3,359 4,060
Staff costs (note (b) below) BIXH(TXH b)) 182,848 253,612
and after crediting: WEFA:
Dividend income from investments held for trading /£ 8 &% & 2 ik B WA 2,144 1,264
Rental income under operating leases in respect &&MA 7 HL WA -
of investment properties, net of outgoings wEWME - K
of HK$3,462,000 (2013: HK$5,237,000) ¥ $83,462,0007% T
(2013 : 5,237,000 7T.) 7,260 14,538
Total interest income (included in turnover BREWA(BEREERE
and other income) Ko H oAb U A A) 32,893 56,011
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HE2014F3A31HIEFE

13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 13. BRBLATEF ()
Notes: BiaE -
2014 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
(a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment: (@ M W REH2ITE :
Amount provided for the year FEREGRE 80,997 69,556
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of properties B BESEREPRYWEER
under development for sale (included in 2HBEGIAMERS)
stock of properties) (1,787) (2,271)
Amount capitalised in respect of project under BUEERPIBEENZEE
development (52) 7)
Amount capitalised in respect of construction BIERERWE - #W
in progress (included in property, plant and MEBRAZERIREAR
equipment) ZHE (1,415) (1,082)
Amount capitalised in respect of contracts in BIEERAHNIRER
progress ¢l - (1,338)
77,743 64,858
(b) Staff costs: (o) BT X H -
Directors’ emoluments (note 12(a)) EE/E (F i 12@) 12,760 15,640
Other staff costs: HEME T
Salaries and other benefits N & E AR 179,290 518,018
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, net of RRE TSI
forfeited contributions of HK$NIl RS W T AT
(2013: HK$167,000) (2013 : 167,000/ 7T) 4,180 18,071
196,230 551,729
Less:Amount capitalised in respect of construction W BIEBRSRWE B K
in progress (included in property, plant and BEANZERIRER
equipment) 28U (8,389) (6,016)
Amount capitalised in respect of project under BIEERPEEERZHE
development (4,083) (2,101)
Amount capitalised in respect of properties BEGEAETRMEER
under development for sale (included in Z2HBBGIAMEETS)
stock of properties) (910) (2,092)
Amount capitalised in respect of contracts in BEERANIEREENR
progress pd ¢} - (287,908)
182,848 253,612
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14. TAXATION 14, BB
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FiET
The charge (credit) comprises: RELEGER) B
Hong Kong Profits Tax: HEMEH
Overprovision in prior years BEFEREBRS (4,200) —
Taxation arising in jurisdictions outside BEANINTEEEEE
Hong Kong: Z WA
Current year KEE 45,588 27,836
Under(over)provision in prior years BEFERGBRL (BZ) 260 (1,181)
45,848 26,655
Deferred taxation (note 39) B R IE (B 2% 39)
LAT 4 Hb 3G E A 68,211 49,005
Others =) 72,501 38,570
140,712 87,575
Taxation attributable to the Company ARAFIREKEB AR
and its subsidiaries FEAE R 18 182,360 114,230

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate for the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC is 25%

from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

R R16.5% 5 E -

EEERERZ B RGE -

BRMNERIARE W EFE 2 (55 ERK

REPEECERSTE(TEEMSTORD
REXERMEBOEERAMA - B20085F1 A1
B AEBEBRPEZIMBARZRER
25% °

Hip B AR ELE 2 HIBETIRIE S B B 7
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14. TAXATION (Continued)

According to the requirements of the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on LAT (Fr 2 A R LRI + 1 iEE
TRET1T{50) effective from 1 January 1994, and the
Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on LAT (2 A R FNE 1 ig(E
FE 1T E e 41 A1) effective from 27 January 1995 as
well, all income from the sale or transfer of land use rights,
buildings and their attached facilities in the PRC is subject
to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% of
the appreciation value as calculated according to the
Provisional Regulations of the PRC on LAT and its Detailed
Implementation Rules.

The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the

e BEwRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE

14. Bi1E @)

BIEBR1994F1 A1H B A R 2R E A
REMBE L2 EREITHRD) - A RA
1005F 1 27 BB E R (P E AR ZLNE
T EHEITIEA B A MR T
FTEREHEENEERTRE I FERE 2
FRESLEZ KA AREER(REK
(REARAMBE - I8 EHR G766 &
HEBEFE)LA0%E0NTEZ R
HER RS T IBER -

RERFZRBAHBEEZEE
Al A 2 FERA0T

U 55 5% P 51 Bk A

profit before taxation per the consolidated income

statement as follows:

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Profit before taxation % i B 3E F 318,299 418,756
Tax calculated at domestic rates applicable z#& a5 # = @ B E A
in the respective jurisdictions BMEAE BB 79,786 80,428
Tax effect of share of results of HNBEZE N T//\ S
associates/joint ventures EEVREEE (27,478) (17,120)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ERFE 5 A ] 00 5 X
for tax purpose IR E 71,254 32,764
Tax effect of income not taxable for EREAE ﬁ EE SR PN
tax purpose 2 TS (5,870) (33,915)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIEWEZ %M& ER G E 11,220 20,776
Tax effect of other deductible temporary RIEMEREM A N T =58
difference not recognised 2B 24 29
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BRELIABRZMEER
previously not recognised IR (1) (6,261)
Tax effect of utilisation of other deductible FRERIARERZHE ﬁﬂ B
temporary difference previously LREBE BB E
not recognised (229) (191)
Effect of recognising LAT in respect of HREMERFBEZE
the fair value changes in investment WAL HIRER 2 F 2
properties 68,211 49,005
Effect of recognising LAT for stock of HELEDEFEER LI
properties sold BERZZE 8,581 2,863
Tax effect of LAT :ti@i-ﬁmsz%%% (19,198) (12,967)
Overprovision in prior years BEFEREBRE (8,940) (1,181)
Taxation charge for the year KNEEHREBERX 182,360 114,230
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HE201463A31HIEFE

15. DISTRIBUTION 15. 2K
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FiET
Dividends recognised as distribution during RAEEHERAEDIEZRE
the year:
Final dividend declared for the year ended  #,Z=201343A31AILEE >
31 March 2013 B EIRARHRKE
— HKO.5 cent (2013: HKO.5 cent for — & J0.58 1
the year ended 31 March 2012) per share (2013 : # Z£201243 A31H
IEFEAREROSEN) 22,887 22,792
Interim cash dividend declared for B E2014F3A3ALEFEZ
the year ended 31 March 2014 BEERFHESRKRE
— HKO.5 cent (2013: HK1 cent) — 505
per share (2013 : FR1BAL) 22,887 45,774
45,774 68,566
Dividends fi% 2
Cash RE 45,774 65,479
Scrip dividend LA RS AR B - 3,087
45,774 68,566
Dividends proposed in respect of AEFEEHERIRRKS
current year:
Final dividend proposed for the year ended & Z 201463 A31 R ILFEE >
31 March 2014 R R AR AR B
— HKO.5 cent (2013: HKO0.5 cent) — BR0.5%81L (2013 : iR
per share 0.5/ 1l) 22,887 22,887
The amount of the final cash dividend proposed for the BE2014F3A3NH IEFER IR REE IR
year ended 31 March 2014 has been calculated by BB 2ER AW E A #I4,577,360,572
reference to the 4,577,360,572 issued shares as at the fREEHITRDETE -

date of this report.
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16. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

mEMBHRKRNE
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE

16. BRAER

ARAHEAANEBESRERNBF TIRE A
TEURFE

2014 2013
HK$’000 HIK$'000
FE T FAET
Profit for the year attributable to owners of EHREXREF 7 KR T
the Company for the purpose of basic WA ANEEEE
earnings per share 85,586 262,343
2014 2013
Number of Number of
shares shares
ROEE avE g

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic earnings
per share

HEEREART
2 BRMETHE

4,577,360,572 4,565,885,302

The Company does not have any dilutive potential ordinary
shares outstanding during the year.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 March 2013 did not assume the exercise of the
Company’s share options because the exercise price of
those options was higher than the average market price of
the Company’s shares.

0 KR AL A BTSN 2 E
EEE -

FTEHZE2013F3A3MB L FE 2SR E
EAMNKB T EBRITERNRE 2 ERE
AAEZEERECTEESRART R,
ZEHHE-
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HZE2014463A31HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥ - W KR RE
Port  LPG and CNG Furniture,
infrastructure logistics and Motor ~ fixtures and
Plant and Port  and related distribution  vehicles and computer  Construction
Buildings machinery equipment facilities facilities vessels  equipment i progress Total
HLREERE

EOER  BRARMR KA #E
BF BHRRE BORE  REBRE  RAHRE EREM  REKRE  HBIR At
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Tén  TEn  TER TER T TER TERL T TER

00T Ak
At1 Aprl 2012 R2012F4A1R 108081 246456 46,301 60,600 532,862 153,440 93264 102743 1943837
Exchange realignment EXAE 1,232 13 620 776 6675 1,696 473 10,208 21,886
Additions TE 999 48443 687 - 2142 13.232 23497 142,480 231,480
Transfers #E 38 - 3247 6,366 - 293 7 (12590) -
Reclassified as held for sale ENARARELE (5,165) - - - - - - - (5,169)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries (note 43) B fEL EHBE AT

(Hit43) - (219799) - - - (31,749) (61,357) - (372,8%9)
Disposal uf 3 (3.051) (6,099) (311) (4,640) (109) (2760) (3.240) - (20210)
At31 March 2013 R013E3A31R 102,227 9114 50634 63,102 541570 136,797 52644 842841 1793920
Bxchange realignment EXAE 121 11 11 (19) 633 27) (84 (726) (23)
Additions E 4607 - 537 218 3309 5202 9905 131,964 165,742
Transfers gz 298 - 3769 1,864 - 13,671 1311 (20913) -
Disposal e (4,446) - [474) - (117) (5,108) (10,585 - 20,730)
At31 March 2014 R2014E3531A 102,807 9125 54477 64992 545,395 160,53 53191 953166 1933688
DEPRECIATION it
At1 April 2012 R012E4A18 21,899 84,503 7375 4316 140,491 52464 71614 - 382,662
Exchange realignment EffE 314 80 125 74 1,961 537 175 - 3,266
Provided for the year TEEHE 3722 21464 2986 1,747 18,528 13218 7891 - 69,556
Deemed disposal of subsidlaries (note 43) B fFHEMBA T

(Hit43) - (07,685 - - - (2252 [48449) - (168,656)
Elminated on disposal HERHH - (1,728) - - (96) 671 (3.128) - (5,623
At31 March 2013 R2013E3A31A 25,935 6,634 10486 6,137 160,884 4825 28104 - 281,005
Exchange realignment ERAE (63 @) (31) (17) (483 (65) (63 - (720)
Provided for the year TEEHE 6,261 1,254 3197 1,779 49927 11,330 7249 - 80997
Elminated on disposal HEEHH 24 - - (57) (3.115) (10,226) - (13422
At31 March 2014 R2014E3F31R 2,119 7880 13,652 7699 210271 50975 25,064 - 347,860
CARRYING VALUES REE
At31 March 2014 R2014E3A31A 70688 1,245 40825 57,003 335,124 99,560 28127 053166 1585828

At 31 March 2013 R201353A318 76,202 2,480 40,148 56,965 380,686 93,972 24540 842,841 1,017,924
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HE2014F3A31HIEFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 17. ¥ % - ## & 5% 4% (@)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other L B RBEEERIERINIE
than construction in progress, are depreciated on a BUESERE  FXMOT:
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:
5 EEAME S # s
Buildings Over the period of the A+FEUAREE
relevant leases or fifty BE)
years, whichever is shorter et N 22 10%
Plant and machinery 10% BORM 6%
Port equipment 6% BOEER 2% -20%
Port infrastructure and 2% —20% ARt
related facilities BALARR R EE 4% -10%
LPG and CNG logistics and 4% — 10% RAR MR
distribution facilities 7 R b
Motor vehicles and vessels  2.6% —20% RE N AA 2.6% -20%
Furniture and fixtures 8% — 20% RARKE 8% —20%
Computer equipment 20% — 33'/,% BB 20% —33":%
The carrying amounts of buildings are analysed as follows: EFEEmEIFTOT :
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Buildings erected on long-term FERBAHEE L AEETF
leasehold land in the PRC - 5,240
Buildings erected on medium-term FREFHEELAEETF
leasehold land in the PRC 70,688 71,052

70,688 76,292




2014 Annual Report

1 6 6 MC’ PYI Corporation Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRERMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE201463A31HIEFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

18. REYHE

Leasehold
properties Developed Land under
in the PRC land development Total
RPEZ
HEME [BYE i1 BB it &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FAT FAT FHT
(note a) (note b)
(KiFa) (Ki#b)
FAIR VALUE AFEE
At 1 April 2012 R2012F 4 A1H 280,497 485,968 88,779 855,244
Exchange realignment [E 5 A% 4,924 5,917 3,128 13,969
Transferred from project ERaYERPIER
under development (note b) (K1:Eb) — — 28,670 28,670
Transferred from completed EREERIFHELE
properties held for sale L3 74,259 - — 74,259
Reclassified as held for sale EFMDBEARIBIELE
(note 25) (Kt:t25) (26,216) - - (26,216)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries 18 {F H & M B 2 A
(note 43) (Bf3£43) (230,100) — — (230,100)
Additions NE 34,371 - 483 34,854
Increase in fair value recognised R 4R A Wik R NHER
in the consolidated NFEE RN
income statement 53,043 — 137,367 190,410
Increase in fair value on transfer of ## 2 5w TiF/EEE
completed properties held for MEZTREYE
sale to investment properties ZREEEEM 34,568 - - 34,568
At 31 March 2013 R2013F3 431 H 225,346 491,885 258,427 975,658
Exchange realignment i 5 (11) (2,359 (4,474) (6,844)
Transferred from project BRERRTIHEE
under development (note b) (Ki:Eb) - - 115,817 115,817
Transfer (note b) B (K ito) - 300,496 (300,496) —
Additions NE 16,094 66,077 — 82,171
Increase in fair value recognised R4 A W EH T NHER
in the consolidated ZAFEELM
income statement 8,226 131,651 250,351 390,228
Disposal HE (3,036) - - (3,036)
Transfer to stock of properties BRENERTE - (694,667) - (694,667)
At 31 March 2014 20143 A31H 246,619 293,083 319,625 859,327
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Notes:

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group completed the
reclamation of certain land area and obtained the certificate of
completion of land reclamation (the “Certificate”) issued by qualified
project engineering and construction manager in respect of certain
land area (the “Formed Land”) in Jiangsu Province, the PRC. Upon
obtaining the Certificate, such Formed Land held for capital
appreciation or undetermined future use had been recognised as
land held under operating lease and classified and accounted for
as investment properties. During the year ended 31 March 2014,
an aggregate sum of approximately HK$66,077,000 (2013: Nil)
was incurred for other development works (mainly representing the
fundamental greenery, landscaping and drainage works) to achieve
the highest and best use of the Formed Land for tourist and resort
use.

In connection with the reclamation of certain land area in Jiangsu
Province, the PRC, the Group commenced, but not yet completed,
the land leveling process (mainly representing the sand filling work to
achieve leveling of the area) (the “Land Being Formed”). Upon the
commencement of land leveling process, the Land Being Formed
that held for rentals and/or capital appreciation as investment
properties had been recognised as land under development and
classified and accounted for as investment properties. The relevant
costs, which include the development expenditure, borrowing costs
capitalised and other directly attributable expenses, amounting to
approximately HK$115,817,000 (2013: HK$28,670,000), have
been transferred from project under development to investment
properties during the year.

In addition, the land leveling process and other development
works of certain area of Land Being Formed of approximately
HK$300,496,000 (2013: Nil) were completed and transferred to
Formed Land during the year.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at the
date of transfer, 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 have

been

arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out as at

those dates by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the
Group.

FEMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE

18. REW X &)

CEE

NEE2014E3A3NBILEE  "EET
MARPREIHEE T @S CFHET
B-UWpET I HMHERESHAEKELR
TREMEELEHHERHAE L (E
FEAw) zrBFE(ZEE]D - RERBZ
HEE ZBEELREES K ETE
KEBZEPEL M EBRRAARELE
HMEHA2 I UYHERAR BEKE
Y NBE2014F3831HIEFE A
FEFRIMWEHNRELERARZ&
mhkEERE EMBEIR(EE2HE
Wit RBERKHNIR) CHASBER
66,077,0005% 7T (2013 : %) °

RRPBETIHER T LHERZHET
BmME AKECEMALHFEITRE(E
BRAADTAFEAERR ) ([FES
T ) BRARTER c RAA LI FET
BE - DRAREMESEEER XE
REEZFEPIHMERBERRERF
T YDBERARIBKENE - 2
RABEERH BAEREERRR
H b B R (5 B 32 8 49115,817,00078
7L (2013 : 28,670,000/ 7T ) * B 7 F A #E
ERTPBEBEBAREME -

A FRERRETERLE
300,496,000% 7T (2013 : #&) 2 F & & +
et FEIERAMBERETR  WE
ZEEFELH-

NEFENERER 20143 A31H %2013
FIABMBZREMEZATEBERIKE
HHEREETEBEZBISEREE
HEMPBEEETEBEBBERARET
ZIEEE -
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18. REWHE @)

In determining the fair value of Formed Land, the
comparison method is adopted under which comparison
based on information of recent transacted prices of
comparable properties is made. Comparable properties of
similar size, character and location are analysed in order
to arrive at a fair comparison of capital values. The fair
value measurement also takes into account the highest
and best use of the Formed Land for tourist and resort
use, which correlates to the zoning of the area for tourist
resort by the government. Certain costs, including
government levies and all necessary fees and expenses
associated with the change of the Formed Land for tourist
and resort use to be charged by the government, which
are the best estimate based on the latest information
available to the management of the Company, have been
considered in arriving the fair value of the Formed Land. In
determining the fair value of Land Being Formed, the same
comparison method is adopted and valuation has been
considered for further costs to be expended for the
development of the Land Being Formed into Formed
Land. Further costs for completing the land leveling
process and other development works as at 31 March
2014 are insignificant. One of the key unobservable inputs
used in valuing the Formed Land and Land Being Formed
is the 20% of saleable land discount applied by the valuer.
A slight change in the saleable land discount used would
result in a significant change in fair value measurement of
the investment properties.

In determining the fair value of leasehold land and
buildings, the comparison method is adopted under which
comparison based on information of recent transacted
prices of comparable properties is made. Comparable
properties of similar size, character and location are
analysed in order to arrive at a fair comparison of capital
values.

RETEFELH A FEER AN
AENBYEZROIRIERERBEE
ZHEE  HEE - ME R MAE 20
B BYWEETON URELAEEER
AELE - AEBEZAENREEICDF
BrwikELERAE AT ARER
B EEBIEHRTEZESIEREE
BEHEE BETRABRERFAHRE RHK
FUREI M E TR+ & F A RERER
AeelsmeEvEERRMAIT(RIER
R ARAREBEMNGNESELZ&E
HE)  HEEBUSHEFE LM ZAF
BE RETFERIH > AFEER
KEHERLESE RETHEERTE BT
Bt iR AD FELMATEE#E—
BRA - TR T FEIRREMBERET
BZHE—FKAR2014E3A3T AL IFE
RKeBFEELHEFERITHEERAZ
Hf - ZFEaE e ASE A G ERD
R 2Z20% A 56 T iraE - TS & T i
MEEMEY S ERRENEZRATE
B 2HREREH -

RETHELBREFZAFEER X
AR ELL B EZRORRXEBREN R
BEEZLEL HHE HERMHES
ZHBLBMEETON  UREAER
EHAFL® -
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

There has been no change from the valuation technique
used in the prior year. The fair value hierarchy as at 31
March 2014 is level 3. There were no transfers into or out
of level 3 during the year.

During the year, the gain on fair value changes of land
under development of approximately HK$250,351,000
(2013: HK$137,367,000) resulting from the transfer from
project under development to investment properties; the
gain on fair value changes of developed land of
approximately HK$131,651,000 (2013: Nil); and the gain
on fair value changes of leasehold land and buildings of
approximately HK$8,226,000 (2013: HK$53,043,000)
have been recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

For the Formed Land, the Group has to obtain certain
appropriate certificates for the disposal. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company consider that
there is no material impediment to obtain these certificates
for the Group.

PROJECT UNDER DEVELOPMENT

The balances as at 31 March 2014 and 2013 mainly relate
to a development project located in Jiangsu Province, the
PRC. The Group is undergoing the land reclamation and
the construction of public facilities. Upon commencement
of land leveling process, the intended purpose of the land
development can be determined and relevant project
development costs will be transferred at the carrying value
to properties under development for sale or property, plant
and equipment or investment properties, as appropriate.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, additional project
development costs of approximately HK$36,663,000 (2013:
HK$166,893,000) are incurred and project under
development with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$115,817,000 (2013: HK$28,670,000) and
HK$301,128,000 (2013: Nil) have been transferred to
investment properties and properties under development
for sale, respectively.

18.

19.

FEMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE

-/ EAC )

FIER2HERMEEFTEEH B
2014 F3AMHAFEBECERRERX
ZoFR RERA=ZTEEAREL -

RAFE  FRERGFEHBERZREY
¥ECHAEFLHAFEEZSH 2KRE R
#7250,351,00078 7T (2013 : 137,367,000 %
L) BHBLHAFEEEH 2 WEH
131,651,000/ 7T (2013 : %) : R E + it
REFRFEEE & 2 = #8,226,000%8
7T (2013 : 53,043,000/ 7T ) E A 47 & Y 25
KPR -

HEeFRELIHWME  AEEFTREET
BESAMELE - RBUELR A2
EERARAEEARDNSZERTERLE
RIEBE -

pu)

&
2
=S

HRPIEHE

R2014F M2013F3ASIA v s £ B 8
MNARFPEIHREAZERBEEH -~EHE
T T FBRERARRME - R
FETIREARK AIETIHWER2ER
A# - WKHEEIEE ZRAAREMERZ
BEGERBERYERDE B EERE
RILEWME(NER) °

RE E2014F3A318 It FE - #FLIAE
B % B Ak & 436,663,000 7T (2013 :
166,893,000 L) ERM KT E A - MEEEE
#9 7115,817,0007% 7T (2013 : 28,670,000/%8
JC) %301,128,000% 7T (2013 : &) 2 ¥ &
FIHEEESREREREMERSFERE
R
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20. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 20.

The Group’s prepaid lease payments represent land in the
PRC held under medium-term and long leases and are

BAAEERE

AEBEzANBEEFREMLR T BERES
HLEMEERFG 2L EOIERS

analysed for reporting purposes as follows: A®nT :
2014 20183
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE R FAT
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong BB R 2 HE i
Medium-term lease FRERE 336,499 351,677
Long lease REEE - 2,212
336,499 353,889
Analysed for reporting purposes as: KEOMIERSEB® :
Non-current assets EREBEE 333,446 350,582
Current assets TENAE 3,053 3,307
336,499 353,889
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OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. HthBEEE
Motor Club Premium
vehicles membership on
registration in Hong leasehold Rights of Customer Know- Rent-free
marks Kong land operation base how benefits Total
RE RER HELH
BRHRE 2298 2B ReEE FPE®R HMRAR SEMNR st
HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$O000 HK$S000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FHET FHET FiE T FHET FiE T FHET FiET FHET
(Note a) (Note a) (Note b) (Note c) (Note d) (Note e) (Note f)
(Ktita) (KtiFa) (KtiEb) (Mtate) (KtiEd) (Ktite) (Ftatr)
COST 5%
At 1 April 2012 H2012F4 811 1,393 7,062 109,790 44,959 2,543 2,632 20,445 188,824
Exchange realignment  [& % 5 & — — 1,093 562 32 32 25 1,744
Reclassified as EHOBEARIELE

held for sale (M7t 25)

(note 25) — — (50,643) — - — - (50,643)
Deemed disposal of BIELEKR B AR

subsidiaries (Kta£43)

(note 43) (570) (7,000) — — — — — (7,570)
Disposal/written off k= §7] — — (24,694) — — - (20,470)  (45,164)
At 31 March 2013 HR2013F3A31H 823 62 35,546 45,521 2,575 2,664 — 87,191
Exchange realignment & 5, 78 & — — 29 56 3 4 — 92
Additions NE — — 1,130 — — — — 1,130
At 31 March 2014 H2014F3A31H 823 62 36,705 45,577 2,578 2,668 — 88,413
AMORTISATION e
At 1 April 2012 H2012F4 818 — — 5,757 4,945 1,399 1,075 20,028 33,204
Exchange realignment  [& 5 78 & — — 77 72 20 16 25 210
Reclassified as EFOBEARIELE

held for sale (Bt 5t25)

(note 25) — — (2,728) — — — - (2,728)
Provided for the year 7~ 4F & 518 — — 1,839 901 255 263 417 3,675
Eliminated on S B Y 6B 8H

disposal/written off — — (1,380) — — — (20,470) (21,850)
At 31 March 2013 7201343 A31H — — 3,565 5,918 1,674 1,354 — 12,5611
Exchange realignment [ i, % — — (18) 5) 2 ) — 27)
Provided for the year 7R fF E 512 - - 8,892 924 261 271 — 10,348
At 31 March 2014 M2014F3 31 H — - 12,439 6,837 1,933 1,623 - 22,832
CARRYING VALUES BRE{E
At 31 March 2014 HR2014F3A31 8 823 62 24,266 38,740 645 1,045 - 65,581
At 31 March 2013 20133 A31H 823 62 31,981 39,603 901 1,310 — 74,680
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21.

22.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

21, HEREEE &)

Notes: B & -

(@  The assets have indefinite useful lives. The directors are of the @ HEEEREETRACHAFH -FERA
opinion that the club membership and motor vehicles registration EHMEENAEELHRBEEELHESE
marks are worth at least their carrying values. REREE-

(o)  The amount represents the premium on leasehold land in Wuhan (b) ZEeBERERAEBRERBEEBEK A
and Yichang, the PRC, upon acquisition by the Group through the BAURPERETREEMZAE L
acquisition of the relevant business and the amount is to be ZHEE HIREMERENEEREMHERZ
amortised on the same basis as the related prepaid lease HAENIZET70F N -
payments over 33 to 70 years.

© HERKKREPEINEDLS KL AH

(¢)  Rights of operation represent the fair value of rights to operate LPG REBZENZATFEBE LEEDUE
business in Wuhan, the PRC. The rights of operation are amortised BRI E T ] B HAS0F MY -
on a straight-line basis over the operation licence period of 50
years. d EPEMAKXREAWBEBMKERL

AHREBEFPBEZATEER HTUE

(d) Customer base represents the fair value of customers relationship EOEE10FE N HEY -
acquired for LPG business through acquisition of business. The
amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over 10 years. () RMHAERERABEABRB AR Z R

BRMRE 2 RTFEE  HABEZEE

(e) Know-how represents fair value of technology know-how for motor F Y o
vehicles to use LPG as fuel. The amortisation is provided on a
straight-line basis over 10 years. 3} SRR EREETEEAKEBEEH

Rzt RE B RREEBZH

() Rent-free benefits represented the fair value of the benefits in HZAFEBE DLEGEE=40TH
relation to certain land and property, plant and equipment used N - RTRHEREFRER -
rent-free by Yichang Port Group. The amortisation was provided
on a straight-line basis over the rent-free period of three years. The
rent-free period expired during last year.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22, BE QT ER

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FET

Cost of unlisted investments in associates, % &3k FmEt & AT 2 KA
less impairment Bk A 845,423 845,423

Share of post-acquisition profits and BnW BRGNS REE

reserves, net of dividends received BB WAL & 843,452 704,233
1,688,875 1,549,656
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

As at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013, the unlisted
investments include:

M

(i)

47.52% equity interest in Paul Y. Engineering, which
is engaged in building construction, civil engineering,
development management, project management,
facilities and asset management services and
investment in properties.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, following the
deemed disposal of Louis Xlll Holdings Limited (“Louis
X"y on 5 February 2013 (note 43), the Group
received 375,826,317 shares (representing
approximately 30.34% interest) in Paul Y.
Engineering from the distribution in specie declared
by Louis Xlll. The Group acquired a further 17.18%
interest in Paul Y. Engineering from other Louis XIlI
shareholders under the cash alternative offer to
distribution in specie declared by Louis Xlll at an
aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$63,838,000. A gain of approximately
HK$58,162,000 was resulted from the excess in
share of the net fair value of all identifiable assets
and liabilities attributable to the additional 17.18%
interest acquired over the cost of the additional
interest acquired, and had been recognised in the
consolidated income statement as share of results of
associates;

45% equity interest in Nantong Port Group Limited
(“Nantong Port Group”), which is a sino-foreign joint
venture enterprise registered in the PRC. Nantong
Port Group is principally engaged in providing cargo
loading and off loading, storage, shipping agent,
cargo agent, ship anchoring, ship repairing, port
machinery, shipping logistics and ship piloting
services in Nantong Port, Jiangsu Province, the
PRC; and

40% equity interest in Jiangyin Sunan International
Container Terminal Co., Ltd. (“Jiangyin Sunan”),
Jiangyin Sunan is a sino-foreign joint venture
enterprise registered in the PRC and operates the
container terminal in Jiangyin Port, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC.

FEMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE

22, BE QTR &)

MR2014F3A31H &2013F3A31H * 3
ETRERE:

U

(i)

(iii)

PIREFEEE ZA752% 04 - % 2 A
RERBFRE TAIR BREE
B HEEE RELEEEERDS
RYERE -

PR E Z2013F3A31H IEFE - R
2013F2ASHBRIEHER S T=5%
BEER2B(E®S+=1)%®(K=E
43) AEBREBEE S T =—SKEYD
7 Rk W B 375,826,317 A% 1R 5 7 % A%
1 (k48 % 28 #730.34%) » N 2 B 1R
BEST-FMEREWSRZES
EEZOMAETE S =R EE—
ST I8%REREER AR
& #) /63,838,0007% Jr - & (h FTi8 &
1718% R 2T BA THNEE R
BEZATFEBOGEZE S
Z KA E A #958,162,0007% JT WK
H BARRSCOREARERAER
BB R A N R RS

REBENEEBRAR(BEAES
HEE] 245%BR Az - mEED
EEA—FRRFPEFMz2FINEE
¥ -mEBEBOEEESNPETH
EEEE N EREEDES  HF -
BEERE EEER - SOommk
% MPMEMIE BB E - M
HERY SIMEER: &

RIEHEEREREBTBERARA
A(TREERE]) #A Z40%MK A #
s lEHBARPREEMKILZF
IEBELE EREIHATIREL

EERMIEE-
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22,

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The financial year end date of Nantong Port Group and
Jiangyin Sunan is 31 December and their latest financial
information that is available to the Group is in respect of
their financial year ended 31 December 2013. Accordingly,
the Group’s share of results and interests in these
principal associates at 31 March 2014 and 2013 are
determined based on the financial information of the
associates for the year ended and as at 31 December
2013 and 2012 respectively. No significant transaction or
event is noted between the year end dates of the
associates and of the Group.

Summarised financial information in respect of Nantong

22, BENTIRERE |

HBASOSERILHEECMBFEELEE
BA12AB B AEEAS2&HUBHE
B EREEHZE2013F12 31 8 1E 2B HF
EZER - At - N&EER20144F k2013
FOASIBBhZEFEHE R ZESE
R T) 9 Al R % B 2 R B 201345 &
2012F 12 AN REBEZZSAHIEFEZ
WMBEERTE CRFHERNRZFEH
EAEEZFEOPBATESBEANEKR
RHHEIR

FHEBEBEDEBRNE £2013F K2012
F12A31BAEFEZRBTBER(ER

Port Group based on financial information prepared by the EEERBASESHTRERE VB E
management in accordance with accounting policies of B E G T :
the Group for the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012 is set out below:
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
R2013F R20124F
12A31H 12H31H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Financial position: BRSO
Non-current assets ERBEE 3,264,613 3,315,322
Current assets TEAE 807,546 663,360
Current liabilities mBaE (869,130) (1,134,326)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (796,720) (636,318)
Non-controlling interests JEFE R R R (62,491) (56,978)
Net assets attributable to the owners of BENTHE AR
the associate BEFE 2,343,818 2,151,060
Reconciliation of its net assets to the carrying H & & % (& B B & A 7
amount of the interest in the associate: EREmE SR
Net assets attributable to the owners of BaE RN HEAEARBEEEFE
the associate 2,343,818 2,151,060
Proportion of the Group’s ownership RNEF(HEE AT
interest in the associate A2 5 45% 45%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in REBZHE N AR

the associate ZERHEE

1,054,718 967,976
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 22, BtE N B (@)

Year ended Year ended
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
HZE20135F HZE20124F

12A31H 12H31H
LFE EFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FET
Results of the associate: [ NEIES
Turnover L 1,083,158 1,015,622
Profit for the year FEm A 192,720 116,486
Other comprehensive income for the year FRAHME2EKE 39 26,629
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNEEWR LR 192,759 143,115
Dividends received from the associate FAEWEE R FIRE

during the year 14,108 12,568
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HE201463A31HIEFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 22. BE AT ER (@)
Summarised financial information in respect of Jiangyin BRI HBENEZE2013F K2012F12 A
Sunan based on financial information prepared by the JIALEFEZHAMBER(EREERE
management in accordance to accounting policies of the HRASEESHBRRER2TEER) H
Group for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 IR N

is set out below:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
A 201345 R20124F
12H31H 12H31H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Financial position: RS AROR
Non-current assets EREBEE 287,329 299,333
Current assets mENAE 383,609 371,467
Current liabilities nEBBEE (16,975) (41,313)
Non-current liabilities ERBBEE (22,975) (23,221)
Net assets attributable to the owners of Bt N R A NEE
the associate BEFE 630,988 606,266
Reconciliation of its net assets to the carrying £ & & % (& &8 2 A A
amount of the interest in the associate: HERIRMmE 2 SR
Net assets attributable to the owners of BENTEE NS
the associate BEFE 630,988 606,266
Less: Fair value adjustments upon acquisition & : AU ER 2 A FEEFAE (57,188) (57,116)
Adjusted net assets before fair value NP EEHBERZEHE
adjustments BEEFE 573,800 549,150
Carrying amount of the Group’s ownership AEBERBE NG BERE
interest in the associate: 2 BRHEE :
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBE(GHBENR AR
interest in the associate 2 40% 40%
Share of net assets before fair value N EEAER 2 #L
adjustments BEFE 229,520 219,660
Additional share of fair value adjustments NEEERAE ZBINEHE D 19,276 19,252
248,796 238,912
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HE2014F3A31HIEFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 22, Bt N B R (@)

Year ended Year ended
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
HZE20135F HZE20124F

12A31H 12H31H
LFE EFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Results of the associate: [ NEIES
Turnover L 101,044 94,240
Profit for the year FEm A 24,298 22,442
Other comprehensive income for the year FRAHME2EKE 424 7,466
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNEEWR LR 24,722 29,908
Dividends received from the associate FAEWEE R FIRE

during the year 4,994 5,555
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The financial information in respect of Paul Y. Engineering
based on the audited financial statements for the years

22, BENTIRERE |

B RERERENE 20145 X 201343 A
BMALFEZHMBEMNEREEXRHE

ended 31 March 2014 and 2013 is set out below: HR)EHYWOT -
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FER FAET
Financial position: BRI
Non-current assets FEREBEE 396,730 619,773
Current assets TRENAE 4,792,189 2,883,492
Current liabilities mBaE (4,375,768) (2,741,964)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (2,618) (38,041)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R 351 (2,010)
Net assets attributable to the owners of i W/NCIE PN T}
the associate BAEZFE 810,884 721,250
Reconciliation of its net assets to the carrying H & &= % (& B B & A 7
amount of the interest in the associate: ERREmEZHER:
Net assets attributable to the owners of /NI PN T}
the associate BEZFE 810,884 721,250
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBRBME AR BEAE
interest in the associate 2 47.52% 47.52%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in AEBZBMERNRERZ
the associate BREE 385,332 342,738
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 22. BMELNEER (8
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FHET
Post-acquisition results: W %4
Turnover R 9,243,908 868,902
Profit for the year FEEF 80,432 5,861
Other comprehensive income for the year FREM 2K 412 1,023
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAE2EMKZFERE 80,844 6,884
The financial position of the Group’s other associates are NEE 2 H B N E 2 B AR B B R
not individually and aggregately material. BEMELTEKX-
There are no significant restrictions on the ability of BeanrLBEeREARNBESCHBER
associates to transfer funds to the Group in the form of SENEERAEEEL 2 ERIB R EE
cash dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by D EZEERRA -
the Group.
AN ER B 4% AR (R — 1 (2013 - — ) B
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of ERAIZEBE - AEREFHIEBERTF
losses of one (2013: one) of the associates. The AAREEBLHEESB(ERALEZE
accumulated unrecognised share of losses and the EER)WT:

amount of losses for the year attributable to the Group
(based on unaudited management accounts) are as

follows:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET
Accumulated unrecognised share of losses of 7k 7 32 ## (5 Bt & A &)
the associates 2 RETEE (54,892) (54,892)
Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at 31 March AEBSEZH L R AIN20144F K20134F

2014 and 2013 are set out in note 53(c). SHABIH 2 1BH VI M FES3(C) ©



" 2014 Annual Report
1 8 0 mﬁ’ PYI Corporation Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BEWRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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2

23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23. RS
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures &R IE LT A LD ERK K 86,663 91,053
Share of post-acquisition profits and B AEWEE 2R &
other comprehensive income, net of HEft2mEaEs - Mk
dividends received 2B 1,067 643
87,730 91,696
The summarised financial information below represents T Bk ERE T M B X AR
the consolidated financial information of 4T XM & ¥4 AT BER ﬁ W A % W ;‘H 4 % R B B9 B
fR A7, and its wholly-owned subsidiary, 1)l 4% 47 BRAF(REIEWEE]) 2 RA MG R
2B R A7) (collectively the “Meilian Group”), which are B ER AR R A E e gﬁ
prepared in accordance with accounting policies of the 4 Y 77 B )
Group.
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FAT
Financial position: BRSO
Non-current assets FEREBEE 232,090 232,039
Current assets B EE 6,414 4,110
Current liabilities A E (9,896) (11,168)
Non-current liabilities EREBE (53,147) (79,922)
Net assets of the joint venture BEMEBEFE 175,461 145,059
The above amounts of assets and liabilites  Fit&ER A ELE
include the following: BRETIEE :
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBESLEEER 6,281 2,857
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade TEemEaBE(ITRIEES
and other payables and provisions) Ko L JE A BR BR R 4B 5,000 6,242
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding ErHeReETrEEES
trade and other payables and provisions) T2 EHoAth FE A BR 2k R B ) 28,750 55,556
Reconciliation of its net assets to the carrying HE&AEFEES LD E
amount of the interest in the joint venture: EwRREE YR :
Net assets of the joint venture BEMEBEFE 175,461 145,059
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBEAETEELRE
interest in the joint venture 7 H 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group’s rEBZzaEbERER
interest in the joint venture ZE®EE 87,730 72,530




'

rexmrRsa 101

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M BEmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 23. EELEER W@
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET
Results of the joint venture: AEDEEE
Turnover | 11,875 10,846
Profit for the year FEEHEF 1,488 16,388
Other comprehensive (expense) income for € A E M2 E (B 2) Uz
the year (169) 1,768
Total comprehensive income for the year FERNL2E W LR 1,319 18,156

Dividends received from the joint venture FREWEESDERS

during the year - -
There are no significant restrictions on the ability of joint AREPENREREARNBECERER
ventures to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash EENEEAEEEH 2 ERLB RN
dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by the 7 & 5 5 & KRR o

Group.

Particulars of the Group’s principal joint ventures at 31
March 2014 and 2013 are set out in note 53(d).

AREBTFTELE D EN2014F K201343
A31B 2 #1BH 5 MRKEES3() ©
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HE201463A31HIEFE

24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 24, AIHHERE

2014 2013
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHET FiET

Listed equity securities, at quoted bid price in  F R A E S - LB ARE
Hong Kong i 300,399 265,370
overseas SEIN - 82
Market value of listed equity securities EHRABLEME 300,399 265,452
PRC unlisted equity securities REIIE EMIRAE S 402,355 402,354
702,754 667,806

Represented by: (A

Non-current e B 702,754 667,724
Current Vi) - 82
702,754 667,806

As at 31 March 2014, the investment in Hong Kong listed
equity securities represents 7.87% (2013: 9.98%) equity
interest in Louis XIII.

As at 31 March 2014, the investments in unlisted equity
securities include 9.9% equity interest in Jiangsu YangKou
Port Development and Investment Co., Ltd. (“Yangkou
Port Co”), which is engaged in the business of
development of port and related infrastructures of
approximately HK$401,378,000 (2013: HK$401,378,000).

The investments in unlisted equity securities as at 31
March 2014 and 2013 were measured at cost, less
impairment if any, at the end of the reporting period
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

R2014F3A31H REB LR AFES
ZIREHET.87% (2013 : 9.98%) B 5+ =&
T o

R2014F3RA31H  RIELETRAEAZFSFE
BRBBFORIEBEERBER 2 LEHT
NBERERZEARAR(FEOBARD Z
9.9% % # - #7 /401,378,000 7T (2013 :
401,378,000/ 1) °

IF | A R 8B 5 72014 4F 2201343 A 31
BZHREURSHEER 2K ARRBE
(mE)stE DEARAFEEZAEMRT
BEHEAKX ARG EERAELAFEET

BERSEME -
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25. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS/ASSETS

CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 8 March 2013, Yichang Port Group entered into an
agreement with a local government office to transfer
certain properties (the “Resumption Properties”) to the
local government for the development of a composite
project (the “New Premises”), which Yichang Port Group
will receive compensation including the transfer of certain
construction floor areas of the New Premises within four
years from the date of surrender. The major classes of
assets and associated liabilities of the Resumption
Properties as at 31 March 2013 were as follows:

FEMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE

5. Atk RBEE D EAFHFD

EZEE

R2013F3A8H EEBHEE Mt 5 I
M AEERGRE  BUHEEEKEE S
MENBRRERE TWE(HEBIDE]D
NERZAEEB(HER]) MEEBH
SEEEIFEE BEABPRXZEBRASF
NEERMEM G TEEZEMEE -
B ER2013F3A3IB 2T EEESHE
ANABBIEENT ¢

HK$’000

TET

Property, plant and equipment DEE - B N R 5,165

Investment properties &Y 26,216

Prepaid lease payments ENHEEHRA 9,087

Other intangible assets Hiv & E 47,915

Assets classified as held for sale DEBBIEHREZEE 88,383

Deferred tax liabilities BT EE 25,331
Liabilities associated with assets classified HAoEARBELHEZEERBZERE

as held for sale 25,331

During the year, the Resumption Properties were
transferred to the local government and the fair value of
the New Premises, estimated as HK$93,025,000, was
recognised as deemed consideration and was
approximate to the carrying amount.

The fair value of the New Premises at the date of transfer,
has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out
as at that date by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the
Group, by adopting the comparison method under which
comparison based on information of recent transacted
prices of comparable properties is made. Comparable
properties of similar size, character and location are
analysed in order to arrive at fair comparison of capital
values.

FR BRRDECBRIEZEWRFT 5
B BT 2~ F B A (& & 593,025,000 7T )
BRAEBERBTHEMEMRS -

MEMNBRAZAFEEHRASEY
BHECBYUAERERMLEMDHESR
EFEBRRBRARNZBETZHER
B BRRAUTELEYEZRAMR
ERERNREEZLBOL HRE HE
REHBEZABELBMELTON N
HREREBEEEHRAFLE -
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26.

27.

STOCK OF PROPERTIES 26. IXxEE
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FER FHET
Properties under development for sale FERERYE 1,251,450 481,280
Completed properties held for sale ExIBELEYE 472,024 649,278
1,723,474 1,130,558
Land Being Formed which is developed for future sale is BRAEBKREEZ FTEP LM - R
recognised as properties under development for sale in THEIERESHERIEDEFER D
stock of properties upon the commencement of the land FERERWE - TR —REBBIERE
leveling process. Formed Land which is also developed EAEBREEZE FE L RFAKRE
for future sale in the ordinary course of business is ERHeW I BAMEGTEZFERESY
classified as properties under development for sales in o
stock of properties upon commencement of development.
MR2014F3A31B  MEFERELN
At 31 March 2014, stock of properties includes Formed 694,667,000% 7T (2013 : 409,509,000/ 7T )
Land of approximately HK$694,667,000 (2013: EFELH MAEETEREETEES
HK$409,509,000) for which the Group has to obtain ENHEZD FE L - BRIBEATLER
certain appropriate certificates for the disposal of the RAABEZRRAEBRNSZERER
Formed Land. Based on past experience, the directors of ik 3= N80
the Company consider that there is no material
impediment to obtain these certificates for the Group. M2014F3A31H MEF &R IE E H
BRAREHEERBARA T @A R
At 31 March 2014, stock of properties includes an amount # 3 2 & B #9965,438,000/8 (2013 :
of approximately HK$965,438,000 (2013: 224,916,000 JT.) °
HK$224,916,000) which is expected to be realised after
more than twelve months from the end of the reporting
period. 27. BmEFE

INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS

The inventories mainly represent LPG and CNG products.
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HE2014F3A31HIEFE

28. LOANS RECEIVABLE FE W & =X
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHExT FHET
The amounts, net of allowance, bear BRAFIE (HIBREE) BIZAT
interest at the following rates: MEFE -
5% over Hong Kong Best Lending Rate BIREFEEMNE(BT
(“HKBLR?”) (note a) =BREEMNE] NSE
(Ktzta) 38,000 44,000
6% over HKBLR (note b) BIREBEENEMGCE
(KtaEb) 38,000 44,000
Zero-coupon, convertible notes (note ¢) T8 ABRER (Mfitc) - 18,425
Total @t 76,000 106,425

Included in the carrying amount of loans receivable as at
31 March 2014 was accumulated impairment loss of
HK$19,813,000 (2013: HK$19,813,000) in respect of the
balance, which was past due at the end of the reporting
period and the relevant debtors were in financial
difficulties. Other than the above, no significant loans
receivable balance has been past due at the end of the
reporting period for which impairment loss has not been
recognised. No recognition of impairment loss for the

balance not yet past due at the end of the reporting period

was considered necessary, since there has been no past
default history in respect of those receivables.

Notes:

(@

The amount of unsecured loan receivable of HK$38,000,000 (2013:
HK$44,000,000) bears variable interest rate at 5% over HKBLR (i.e.
10%) per annum and is repayable within one year.

The amount of unsecured loan receivable of HK$38,000,000 (2013:
HK$44,000,000) bears variable interest rate at 6% over HKBLR (i.e.
11%) per annum and is repayable within one year. The repayment is
guaranteed by an independent third party.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group subscribed for
zero-coupon unsecured convertible notes with an aggregate face value
of HK$15,000,000 issued by EPI (Holdings) Limited, a listed company
in Hong Kong. The convertible notes were converted into 100,000,000
shares of EPI (Holdings) Limited during the year. As at 31 March 2013,
the amount included in loans receivable represented the debt element
of the convertible notes and was determined using an effective interest
rate of 15.03% per annum at initial recognition. The fair value of the
embedded conversion option of the convertible notes as at 31 March
2013 was insignificant.

MR2014F3AIBZEWEREAELD
AR RES AN BH &%
2 5 8 & &5 $819,813,0007% JT (2013 :
19,813,000/ 7T ) - ifi 48 78 (5 75 A [ & B I
NE - EXXATIiIN RRE AR
EORBMBVTERERBRESEBZENER
ER - -ARZERRFERTITETRL
B MEEFAREHSENRABB G
HIER R EEIE -

g

(@) % % %4 /338,000,000 7T (2013 : 44,000,000
BLOZEERFRRKRKERUNEIRERREE
MEsE(BIMOE) 2 FBFEMKRGFE - X
AR—FREE-

(b) #Z & %8 /438,000,000 7T (2013 : 44,000,000
BT ERRERERABLRESEREE
MEMSE(BMME) 2 FBHFMEFS A
HER—FANEERE BEXBE - RBBUE=FFE
fRo

(©) REBZE2012F3A3BLEE A5 ERE
A HESLTARRBEEERBERA
A ATE 17 - 48 BR A {E A 15,000,000 7T 2 T
BEEKFPIARZE - FR JRBREEE
H425100,000,000 B EBEB (ER) AR A
IR - H2013%3A31H - DH\FEW%“*”
CHBEsEATHRRERZEERS - N
W HER Hﬂ%ﬁmaoa%Zﬁxﬁziﬂfféio
AR R R 2 M AR AR #E R 201343 A31 H
ZAFEBEBTRE-
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HZE2014463A31HILFE

20.

30.

31.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable

on demand except for an amount of HK$38,000,000 (2013:
Nil) which bears variable interest rate at 2% over HKBLR (i.e.

7%) per annum and repayable within one year.

AMOUNT(S) DUE FROM JOINT VENTURES/A

20.

FE W B & D B KR

ZESBAEERT RETANEREE
- M % %8 /38,000,000 7T (2013 : &)
NETHRESEEMEM2EBI7E) 2 Z
HFEFRAEV AR —FREEZREBER
Hh e

NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST 30. ElEE ¥ FERERZNE
The amount(s) due from joint ventures/a non-controlling Bl AEBLE LR ERFEBEAEEIR
interest are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on BN ERBEREER-
demand.
TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS 3. ESREMEREKRR -FTEkE
AND PREPAYMENTS T B
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FAET
Trade debtors (hote a) R (Kfita) 61,740 60,185
Advance payment for ports and R EE O R g
properties construction works in PRC TRZBK 38,810 165,561
Others (note b) HAth (K atb) 141,749 175,109
Total st 242,299 400,855
The balance of trade and other debtors, deposits and B NEMERIER & MFBNRIELL
prepayments is net of allowance for doubtful debts and ﬁ% TN RERFE - MABRBEZHNT
the movements of allowance for doubtful debts are as
follows:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE R FAET
Balance at beginning of the year F 1) 45 5 34,089 39,963
Amounts written off as uncollectible B W B i #SH 2 3B (17,700) (2,937)
Amounts recovered during the year FARAE B (17,404) (8,288)
Provided for during the year FRNEAE 7 FOE 1,194 2,407
Disposal of subsidiaries HE M B A A - (2,071)
Exchange realignment PE W A 14 15
Balance at end of the year FREERR 193 34,089
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TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Included in the carrying amount of above receivables as at
31 March 2014 was accumulated impairment loss of
HK$193,000 (2013: HK$34,089,000) in respect of
balances which were past due at the end of the reporting
period and the relevant debtors were in financial
difficulties.

Notes:

(@)

The Group’s credit terms for customers of ports and logistics
segment normally range from 30 days to 90 days. Rental income
for property business is receivable according to the agreements
and the credit terms granted by the Group to other debtors
normally range from 30 days to 90 days.

The ageing analysis of the trade debtors, net of allowance for
doubtful debts, presented based on the invoice date at the end of
the reporting period is as follows:

31.

mEMBHRKRNE
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE

ESREMEWRKRR
T FKIE (@)

kA

M20144FE3 8310 Fat el s EEE(E

EffARBREHTERAHESR Y RETHR
& /& 18193,000% 7T (2013 : 34,089,000 %
JT) + AR B8 & 7 A T R B R o

i

@) $EI/ED&¢%/R/MBZ%)51*EHH
B ANEVEHTE - WEEK AT
ANBRBZZHRTERZ  MASERHA
Féuﬁzﬁﬁ AEEZEEH — MR BE30E0H
o

NBEZAMBERE  MERERMBR B
WIERRBERATER ZRED T2
W

2014 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Within 90 days 90H K 43,394 44,265
More than 90 days and within 180 days B0 HER180H A 12,726 11,737
More than 180 days Him180 H 5,620 4,183
61,740 60,185

As at 31 March 2014, included in the Group’s trade debtor
balances are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$22,214,000 (2013: HK$27,208,000) which were past due at
the end of the reporting period for which impairment loss has not
been recognised. Trade receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired have no history of defaulting on repayments. The Group
does not hold any collateral over the balances.

R201463A31H A& E 2B FEWER
KA BB LR EE /22,214,000 7T
(2013 : 27,208,000 70) 2 EW AR X+ &
BRERRENTEHCRBMEY ER
REEEE TEINPTEREZESE
W—E KA S E N 2 iRk AE B E
RZEERFEEMNERR -
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31. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS 3. ESFREMBEWRERER FT&kE
AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued) NESERE )
Notes: (Continued) KiaE - (58)
(@  (Continued) @ (&

Ageing of trade debtors which are past due but not impaired

SEMERTREZE S RKRFKRER

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT

Overdue: WER -
Within 90 days 90H R 9,898 20,912
More than 90 days and within 180 days HBIEBAERIS0R N 11,571 4,922
More than 180 days HBiE180H 745 1,374
22,214 27,208

The directors of the Company consider that there has not been a
significant change in credit quality of these trade debtors and there
is no recent history of default and therefore the amounts are
considered recoverable.

ARBEERR ZEEHERURERZE
EEZUESAZ BAHITETIRL
8 EEZRIRE R T IR E -

(o) T2013F3AB3IH B 5 Kk H b fE U
(b) Included in trade and others debtors, deposits and prepayments X a2 ENRBEBRBRBE — %
as at 31 March 2013 was an amount of HK$50,000,000 which 50,000,000 T2 &%  EANG — 215
represented a refundable earnest money made to an independent VE=ZFEZ2—FnELOHE D ARG —
third party for undertaking a potential property redevelopment BEEYEBRRESZ - 2B RNERNE

project. The amount was refunded during the year. @ o

32. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 2. KEEERE
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET TET
Listed equity securities, at quoted bid price in I ik AZE % - IR B AR E

Hong Kong F5 80,272 58,361
Overseas sl 4,712 5,864

84,984 64,225
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33. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT TERM

BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to
banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group. Deposits amounting to HK$473,683,000 (2013:
HK$646,520,000) have been pledged to secure general
banking facilities with maturity within one year from the
end of the reporting period and are therefore classified as
current assets. The pledged bank deposits included
approximately RMB352,700,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$440,875,000) (2013: RMB516,162,000
equivalent to approximately HK$644,397,000) deposited
in Hong Kong, which were pledged to secure banking
facilities denominated in Hong Kong dollars and available
in Hong Kong.

The pledged bank deposits and short term bank deposits
with maturity date of less than three months carry fixed
interest rates ranging from 0.35% to 3.08% (2013: 0.1%
to 3.25%) per annum. The bank balances carry prevailing
market interest rates ranging from nil to 1.49% (2013: nil
to 1.49%) per annum.

33.

FEMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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CEARTER BHRITER
ERTEERRE

EEBBITEREAERETAEEZ
—RBITEEMERFEFRTZIER B
#473,683,000% 7T (2013 : 646,520,000
TIZGEREFER EAENKRESH
THEEB-FAREZ MRBRITEEZER
A EmMEIARSDEE DHEFRAT
TFRERE AN ARM352,700,0007T (#
& K #9440,875,0005% 7T ) (2013 A R ¥
516,162,000 7T ( 18 & H #9644,397,000 &
TINTFEREBZRE  BEBTETRE
BT EY TR EEBAZRITRAEZ
A o

ERFRTGEREINBALR=ZEAZ
MERITF RN & T F035E £3.08E
(2013: 01 [E £=325[E ) Z @ & F K - R
THEENEMSINEAEEFEFTE149E
(2013 : TE1.498) -
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34. TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS AND 4. EFREMENRIRESTHEX

ACCRUED EXPENSES

B RHEMENRRARERAXRESH

The following is an analysis of trade and other creditors THERZOWEAT :
and accrued expenses at the end of the reporting period:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Trade creditors ageing analysis based on REZHHZEBHEMNER
invoice date: ZERER AT
Within 90 days QHA 72,606 95,805
More than 90 days and within 180 days B0 B I N 180H A 266 1,497
More than 180 days HBiE180H 29,308 28,221
102,180 125,523
Construction costs payable and accrual ENEESFEFOSARZ
to Yangkou Port Co BEERK A - 410,973
Other construction costs payables H i T2 e 308 110,582 122,712
Advance receipt from customers W EF &8 8,298 7,672
Other payables for staff retirement and other B D %7 8 TRK R E M
benefits of port business (note) & FI) 2 Ho At B A BR 5% (B 7)) 58,541 61,302
Other accruals HibhEst X 16,937 13,075
Others Hh 158,203 186,352
Total amount HIEARE 454,741 927,609
Less: Amount due within one year shown B R —ERNEHAI A A
under current liabilities mEafEs%E (897,200) (864,736)
Amount due after one year — FEE B HR Y 2B 57,541 62,873
Note: At 31 March 2014, the amount includes other payable of Kt i FR2014%63A31H BERELEBIE AR

HK$58,541,000 (2013: HK$61,302,000) which represents staff
retirement and other benefits of a port business. Based on agreed
payment terms, an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$35,001,000 (2013: HK$40,267,000) is to be paid after more
than twelve months from the end of the reporting period and is
determined using an effective interest rate of 4.56% (2013: 4.56%)

per annum.

Z E A A BRI

(2013 : 4.56[E)EE °

58,541,000 Jt (2013 : 61,302,000/ 7T )
TEBODEKE TR
KRR E M RF - L& T2 FRIER
4 #£ 4935,001,0007% 7T (2013 : 40,267,000
B 2R EERRERTEERBBR T
ZEA®BIA WikEREF KRL6E
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The amounts are unsecured, interest-free, repayable on
demand and in non-financing nature, except for an
amount of approximately HK$75,000,000 (2013:
HK$37,453,000) bears interest at 8% (2013: 7.8%) per
annum and is repayable within one year, and an amount
of approximately HK$14,442,000 (2013: HK$14,424,000)
bears interest at benchmark floating lending rate as
announced by the People’s Bank of China (“PBC”) or
relevant borrowing rate, whichever is higher, plus 8% per

mEMBHRKRNE
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE

35. B BE D RRE

annum (i.e. 15.2%) and is repayable within one year.

ZEFRBLEER £ 8-
B RIEREME - M — 2 475,000,000
75 7T (2013 : 37,453,000/ Jt.) 2 FIE & F
F =8E(2013: 78E) R AR —F AN E
E A & — % %914,442,00078 7 (2013 :
14,424,000 70 ) < R IBIE P B AR BT
(TP ARRITDAMHZEEZEHERF
EREAEENER(UETE BE)NSE
ZEREF B (BM52E) RRA—FREE -

RSN

AMOUNT DUE TO A JOINT VENTURE 36. ER—BAELENRE
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on ESFABEEE A LRREREER -
demand.
AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 37. ESFERERNE
INTERESTS
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Fixed-rate interest at 1% per annum FMFEAE 2 EE I
(note (a) (it (a) 15,000 17,478
Interest-free (note (b)) % 2 (Kt wb) 6,725 17,328
Total amount HIE B 21,725 34,806
Less: Amount due within one year shown W — FEREEAERE
under current liabilities B &2 %8 (9,225) (16,854)
Amount due after one year W — 1538 2 FOE 12,500 17,952

Notes: Biaz -
(@) The amounts are unsecured, in which approximately (@)
HK$2,500,000 (2013: HK$2,497,000) is due within one year and
approximately HK$12,500,000 (2013: HK$14,981,000) is due after
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.
(b) The amounts are unsecured, repayable on demand and in (b)

non-financing nature. As at 31 March 2014, the amounts of
approximately HK$6,725,000 (2013: HK$14,357,000) are due
within one year and nil (2013: HK$2,971,000) is due after twelve

months from the end of the reporting period.

ZENIE A EE AR E F 42,500,000
7€ (2013 : 2,497,000 7T) N — F A F H -
i1 #712,500,0007 JT (2013 : 14,981,00078
TZFEARNREAEEEZ T —EAR
FHf o

ZEFBEAEER KEREENRFERE
& - R2014F3A31 8 46,725,000/8
7T (2018 : 14,357,000 7T ) 2 AR — &
N EH - 2% 7T (2013 ¢ 2,971,000 7T)
ZHRBARGEHEAE T _EARKE
/Hﬂ °
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38. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

38. MITRHEMER

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FAET
Bank and other borrowings comprise: RITREMERSHE
Bank loans RITER 1,977,368 2,301,813
Other loans EMER 192,400 183,420
2,169,768 2,485,233
Analysed as: DA
Secured A K 3 1,120,690 1,386,457
Unsecured 40 3K 4 1,049,078 1,098,776
2,169,768 2,485,233
The bank and other borrowings are R REMBEREZHOT
repayable as follows:
Within one year or on demand —F RN LIREA 1,494,149 1,720,531
More than one year, but not exceeding BB —F BETEmMF
two years 363,182 351,911
More than two years, but not exceeding HEME BN ERF
five years 302,437 291,692
More than five years HBidAF 10,000 121,099
2,169,768 2,485,233
Less: Amount due within one year or on AL ¢ — A P Bk R B AN B 2R
demand shown under current liabilities SIERE B G (1,494,149) (1,720,531)
Amount due after one year —F1BFH 2 18 675,619 764,702

The above bank borrowings include fixed-rate borrowings
of approximately HK$312,500,000 (2013:
HK$207,865,000) which are repayable within one year
and are carrying interest ranging from 5% to 6.6% (2013: 5%

to 6.9%) per annum.

The remaining bank borrowings carry floating-rate interest

£ gt 8RR 17 & 38 $F £9312,500,0007%8 JT

(2013 : 207,865,000/ 7T ) 2 F B & %

HERRITS

ranging from 1.61% to 8.52% (2013: 2.1% t0 9.17%) per %o

annum.

2
B TA

AR —FRNEE TENF5EE66E
(2013 : 5EE6.9E) 2 FF KB -

UFBFIREHE - FHEH
1.61E £852[F (2013 : 21 E EQ17[E ) T
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BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued) 38. H 5 7 (
As at 31 March 2014, the other loans include fixed-rate MR2014F3A31H E M B X B ELH
borrowings of approximately HK$192,400,000 (2013: 192,400,0007% 7T (2013 : 162,197,000 7T )
HK$162,197,000) which are repayable more than one TEBES  ARBAE—FEBTENERN
year but not exceeding two years and are carrying interest B R1E (2013 1B) 2 FF KR8 -
at 1% (2013: 1%) per annum.
20133 ABIB 2 AR At ERBFEL
The remaining other loans as at 31 March 2013 included 21,223,000 L 2 EBER AR —FA
fixed-rate borrowings of approximately HK$21,223,000 B WIZENTFBAEE105E 2 FF K5t
which were repayable within one year and were carrying B o
interest ranging from 8.1% to 10.5% per annum.
DEFERRED TAXATION 39. IEIEFIE
The following items are the major deferred tax liabilities IUTHEERAEERNAFEECER 2 x
(assets) recognised and movements thereon during the SEARTEAGEE) UREEFHE
current and prior years:
Fair value Fair value
adjustment Fair value adjustment
Accelerated on adjustment on project
tax investment  on stock of under
depreciation  Tax losses properties properties development Others Total
REME NEFE
ATME  AVEE RETES
mEHEFE  BAEA B BE ATHERE st At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T Tt T FHT TR FER
At 1 April 2012 R2012F4 A18 7,785 (7.785) 282,636 11,038 184,964 58,383 537,021
Exchange realignment [ 5 AR — — 4,704 123 2,162 603 7,592
Charge (credit) to consolidated  #7 & W28 & 2 IR
income statement (note 14) (BEA) (Hfit14) - - 97,860 (1,368) - (8,917) 87,575
Reclassified as held for sale ENMHBARBELE
(note 25) (Ktz£25) - - (13,601) - - (11,730) (25,331)
Deemed disposal of BIELERBAR
subsidiaries (note 43) (Kf7£43) (7,785) 7,785 (24,275) - - — (24,275)
Transfer [ 34 - - 13,099 — (13,099 — -
At 31 March 2013 R201343 4318 - - 360,423 9,793 174,027 38,339 582,582
Exchange realignment R - - (2,004) 7 508 72 (1,561)
Charge (credit) to consolidated 434 W 28 & 2 1A
income statement (note 14) (BN (K5t 14) - - 157,297 — - (10,355) 146,942
Tax impact on exchange of RENEZIBRBEHE
properties
— credit to consolidated —BARERER
income statement (Hiat14)
(note 14) - - - - - (6,230) (6,230)
— transfer from liabilities —ERAESE
associated with assets HEAERHM
held for sales ZBE - - - - — 25,716 25,716
Transfer Ed - - (248,135) 307,753 (59,251) (367) -
At 31 March 2014 R20144%3A31H - - 267,581 317,553 115,284 47,031 747,449
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39.

40.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At 31 March 2014, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$745,000,000 (2013: HK$677,000,000)
available to offset against future taxable profits. No
deferred tax asset in respect of the unused tax losses has
been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams on those subsidiaries. The unused tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with undistributed
earnings of PRC subsidiaries for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised was approximately
HK$26,232,000 (2013: HK$18,220,000). No liability has
been recognised in respect of these differences because
the Group is in a position to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax consequences in respect of stock of
properties arising from the transfer of Formed Land and
Land Being Formed from investment properties are
assessed based on the best estimate of the tax
conseqguence upon sale of the properties directly or sale
through entities holding these properties. For those
properties which would be subject to PRC LAT upon
disposal, deferred tax on the temporary difference
between the tax base and their carrying amounts would
include PRC LAT in addition to enterprise income tax.

DEFERRED INCOME

The amounts represent the government grants related to
certain ports construction projects and will be recognised
in profit or loss over the useful lives of the related
depreciable assets.

39.

40.

EZERE (@)

R2014F3A31H A& B F K#EH
% B 1B #9745,000,0007% It (2013
677,000,000 7T.) AT A A 4K 85 7§ 2k 2 FEER
Bt A8 om0 B DA TE B X S B A Al ok
Vel B 2] e A NS M 2 Nl B o
BEBERECERBEE - RERZHE
&5 18 AT 4B IR Bt 45 88 o

REHEER PEMBARERKRDIR
B EHEMHMAEREEH BEAE R
B = £ 48 %8 4 526,232,000/ 7T (2013 :
18,220,000/ 7T ) © B3 FA 7N & B 0] 4% il % (2]
ZERREEIRE  EZSHEREES
A EETE R B SRR TR E - A 3 B R
EEHEHRELCHEEGRE-

HEREMEBREWEGFEZEFEL
WRFEDLMELEZRENIBERR 2
i DERFERLENEIABLER
BRZEMEZERRAMELARARR IR
EhE - HREFEANBEREIPE L
BEMzYE FEARERREECH
MEREZRCBLERES SRS E 1+ i1ig
BN REEMEN -

i 3E R A
RESERRAMETEOREEB 2K

Rt YHRERATIHEEEZAIE
REHRARIERPHER -
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SHARE CAPITAL 41. R
Number of
shares Value
KR&BEE ok}
HK$’000
FAET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: FHROI0B T T @A
Authorised: SEE
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013 and R2012F4 /418
31 March 2014 20133 A31H &
201493 A31H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRER
At 1 April 2012 R2012%F4 81 H 4,558,493,575 455,849
Issue of shares pursuant to scrip dividend 18 #5 LA & £ & 51 21 i
scheme (Note) BT (K aE) 18,866,997 1,887
At 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2014 R2013F3A31H &
20143 A31H 4,577,360,572 457,736

Note: Pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme which was announced by
the Company on 12 October 2012, the Company issued
18,866,997 new ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company
to the shareholders who elected to receive scrip dividend in
respect of the final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2012.
These shares rank pari passu with the then existing shares of the
Company in all respects.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

() 2002 Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 27 August 2002 (the “2002 Share Option
Scheme”) expired on 27 August 2012 (the “Expiry
Date”) and all the then outstanding share options
granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme
lapsed on the Expiry Date.

Htat AR B AR 2 R R2012410 A128 A 2 BA
BB R A QR AR R 5 A
REHZE2012F3A31 B IEFERPRE
2 B 5 3£ 1718,866,997 I A& 1 A B M T E
0QI0B L ZHEBR - ZEWRMHELRRF
ENCAEZBRMNESHEZA RSO -

42. URBXNAREZRS

() 2002F BEIREE 2/

AR A R2002F 8 A27 H K My 2 BB
% e 5t & (20024 BE AR #E =1 &1 1) R
20128 A27HE m(TEMHE]) - 1R
H2002F B AR HERT IR H MR E B
MATEZAERERERB X
e
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42. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 42,

(Continued)

(0

2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(@)

Details of the share options granted on 28
December 2004 to certain directors and
advisers of the Company under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme and movements in such
holdings during last year were as follows:

Exercise
price per
Date of grant Exercise period share

Bk
BRii B TR TEE
HK$
BT

UBRHBXAREZRS (#)

() 2002 FfEREE (@)

@@ F20044F 12 A28 H iR 152002 F
BREFSETARAETE
ERERAACERBERRESF
ZEBFBEOAT

Number of shares of the Company to be
issued upon exercise of the share options
RITEBRERSRTHEAARARAEHE

Lapsed
during the Outstanding
Outstanding year ended at 31.3.2013
at 1.4.2012 31.3.2013 and 2014
2012 REZE2013%F R2013E K
4A1H8 3H31HI 2014%3H31H
i R AT FERAN i R AT

28.12.2004 28.12.2004 to = 26.8.2012 0.43762
28.12.2004 28.12.2004 to & 26.8.2012 0.52940

22,100,000 (22,100,000) —
32,810,000 (32,810,000) —

54,910,000 (564,910,000) —

Details of the share options granted to certain
directors, employees and advisers of the Group
and invested entities under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme and movements in such
holdings during last year were as follows:

(b) RIE20024F fE AR EET &I X T A
SERBREREETES B
BRABBAZERERNREF
ZEEFBEOT

Number of shares of the Company to be
issued upon exercise of the share options

RITEBRERERTHNEAATIRAHE
Lapsed

Exercise during the Outstanding
price per Outstanding year ended at 31.3.2013
Date of grant Exercise period share at 1.4.2012 31.3.2013 and 2014
R2012F RBE2013F A2013F &
=34 4818 3A31HL 201453A31H
REAH TR TEE i R ATEE FERARN i R ATEE
HK$
BT
8.9.2006 8.9.2006 to £ 26.8.2012 0.85762 3,683,334 (3,683,334) —
6.2.2007 6.2.2007 to & 26.8.2012 1.05881 3,683,334 (3,683,334) —
7,366,668 (7,366,668) —

No share options were granted under the 2002
Share Option Scheme during the year ended
31 March 2018.

© HEZE2013F3A831HILFE -
18 42 4R 15 2002 4F B A% 7 5t 81 1%
o BE % A o
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42. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(i)

2012 Share Option Scheme

On 10 September 2012 (the “Adoption Date”), the
Company adopted a new share option scheme (the
“2012 Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentive or reward to any employees,
executives or officers, directors of the Group or any
invested entity and any celebrity, consultant, adviser
or agent of any member of the Group or any
invested entity, who have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the
Group or any invested entity (“Eligible Person”). The
2012 Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of ten years commencing after the Adoption
Date.

Under the 2012 Share Option Scheme, HK$1.00 is
payable by the grantee to the Company on
acceptance of the share option offer and an offer
must be accepted on or before a date as specified
in writing, being a date not later than 30 days after (i)
the date on which the offer was issued; or (i) the
date on which the conditions for the offer are
satisfied. The directors may at their discretion
determine the specific exercise period which should
expire in any event no later than the last day of the
ten year period after the date of grant of the share
options. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of the Company and will be at least the
higher of: (i) the subscription price as is permissible
under the Listing Rules from time to time; and (ii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

FEMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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42. LUBRHB XA REZ2RS #)

(i)

2012 FEJR HEET &)

B2012F 9 A10B ([HEMA ) - AR
AR —IE AR A AT 2] ([20124F
BREAES)) BREYHBEHAE
B fMEE#EELERZAS
BT REERE 2 TREE 1T
AEFISRBE EFTKMBAL
REBEAIK B A A A1 E #
BeERE BRAIRBATEER
AT D& T REI K2R - 2012F Bk
EEEARMBRESER+F -

RIE2012F AR A 8] - AR AR
MR B AR AR AR R X 11.00
B M BHMERETE B H (BT
TRt B ENE 230K (VB4 2 3
TH:RMBHZIEHEERZAB)
RZBNEEEN ESARNEET
TEHR - ETEEBERT T8
BEREEREE AR TFHR
ZEE—B -1TEERARRESE
ECEAFEEAZELATIMETH
e (VRELETMRITELHFZ
REE: RHEARA KK Z2HE-
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42. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(i)

2012 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of shares which may initially
be issued upon the exercise of all options to be
granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme(s) adopted by the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
total number of issued shares of the Company as at
the Adoption Date, i.e. 455,849,357 shares. Subject
to the approval of the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting, the limit may be refreshed to
10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the
date of approval by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
2012 Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme(s) of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of shares
in issue from time to time. Pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 6 September 2013, the 10%
scheme limit was refreshed to 10% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company as at the
date of such meeting.

The maximum number of shares of the Company in
respect of which options may be granted to each
Eligible Person under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
the Company (including those exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in
issue from time to time unless such grant has been
duly approved by shareholders of the Company at
general meeting at which the Eligible Person and his
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) abstained
from voting. Options granted to a substantial
shareholder and/or an independent non-executive
director or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) in any 12-month period
in excess of 0.10% of total number of shares in issue
and have an aggregate value exceeding
HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting in
advance.

No share options under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme were granted, nor exercised, cancelled or
lapsed since its adoption.

42, LB XA REZRS #)

(i)

2012F FEJR HERT &) (#8)

RIE2012F B R & R AR A
Frk e H b B R AT &l b 2
BREN2HETER] FEAT
RN BREEZTRBBARARN
FWMBBEBITRMDEERZ10% 8
455,849,357 % - tN & 1§ A R A I
ERERG L ZREAETA
Ao REBRRAEG LHLEE R
BBEITRMHOBE Z10% - & E 0 -
RIE2012F B AT 8l R AR A
] E b B AR ST IR B RITE
ZHEBREZSETERT T
TZBHhBRE  AaEEZTEBET
BrEBITIRMDAEZ30% - RIBARD
Al R2013F9 A6 A #1T 2 RE B F
AEerLBiBr —HLBRAER T8
REZI0%EEHEARQ A B BT
BORBEBEASE R ZBEH210% -

RAEM A =& A BifE - 1B 20124
B AR BE T 8 R AR R AT E B R
BAERTEMNEERAT ZER
E(BEEDTE - HaEE R RITE
ZERE) AP RZ2ARB RN
B &Z T EHATKDEITRODE
H21% BRIFLBEBHBESETEEES
BRATREBEZA(EER ELWR
ADMEREZRRERG LEBSAR
AIRR R IE B - BEMA+ = (8 A &
M RAEERERRBILIERNITE
ERFELAZEMNBEA(ERR
EWRADBEE 2 BRER Y 2R’
MIEED BTG, 42 5 20.10% 3k 42
{& #8 ¥ 5,000,000 JT + W 78 = ¢ &
BARRNBREEBRREASG LHE -

B M2012F B AR 818 - BB
BUREOBERE TEEREET
& WAEHEIBE KM -
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43. DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Following the completion of the placing of 2,938,236,000
shares of Louis Xlll, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange and was engaged in management
contracting, property development management and
property investment, (the “Louis Xlll Placing”) on 5
February 2013, the Group’s interest in Louis Xlll and its
subsidiaries (the “Louis Xlll Group”) was diluted from
approximately 61.92% to approximately 10.60% and such
dilution constituted a deemed disposal of subsidiaries by
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2013. The
Group’s interest in Louis Xlll is accounted for as an
available-for-sale investment upon and after completion of
the deemed disposal.

Following the completion of the Louis XlIl Placing, the
Group received special cash dividend of approximately
HK$97,715,000 and distribution in specie of 375,826,317
shares (representing approximately 30.34% interest) of
Paul Y. Engineering from Louis XlII during the year ended
31 March 2013. The Group’s interest in Paul Y.
Engineering is accounted for as interests in associates
upon and after completion of the deemed disposal.

The Group still has substantive involvement in the
construction business and other business activities
previously carried out by Louis XlII through the investment
in Paul Y. Engineering. The directors of the Company are
of the view that the Group continues to carry on these
businesses and all these business activities will continue
to be presented as an operating segment, namely Paul .
Engineering Group, after completion of the deemed
disposal.

43.

FEMBHRERME
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HEMNEB X RAER

M2013F2 A5H REFRFTER L RE
TREEAEER DERETERDER
&2 ¥ 5+ = 52K & H2,938,236,000 %
Bh((EST=BBEEE])  ~NEERE
STZRENBRARARS+=Z£E)Z
M5 R 4)61.92% BB = 4)10.60% @ I AR
B E2013F3A3IHLFEBRAEE 2
BIELEHBAR - AEBRES =2
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43. DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Two subsidiaries jointly controlled by the Company and
Louis XllI, the Meilian Group, which were engaged in
property holding and accounted for as subsidiaries of the
Group before completion of the Louis Xl Placing, were
deconsolidated and reclassified as interests in joint
ventures upon completion of the Louis Xlll Placing. The
Group’s interests in these companies were diluted from

43. HEMB AT EZE @)

NEMERB2EBREBABARARHEKS
ToHRAESNCMEANBAR RS+
“REFEEEKFIEATER ZHE QG
AR MABZ T =-REEFTEEXE X
Bl IFHRERTAAEBEREBE AL ENAE
ErERD AEER LR AR ZELRA
#980.96% % E = 50% © I B 7 & = 20134F
SABIBEIEFERAAEE 2R ELEK

approximately 80.96% to 50% and such dilution /NI
constituted a deemed disposal of subsidiaries by the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2013.
HK$’000
FET
Net assets of the Louis Xl Group and HERS T =SB RERES
the Meilian Group disposed of: ZEAEFE:
Property, plant and equipment e N 204,243
Investment properties BEWME 230,100
Prepaid lease payments BAAERE 19,783
Goodwill SES 61,646
Other intangible assets HEtmwEEEE 7,570
Interests in associates & N A 27,542
Interests in joint ventures SENEER 23,744
Other debtors H i E UK BR 3R 184,733
Amounts due from customers for contract works EWEFEHIRERT 550,851
Trade and other debtors, deposits BH5kHE 1‘@[’% W BR 5k J% &
and prepayments SEENEN 2,184,040
Amounts due from associates JRE Ut B /A IR 25,885
Amounts due from joint ventures e & **’JE% 121,747
Loans receivable JIE U & 51 8,148
Pledged bank deposits EHEBRITER 1,315
Short term bank deposits RHRITER 25,357
Bank balances and cash RITEF LIRS 129,330
Amounts due to customers for contract work ENEPAEHIRERT (736,148)
Trade and other creditors and accrued expenses B REME H AR % )Si FEERFX (1,567,475)
Amounts due to associates FE B 4% N B 3R IR (565,904)
Amounts due to joint ventures B &% jﬁ% (38,014)
Amounts due to non-controlling interests JiE 1 42 Hﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ 61)
Taxation payable e R (7,214)
Bank and other borrowings R1T REMIER (639,363)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHBEE (24,275)
Total net assets FEEBE 737,580
Less: non-controlling interests o FEIE AR (254,470)

483,110
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43. DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

43. HEKWB QAR ®)

HK$’000
FiET
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries: HBIELERB AR 2 :
Net assets of the Louis Xl Group and HERES =B LEHE
the Meilian Group disposed of ZEEFE (737,580)
Non-controlling interests E el 254,470
Initial recognition at fair value of 10.60% interest in MRBEATFEERRRES =
Louis Xl reclassified as an available-for-sale 210.60% = E 5 AR HHE
investment (note ) ®E&E (B ati) 254,434
Initial recognition at fair value of 30.34% MRBRATEERINRERE
interest in Paul Y. Engineering as interests in 2.30.34% 1 = A
associates (note i) A B R (KT aFil) 218,000
Initial recognition at fair value of 50% MR AT EEERNERS
interest in the Meilian Group as interests in 2 50% A a1 E i w (I atii)
joint ventures (note iii) 72,123
Special cash dividend declared by Louis Xl B2 TZ8R2ERRESKE 97,715
Transaction costs 25 WA (14,000)
Gain on deemed disposal before release JEEtREBRE R 2 RIEDE KA
of attributable reserve 145,162
Cumulative exchange differences in respect KR EWB A RIE S R RS
of the net assets of the subsidiaries reclassified B EER HZMBATEE
from equity to profit or loss on loss of control FEEHACREEREZT
of the subsidiaries 24,859
Gain on deemed disposal RAEL & W 170,021
Net cash outflow arising on deemed disposal: RIELEMELE RS FRE
Special cash dividend declared by Louis Xl B+ kZ2EHENRLSEE 97,715
Less: transaction costs paid W BN R SR (10,000)
Cash consideration received ERBESRE 87,715
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B T ERITEFRES (154,687)

(66,972)
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43. DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) The fair value determined for the initial recognition of 10.60%
interest in Louis XIIl was reference to quoted share price in active
market and the placing price at the date of completion of the
deemed disposal.

(ii) The fair value determined for the initial recognition of 30.34%
interest in Paul Y. Engineering had been arrived at on the basis of
valuations carried out by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group.

The fair value of Paul Y. Engineering had been determined based
on the income approach to prepare 5-year cash flow forecasts
derived from the most recent financial budget approved by its
management. The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows
was approximately 9.5%. The income approach estimated the
future economic benefits and discounted these benefits to its
present worth using a discount rate appropriate for the risks
associated with realisation of those benefits.

(iii) The fair value of the Meilian Group had been determined mainly
based on the fair value of its underlying investment property. The
valuation was carried out by Asset Appraisal Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected with the
Group. The comparison method was adopted under which
comparison based on information of recent transacted prices of
comparable properties was made. Comparable properties of
similar size, character and location were analysed in order to arrive
at a fair comparison of capital values.

The subsidiaries disposed of during last year contributed
approximately HK$5,960 million to the turnover of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2013. During last
year, they contributed about HK$25 million to the net
profit attributable to owners of the Company and utilised
net cash flow amounted to approximately HK$153 million
before the disposal.

Special reserve in relation to the above subsidiaries
amounting to approximately HK$124,695,000 had been
charged to the retained profits upon deemed disposal of
the subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2013.

43. HEMB AT EZE @)

iEx
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() 3 )R R M IR 5 5 2 #030.34% H 25 FF
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4. WM I A

Categories of financial instruments a ZTHRTAEZHEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
FINANCIAL ASSETS SREE
FVTPL EAFEEFABZE
— Investments held for trading —BEBEZIRE 84,984 64,225
Loans and receivables BRI ERFRIE
— Loans receivable —EWRER 76,000 106,425
— Trade and other debtors and deposits ~ — & 5 [ H th & I AR 5k
KR 207,732 269,823
— Amounts due from associates — FEUESE & N TR 38,470 19,102
— Amounts due from joint ventures — WA LD ETA - 19
— Amount due from a non-controlling — FE U IE R AR 25 FRIB
interest 1,250 1,248
— Bank deposits —RITER 786,322 1,437,113
— Bank balances and cash —RITEGFERRS 440,548 445,013
1,550,322 2,278,743
Available-for-sale financial assets HrEeREE
— Available-for-sale investments —AHEERE 702,754 667,806
Total &5t 2,338,060 3,010,774
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT AMORTISED R R AT R 2
COST TRmeE
Trade and other creditors B REMERNER 429,506 906,862
Amount due to a joint venture ENAEEDERE 131 112
Amounts due to associates FE BN T 1B 140,918 110,630
Amounts due to non-controlling interests FETIEIZ IR RE 25 TR IE 21,725 34,806
Bank and other borrowings RITREAME R 2,169,768 2,485,233

2,762,048 3,637,643
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and
other debtors and deposits, loans receivable,
available-for-sale investments, investments held for
trading, trade and other creditors, amounts due from
(to) associates/joint ventures/non-controlling
interests, bank and other borrowings. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

(@ Market risk

() Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk
is attributable to its financial instruments
that are subject to both variable rate and
fixed rate. Those financial instruments of
variable interest rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. Details of
the Group’s interest bearing financial
instruments at variable rate have been
disclosed in notes 28, 29, 33, 35 and 38.
Financial instruments at fixed interest
rates expose the Group to fair value
interest risk. Details of the Group’s
interest bearing financial instruments at
fixed rate have been disclosed in notes
28, 33, 35, 37 and 38.

In order to mitigate the interest rate risk,
the Group adopts a policy of maintaining
an appropriate mix of fixed and floating
rate borrowings which is achieved
primarily through entering into different
contractual terms of borrowings. The
position is regularly monitored and
evaluated by reference of anticipated
changes in market interest rate.

44, €@ T B @)

b.
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(@)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposures to interest rate
risk on financial liabilities are detailed in
the liquidity risk management section of
this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of the rates announced by the
PBC arising from the Group’s RMB
borrowings and advance at variable rates
and Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate
and HKBLR arising from the Group’s HK
Dollars loans receivable and borrowings
at variable rates.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for variable rate instruments
at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the
end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis point increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel.

If interest rates are variable and had been
50 basis points (2013: 50 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s pre-tax profit
for the year ended 31 March 2014,
excluding the capitalised borrowing costs
of approximately HK$2,442,000 (2013:
HK$2,685,000), would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$5,954,000 (2013:
HK$7,857,000).

For loans receivable and bank balances,
the effect on interest rate risk to the
Group’s pre-tax profit is insignificant.
Therefore, the effect is not included in the
sensitivity analysis above.

FEMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the
value of a monetary item will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. Certain receivables of the Group
are denominated in foreign currencies
such as RMB and United States Dollars (‘US
Dollars”) and which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, management monitors
foreign currency exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Certain Hong Kong subsidiaries of the
Company also have certain transactions
denominated in RMB. RMB is not freely
convertible into other foreign currencies
and conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.
Certain subsidiaries of the Company have
foreign currency transactions, including
purchase of materials and expenses. The
Group manages its exposures to foreign
currency transactions by monitoring the
level of foreign currency receipts and
payments. The Group ensures that the
net exposure to foreign exchange risk is
kept to an acceptable level from time to
time.

All of the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in HK Dollars and RMB.
The Group mainly draws borrowings in
the functional currencies of the entities as
management considers the repayments
can be sourced from income to be
generated in those currencies.

44, €@ T B @)
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(@ Market risk (Continued)

(i)

mEMBHRKRNE
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE

44, €@ T B @)

b. Z@EmE

% BB BERBE ()

(@ ™ E kR @

(i) EERE (E)
Currency risk (Continued) AR BTEETTHE - A
As HK Dollars is pegged to US Dollars, SEREABTADREE
the Group believes the exposure of M2 EB R RIFTRI ML A
transactions denominated in US Dollars TRBMZRZFEY 2
which are entered by group companies [R B B S R EE o
with a functional currency of HK Dollars
to be insignificant. AEBERE  HEINEEB
FERBARBR BT Z
The Group considers its foreign currency B - ANEEEH R E
exposure is mainly arising from the BERBBZHEBIUARR
exposure of RMB against HK Dollars. The SGEBBEMNT RER
Group regularly reviews the balances of DI B AT 2 AN R
assets and liabilities and the currencies in i o
which the transactions are denominated
S0 as to minimise the Group’s exposure REBENIINE BEMIWE
to foreign currency risk. HONERBR 2 EEEER
EREBE(EREERARE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s RE)RBEBTHER 2
foreign currency denominated monetary FEEENT :
assets and monetary liabilities, with
exposure to foreign currency risk which
are considered as significant by
management, at the end of the reporting
periods are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
a8& BE
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$’000 HIK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET FER FET
US Dollars E7T — — 806 603
RMB AR 3,957 3,711 941,425 1,216,366
HK Dollars BT 24,677 24,677 2 3
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease
in RMB against HK Dollars and HK
Dollars against RMB. 5% is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management
personnel. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end of
the reporting period end for a 5% change
in foreign currency rates. A positive
number below indicates an increase in
post-tax profit where RMB strengthen 5%
against HK Dollars. For a 5% weakening
of RMB against HK Dollars, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit for the year.

b. Z@EmE
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2014 2013

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHEIT

Increase in profit for the year A 35 ) 12 0 39,139 50,628
Other price risk (i) H (B 15 2 Bz

The Group is exposed to equity securities N S HAftHERE

price risk from its available-for-sale RFEREERREMEA

investments and all of the held for trading
investments. Management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks. The
Group has monitored the other price risk
and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Other price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses have been
determined based on the exposure to
equity price risk for investments in equity
instruments carried at fair value at the
end of the reporting period.

If the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 5% higher/lower,

° post-tax profit for the year ended 31
March 2014 would increase/
decrease by HK$4,249,000 (2013:
HK$3,211,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of investments
held for trading; and

° investment revaluation reserve
would increase/decrease by
HK$15,020,000 (2013:
HK$13,273,000) for the Group as a
result of the changes in the fair
value of available-for-sale
investments.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge obligations by the
counterparties and financial guarantees
provided by the Group is arising from:

— the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial
position; and

— the amount of contingent liabilities as
disclosed in note 47.

FEMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk of the
debtors, management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.
Before accepting any new customer, the
Group will understand the potential customer’s
credit quality and defines its credit limits. Credit
sales are made to customers with good credit
history. Credit limits attributed to customers
and credit term granted to customers on
different business units are reviewed regularly.
In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual
customer to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risks as
follows:

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with
high credit-ratings.

Other than the above, the Group has no other
significant concentration of credit risk, the
exposure of which spreads over a number of
counterparties.
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(©

Liquidity risk

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a
significant source of liquidity. As at 31 March
2014, the Group has available unutilised bank
loan facilities of approximately HK$474 million
(2013: HK$377 million). Details of the amounts
utilised at the end of the reporting period are
set out in note 38.

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. There are unutilised banking facilities
available to finance the Group’s working capital
requirements. The Group relies on borrowings
as a significant source of liquidity. Management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants. The
Group will also consider the issue of equity
instruments so as to finance its investment
projects.

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The tables include both
interest and principal cash flows. To the extent
that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rate at the end of the reporting period.

FEMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE

44, €@ T B @)

b. Z@EEEEEERBE (&)
© RBEEER

REBMKBRITERBE AR
B}E D KRIR - R2014F3 A 31
H  AEEBAHEHNKEA
2 8R1TE A & #)474,000,000
# ¢ (2013 : 377,000,000 %
) RBEHERCHES
B2 BEE M FESs -

EEERDESRARE K&
EERERARERERRALE
BeEREMERN RS REA
EFHFERBKELRERDR
BERBNTE - AEEH KD
RzRITHEBRITHEERE
ERK-AKRBRBERRE
ARBEERRE - EERBER
RITERZER BRETE
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TRADAEEZIFITES R
BEZAHOFAINHE - KX
TIRBASEANERTENZ
RPRHzZEMABARMRA
ERERHE ZREBEANER
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

€@MIA m

Financial risk management objectives and b. ZEEBREEHERKE (#)
policies (Continued) © FBELER @
Liquidity risk (Continued) P YT LY
Liquidity and interest risk tables
Weighted More than
average On demand 90 days Total
effective or within  and within  More than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 90 days 365 days 365 days cash flows amount
RS BB #EiB90A RER
BRUAE 90HA {EM365HA  HiB36S5H HERELE BREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FTET FHET T FTHET
2014
Non-derivative financial FTESRER
liabilities
Trade and other creditors ZE5LEMENER - 162,932 219,033 57,541 429,506 429,506
Amounts due to associates/ ENBART,/—H&e%
a joint venture/non-controlling ¥/ FERERRE
interests
— non interest bearing - TR - 58,332 58,332 58,332
— fixed rate interest bearing -TE 6.8 38,869 41,609 12,841 93,319 90,000
— variable rate interest bearing — 28 15.2 14,442 - - 14,442 14,442
Bank and other borrowings BAREMERK
— fixed rate —EE 3.8 29,819 296,668 192,449 518,936 504,900
— variable rate - 25 4.6 939,655 283,950 549,632 1,773,237 1,664,868
Financial guarantee contracts BHERAND - — - 25,000 25,000 -
1,234,049 841,260 837,463 2,912,772 2,762,048
2013
Non-derivative financial FITESRAE
liabilities
Trade and other creditors B REMEMER - 694,295 149,694 62,873 906,862 906,862
Amounts due to associates/ ERBERR,/ —HEE
a joint venture/non-controlling ¥/ EERERTE
interests
— non interest bearing - i 8 - 60,738 12,484 2971 76,193 76,193
— fixed rate interest bearing -E8 5.6 38,195 2,620 15,457 56,272 54,931
— variable rate interest bearing —-%8 15.2 14,424 - — 14,424 14,424
Bank and other borrowings RITREAIE R
— fixed rate -EE 39 67,749 170,032 162,201 399,982 391,285
— variable rate -%5 4.6 1,109,325 434,185 689,213 2,232,723 2,093,948
Financial guarantee contracts MBERAN - - 43,696 219,988 263,684 -
1,984,726 812,711 1,152,703 3,950,140 3,537,643
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial
guarantee contracts are the maximum amounts
the Group could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if
that amount is claimed by the counterparty to
the guarantee. Based on expectations at the
end of the reporting period, the Group
considers that it is more likely than not that no
amount will be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate is subject to change
depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee
which is a function of the likelihood that the
financial receivables held by the counterparty
which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable
interest rate instruments for non-derivative
financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the
end of the reporting period.

c. Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

()  Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

The directors consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values.

The fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis.

mEMBHRKRNE
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE

44, €@ T B @)

b. ZHREBEEBERKE (#)
() REBEZRE (#®)

HEBE 2 R F R & (&)
tRBEEMBREREN ISR
DAEERBEEEREELZ
ZH REIREBEERIER
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AWEEEERNEE A
A AR H T REERE
e R 2 AT AR (it 7Y 8 05 B
FEERMBERURKARRE
EiERZATRE M 2 BAE) T IA

= °

i 7% ) 3 B B B 0 R 5 M 52
EEABEFZMNEEH IR
QA ERETTE SR ABEZF
BTAFAZEZEA TEE -

c. TEMTAZRFEMEE

TRHEENERABZAFEER
AT AEE -

() EHFREEFEEUQF
BEFEZEMEER
TREBEZAFEE

EEZRR REAVBHRERF
BBHEKAARZEREER
TRHAEGBZREERERYE
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HtemEERERABEZA
FEEDEAREBERAER
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44.

45.

46.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

c. Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

(i) Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

As at 31 March 2014, the fair values of the
Group’s investments held for trading of
approximately HK$84,984,000 (2013:
HK$64,225,000) and listed available-for-sale
investments of approximately HK$300,399,000
(2013: HK$265,452,000) are based on Level 1
measurement (as defined in note 3) and stated
at quoted bid price in active market at the end
of each reporting period.

There were no transfers between the different
levels of the fair value hierarchy for both years.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the 30.34%
interest in Paul Y. Engineering classified as interests in
associates were received from distribution in specie by
Louis XlIl as set out in notes 22 and 43.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes for qualifying employees. The assets of
the schemes are separately held in funds under the control
of trustees.

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are
members of the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries in the PRC are required to contribute a
specified percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is
to make the specified contributions.

44

45.

46.

€@MIA m

c. THITAZRAFEMHEIE &)

(i) ZBEFEEEURFEE
ATEBCEREENRE M
BEZAVEE

M2014F3A31H » KEEFE
BB A A FEE484,984,000
7 7T (2013 : 64,225,000 7T )
MEmAHEERERTFE
& #9300,399,0007% 7T (2013 :
265,452,000 7T ) Jh E R B X
—fHE(EEEMEI) TS
BREHERERNERMIBSZE
AREHNE -

AMEFEMS  AFEES
MEBRZEEES -

EXFRERS

HE2013F3A3IBIEFE B EIEE
BRAIER 230.34% RERZE R S A K
ST=Z2EMDIRATES - Wk F2 KW
FE43FTH ©

iR k48 A 5 8

AEEAAABIERRADRE KRN
RS R FH B AEBTEARS
PESELS DELE

AEFBETENBARZEE  EHPE
BT 2 B RE R RIKE M E 2K
B-hEMNBARARF A ZEEL
) mARAREME SRR LBREA
REES - AKELHRKBEAEE 20—
A pRELBERSEHRR-
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46. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (Continued)

The cost charged to the consolidated income statement
represents contributions paid and payable to the funds by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
Where there are employees who leave the schemes prior
to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions
payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of
forfeited contributions.

At the end of the reporting period, there were no material
forfeited contributions which arose upon employees
leaving the schemes prior to their interests in the Group’s
contributions becoming fully vested and which are
available to reduce the contributions payable by the Group
in future years.

The Group has joined a mandatory provident fund scheme
(“MPF Scheme”). The MPF Scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at the rates specified in the rules. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to MPF Scheme is to
make the required contributions under the scheme. No
forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated income
statement represent contributions paid and payable to the
funds by the Group at the rates specified in the rules of
the scheme.

During the year, the total retirement benefit scheme
contributions charged to consolidated income statement
amounted to approximately HK$4,658,000 (2013:
HK$18,527,000).

46.

FEMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE
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18,527,000 7T) °



2014 Annual Report

2 1 6 MC’ PYI Corporation Limited

NOT

ESTOTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PSR MEE

=]

For the
#HZE20

47.

48.

year ended 31 March 2014
14F3A31ALFE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 47. AREE
The Group has the following contingent liabilities: REBEBBLUTHAAE:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HIK$'000
FET FHET
Guarantees given to banks in respect of BATATERZRITEER
banking facilities granted to: BT RITHER
— third parties —%=H 25,000 68,664
— an investee ——RERER - 195,020
25,000 263,684
The directors consider that the fair value of the financial EERRUBERIATEENEHRZS
guarantees at the initial date of providing these guarantees EREBIEAEK-
is insignificant.
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 48. REHEAE
(a) The Group as a lessee: (a) AEBIEZAEAN :

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
leasehold interest in land, rented premises and plant
and machinery which fall due as follows:

RS Tl NEBET A BN
ZEBITHzHERERS HEAY
ELBEIEBREEROTERA
RAREARTE & FRIEAHE o L FAE 2
SATEINE

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHERT FET

Within one year —FR 10,461 11,230
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_Z2ERF(ERE

MEBIFELA) 16,833 9,459

Over five years BB hF 5,587 7,719

32,881 28,408

Leases are negotiated, and monthly rentals are fixed,
for terms ranging from one to thirty years.

HozEmd ke ABRSEE  7TEMH
BRR—FE2=TF1%-



'

s VAV

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRKRNE
For the year ended 31 March 2014

HE2014F3A31HIEFE

48. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)  48.

(b) The Group as a lessor:

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants in respect of its investment
properties for future minimum lease payments which
fall due as follows:

REFEEAE @®

(b) FAEEEZHEN

RBESHTER AEEREREY
XZHPERRRRKER S KA

Ao IAHIIT ¢

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000

TR FAET

Within one year —FR 10,518 9,317
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERAF(HEMF

BEEN) 22,477 15,072

Over five years Bl A F 27,367 21,634

60,362 46,023

Operating lease arrangements represent rentals
receivable by the Group for certain of its premises.
Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from one
year to ten years.

REBMELZHEBEASREREETY
ERW zEE MO AN EHR

BR—FE+FELF

49. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 49. EEKH

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets
were pledged to banks and financial institutions to secure

RmERZTEE - THEECEAT TR
R BEHE  FRASEDRS -—REER

the general credit facilities granted to the Group: &M
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHEx FHET
Investment properties wEE 222,270 131,417
Property, plant and equipment M EE - MR N 3R A 427,396 846,879
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERIEA 190,925 244,722
Bank deposits (note) RITF R (K 3E) 473,683 646,520
Trade receivables FEUNE 5 BRK - 16,580
Other intangible assets HihmREE 23,776 31,475
Stock of properties MEFE 49,814 45,869
1,387,864 1,063,462
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49. PLEDGE OF ASSETS (Continued)

In addition, the Company pledged its investment in certain
subsidiaries of a book value of approximately
HK$217,246,000 (2013: HK$360,761,000) to secure the
facilities granted.

Note: The pledged bank deposits included approximately
RMB352,700,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$440,875,000)
(2013: RMB516,162,000, equivalent to approximately
HK$644,397,000) which were denominated in RMB and deposited
in Hong Kong.

49. EEEH @)

A ARFRETHE AR ZRERE
18 #7217,246,0007% 7T (2013 : 360,761,000
ATL)ETHRA ERAERLIBEZE
R e

fat - BEEBRRTEARBE—FAREHNARE
352,700,0007T ( 18 & M #440,875,0007%
70) (2013 : AR #516,162,0007C © & %
49644,397,000/ 70) A ARBAET EF
REBZFIE -

50. COMMITMENTS 50. &IE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Expenditure contracted for but not FUWEBIATEREETLN
provided in the consolidated financial BERREEEMBHREA
statements in respect of acquisition of: BT
— Property, plant and equipment — W EWRERE 5,127 1,393
— Project under development —%EFHEE 1,356 14,012

6,483

15,405
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5. BB A LRI REeR
@ BREAHBEREzHMIHEES

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated

Sh R RNEBE NG EE TR A

financial statements, the Group also entered into the FTEIVUATEKRRZS
following significant transactions with certain related
parties during the year:
2014 2013
Class of related party Nature of transactions HK$’000 HK$’000
22} DN oY | REMNE TR FAT
(i) Associates of the Interest charged by the Group 2,350 669
Group N5 [ U ER A B
N & F 7 B N T Interest charged to the Group 7,046 1,123
REBXZNHE
Construction works charged by the Group - 31,054
AEBIWRMEETESE
Project management fees charged by - 2,368
the Group
AEBIWRIBEEERSE
Consultancy fees charged to the Group - 322
AEEXNERE
Service fees charged by the Group 1,196 815
REBWE RS E
(i) Joint ventures of Service fees charged by the Group 359 —
the Group REBWERRBEE
REBZEEDE Rentals charged to the Group 530 88
AEESZHES
Construction works charged by the Group - 751,716
REBIWREETESE
Sub-contracting works charged to the - 999
Group
AEBESHIINBEETRE
(i) Entity controlled by Service fees charged to the Group 154 72

senior management

(note)
SREBREZERIRE
(Btzt)

AEEXNREE

Note: These transactions constituted the de minimis connected
transactions as defined in the Listing Rules.

Wit ZEXHERETRAAER T
ERERRKFINEERS o

Other than the related party transactions set out in
the note 51(a)(iii) above, none of the related party
transactions disclosed above constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions
as defined in the Listing Rules.

B £ STHY EE51() i) BT it 2 B8 B A £
RSN BHEAT Fu B R 2 B
RGBRLLETRAMERZBER
FRBEEERS -
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51. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (Continued)

(b)  The remuneration of directors and other members of

key management, which is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the

performance of individuals and market trends, is as

51. BB A TR I R4 Ek @)

(b)

EEhEMIBEEEE M A
FHZEg2Z@EMNABZREAR
MEBEMEE  FIRWET:

follows:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FHET
Short-term benefits (note) REIRF (M) 24,709 38,989
Post-employment benefits R IRAE F 692 683
25,401 39,672

Note: An aggregate sum of approximately HK$14,376,000
accrued and payable (not yet paid) to the Managing Director
and members of senior management as at 31 March 2013
was determined and paid during the year. Accordingly, the
amount of short-term benefits disclosed for the year ended
31 March 2013 was restated to include the emoluments.

Details of the share options for the Company’s
shares granted to the directors or outstanding during
last year were set out below:

Exercise price

Bfat - R2013F3 A31 A 2 Bt R B &
N@EBEEERERBABZ —£4
#E #914,376,0007% 7T 2 X IHE R F
RRERZ - Bl BBV HE
ZE201343A3IBHILFEEREZE
HEMNESEUBREZEME -

EZERTESFIRATEERAR
Atz BREZFBNT

Outstanding Lapsed during Outstanding as

Name of director Date of grant Exercise period per share as at 1.4.2012 the year at 31.3.2013
R2012F R2013F
4818 3A31AH
EEgA BHAH TS BRITEE o RATE FREN e R AT R
HK$
BT
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom  28.12.2004 28.12.2004 to Z 26.8.2012 0.43762 18,416,666 (18,416,666) -
258 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 to % 26.8.2012 0.52940 18,416,666 (18,416,666) -
Chan Shu Kin 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 to & 26.8.2012 0.43762 1,841,666 (1,841,666) -
R £ B2 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 to % 26.8.2012 0.52940 1,841,666 (1,841,666) -
Leung Po Wing, 8.9.2006 8.9.2006 to % 26.8.2012 0.85762 3,683,334 (3,683,334) -
Bowen Joseph
Li Chang An 6.2.2007 6.2.2007 to & 26.8.2012 1.05881 3,683,334 (3,683,334) -
FEX
Sub-total /)"t 47,883,332 (47,883,332) -
(c) Details of the balances with associates and joint © RESHTHEE EBLEAARE
ventures at the end of the reporting period are set EREZERFTBRII AW E29

out in notes 29, 30, 35 and 36.

3035536 °
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52. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 52. & QAT 2B & &L

Financial information of the Company at the end of the
reporting period includes:

RBEHTER  ARBAZMBEERBRE:

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE R FAET
Assets BE 2,370,619 3,674,362
Liabilities B & (393,191) (2,076,304)
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,977,428 1,598,058
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARRGHE
Share capital % 7= 457,736 457,736
Reserves (note) s (M) 1,519,692 1,140,322
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS BRES 1,977,428 1,598,058
Note: it
Share-based
Share payment Retained
premium reserve profits Total
LU 17
BRBHE XZNARERE RE A &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1 April 2012 H20129F4 A1H 493,494 2,449 747,516 1,243,459
Issue of shares under scrip dividend RIE AR BT &
scheme EITRG 1,200 - - 1,200
Release upon lapse of vested options DREERE
25 3 B 43¢ o) — (2,449) 2,449 —
Distribution (note 15) Sk (K et 15) - - (68,566) (68,566)
Loss for the year FEERB - — (35,771) (35,771)
At 31 March 2013 R2013F 3 A31H 494,694 — 645,628 1,140,322
Distribution (note 15) 2K (F1 51 15) - - (45,774) (45,774)
Profit for the year FE A — — 425,144 425,144
At 31 March 2014 R2014F 3 A31H 494,694 — 1,024,998 1,519,692
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53.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 53. S EHfiB AT HBEATREE

ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES TEER

(@) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at @ ARAEENWEBRAR2014F K
31 March 2014 and 2013 are as follows: 20133 AT B ZFBM T -

Percentage of issued share
capital/registered capital
BRTRE AMELETIL
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid held by the

registration/ share capital/ subsidiaries/ attributable

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital Company* to the Group Principal activities
B R ERTRAZKRE AMELF/

(=N EEME HMERX XAREHE FEEEMGE FBEHR

2014 2013 2014 2013
% % % %

Glory Well Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
BlZEBR AR b ordinary shares wEER

10,0007 7T

T k10

Jiangsu Wanhua Real  The PRC US$8,800,000 100 100 100 100 Development, investment
Estate Development & registered capital and sale of properties
Co., Ltd. (note (i) below) MEBER RER

IHBERME 8,800,000 7T HE
FHEERAA ERRIN= N

(Fxhat)

Jiangsu Yangtong The PRC US$60,000,000 75 75 75 75 Development of land,
Investment and s registered capital infrastructure and
Development Co., (note (i) below) port related facilities
Ltd. (“Jiangsu 60,000,000 7T T B RkERN
Yangtong”) ERHEEE HHRRBER

LR BB (T Bt i)

REBRAA

(DTgR @)
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53. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 53. S EME A7 KL AIAREY
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued) TEER @

(@ (Continued) @ (&)

Percentage of issued share
capital/registered capital
ERTRAEA EMEXAETS
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid held by the
registration/ share capital/ subsidiaries/ attributable
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital Company* to the Group Principal activities
R/ 2/ EBRORBERE BMEART/
MEADER EEE HMEER XAEEHE FEEENG ETEBER
2014 2013 2014 2013
% % % %

Jiaxing Feeder Port Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary share 100 100 100 100 Ports operation and

Investment Limited & & 1B T ERRRG infrastructure
EEATBRE investment
BRAF BOEEBERERERSE

Jiaxing International The PRC RMB207,800,000 90 90 90 90 Port development

Container Feeder ~ # (2013: RMB187,800,000) BORE
Port Limited registered capital
= EATBR & (note (i) below)
KMBEAR AR A R #207,800,000 7T
(2013 AR
187,800,0007T.)
RN
(T X It a2 (i)

Nation Cheer Hong Kong HK$1,200,000 100 100 100 100 Securities investment

Investment Limited & & ordinary shares BHIEE
HSEREERRAA 1,200,000 7T
T w5

Paul Y. Corporation Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100 100 100 Ports operation and

Limited BB 2B T EBBRRG infrastructure
REEEBRRQA investment
BALERREERE
Paul Y. Investments Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares Investment holding
Limited 58 2B T E B REER
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REMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014

HE201463A31HIEFE

53. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 53. S EME A7 KL AIREE

ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued) TEEH @
(@) (Continued) @ (&)

Percentage of issued share
capital/registered capital
ERTREA EMEXATS
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid held by the

registration/ share capital/ subsidiaries/ attributable
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital Company* to the Group
R, M ERTRAZRE AKBLAR/
MEAEER EEE HMELR AQAEEFE AEEEMG

2014 2013 2014 2013
% % % %

Principal activities

ETEEH

PY!I Infrastructure British Virgin US$1 ordinary share  100*  100* 100 100

Group Limited Islands 1E T @R RMD
KBELES

PYI Management Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100 100 100
Limited B8 2B T E BRI,

RESEER
BRAA

PYI Min Sheng Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100 100 100
Investment BB 2B EBRRG
Limited

RERERE
BRAA

PYI Properties (HK) Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary share 100 100 100 100
Limited BB 1B T EBRRN

REFE(FB)
BERAA

PYI Xingdong The PRC US$20,000,000 100 100 100 100
Properties + registered capital
(Jiangsu) Limited (note (i) below)

REEREX 20,000,000 7T
(L&) BR AR HMER

(FXHER))

Investment holding

REZER

Management services

EH IR

Investment holding
KA ER

Investment holding

HERRK

Development, investment

and sale of properties

MEER RERHEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BEwRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 53. S EHEB AT - HBHE AT REE
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued) TEE R @
(@) (Continued) @ (&)

Percentage of issued share
capital/registered capital
ERTRAEA EMEXAETS
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid held by the

registration/ share capital/ subsidiaries/ attributable

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital Company* to the Group Principal activities
R/ 2/ EBRORBERE BMEART/

MEADER EEE HMEER XAEEHE FEEENG ETEBER

2014 2013 2014 2013
% % % %

PY! Yichang Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary share 100 100 100 100 Ports operation and
Investment BB BT L BRRG infrastructure
Limited investment

REEERE BOEBERERKE
BRA A

Yichang Port Group The PRC RMB203,690,000 51 51 51 51 Port operation
Limited + registered capital BEOBE

HEAKSE (note (i) below)

EREMELA A R #203,690,0007T
RSN
(R XX B 5% (i)
HIERARMBIIER  The PRC US$41,000,000 100 100 100 100 LPG and CNG distribution
BRATA + registered capital and logistics
(note (i) below) RICABRRESE
41,000,000 7T RARD R DR
ARSI
(R HaE())
Bt R A IRRER The PRC US$18,950,000 100 100 100 100 LPG technical research
RilTEERAR 7 (2013: US$21,350,000) and development
registered capital WAL R i R 5T
(notes (i) and (iij) below) RER
18,950,000 7T
(2013 : 21,350,0003 JT.)
&R

(R X B () & (i)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE201463A31HIEFE

53. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 53. S EME A7 KL AIREE

ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (Gontinued) EEER @
(@  (Continued) @ (&)

* The company is directly held by the Company. * ZANBHEARAREHERS -

All of the above subsidiaries are limited companies. T FrERB AT AER AT

Notes: Bt :

0] Being the wholly-foreign-owned-enterprises. 0] WERBBINEBERLE-

(ii) Being the sino-foreign equity joint ventures. (ii) WENTARIEEBRKEENT -

@iy  During the year, the registered capital of J#1t R A TR I1REEIR iy ERN HILREBRERRITER
Filig R AR A 7] was reduced from US$21,350,000 to B RR R B # & it & 4 f21,350,000
US$18,950,000. As at 31 March 2013, the registered £ JT R £ 18,950,000 JT ° 72013
capital of 1L R AR R LRI M8 R AR A &) was paid up FI3ABA MIEERERRERE
to US$18,082,000. fir 82 B B R A 7 E #1718,082,000

EXZAMER -

Remark: Except for the subsidiary as disclosed in note (i) for the

year ended 31 March 2013, the registered capital of all T B E E2013E3HA31TH IFEER
principal subsidiaries registered in the PRC were fully M sEGiN e 2 I B ARl o - TR
paid up during the years ended 31 March 2014 and TEEMzFEMNBEARRNEZE
2013. 20145 R2013F3 A1 A IEFE RN

BEHRAMER-
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has

other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. MEREHAST AR  ANAD TS H b
A majority of these subsidiaries are engaged in NREBRERBEAZHMERT « %
investment holding and corporate services, which ETHEBEATADBHREREERR
operate in Hong Kong and the PRC. DERKE REBRDELE -

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt HEHEAFTDRERBITEME

securities at the end of the year. FEEE o
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ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(b)

Details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Group that have material non-controlling interests:

Principal place of Voting rights held by

53. TEMBLF  BELQ

TEER @

=

red

b) AEEEFERFERERZIHEE

BEMBRRZFHS

Profit (loss) allocated to

Accumulated non-

Name of entity business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests controlling interests
PEEFEZRES
EHEEE TEEEGY FEREEFEZRRER ZiaEF (E18) Rt FERES
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHER FET FTHER FET
Jiangsu Yangtong The PRC 25% 25% 42,844 13,100 296,694 254,120
LR ¥R HE
Yichang Port Group The PRC 49% 49% 7,369 18,479 260,743 253,138
EERABKEHE e
Individually immaterial
subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests 140 10,604 26,499 23,916
AR
2 85 3EE KK AR A
50,353 42,183 583,936 531,174
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE201463A31HIEFE

53.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

(0)

Summarised financial information in respect of each
of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-
controlling interests is set out below.

(&)
FRASEHEBEERNFZERERZ
MEARSAZHRAMBEMDT -

Jiangsu Yangtong

53. FEMBAR HKEQATAREE
TEER @

Yichang Port Group

IEFE BEEBER
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET FE R FABT
Results of the entities: EpeiE
Turnover S 480,095 — 201,625 187,775
Profit for the year F = s F 171,376 52,399 15,038 37,713
Profit for the year, AT AL ML
attributable to F 2 A
— equity holders of the —RRAHER
Company BEA 128,532 39,299 7,669 19,234
— non-controlling interests — JE AR RS 42,844 13,100 7,369 18,479
171,376 52,399 15,038 37,713
Other comprehensive income LA T A+ {5 E b
(expense), attributable to 2EKE ()
— equity holders of the — KRR
Company =5 A (815) 11,109 247 3,228
— non-controlling interests — JEPERRRERS (270) 3,703 236 3,102
(1,085) 14,812 483 6,330
Total comprehensive income AT AL
attributable to 2E LR
— equity holders of the aa NYNIE
Company BAEA 127,717 50,408 7,916 22,462
— non-controlling interests — JE AR RE RS 42,574 16,803 7,605 21,581
170,291 67,211 15,5621 44,043
Dividends paid to AT IR i 2
non-controlling interests 2 E - — - 4,151
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53. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
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e
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31HIEFE

53. FEMBAR HKEQATAREE

ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued) TEER @
(o)  (Continued) () (&)
Jiangsu Yangtong Yichang Port Group
IEOFR HEEBKEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAT FER FAT
Financial position: BBz
Non-current assets FRBEE 891,850 1,405,626 1,089,669 870,827
Current assets MEEE 1,390,323 858,431 307,661 447,978
Current liabilities BB E (355,040) (723,476) (471,624) (398,380)
Non-current liabilities EmBAaE (740,358) (524,097) (393,057) (403,379)
Non-controlling interests JEFR R HE 25 - — (521) (445)
1,186,775 1,016,484 532,128 516,607
Equity attributable to AT AT B
— equity holders of the — RNRRER
Company BEA 890,081 762,364 271,385 263,469
— non-controlling interests — R R 296,694 254,120 260,743 253,138
Net assets attributable to EREB ARG
the owners of the entities BEFE 1,186,775 1,016,484 532,128 516,607
Cash flows: BEeRE -
Net cash (outflow) inflow from 44 %7 > 318 4
operating activities Om ) A FRR (27,318) (187,728) 89,036 60,898
Net cash outflow from wWEEE 2
investing activities BE&mn FsE (112,719) (198,208) (130,053) (47,043)
Net cash inflow from REEE 2
financing activities HE R AEZE 89,139 402,139 58,781 53,5602
Effect of foreign exchange INEBERRESTE
rate changes 141 1,197 1,302 1,161
Net cash inflow (outflow) BEARACGEL)
ek (50,757) 17,400 19,066 68,518
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HE201463A31HIEFE

53. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(©

Particulars of the Company’s principal associates
indirectly held by the Company at 31 March 2014

and 2013 are as follows:

Issued and fully

53. TEMBLAT KEQLIAREE

TEER @

© AAAMBEREZEIEBEAT
R2014% 201343 A31H 2 5 1§
m

Percentage of

paid share issued share capital/
Place of capital/ registered capital
incorporation/ registered attributable to
Name of associate registration capital the Group Principal activities
BRTRAR FEEEGEERITRE
BENRER BRI 2 R EMER HMELRSL TEEK
2014 2013
% %

Paul Y. Engineering Group British Virgin Islands ~ HK$123,868,229 47.52 47.52  Investment holding in
Limited (formerly knownas ~ EBR XS ordinary shares (note () companies engaged in
Paul Y. Engineering (BVI) 128,868,229 T below) provision of comprehensive
Limited) ZERR G (TX  engineering and property

REZXEBEARAA Kzt ) — related services
(BB Paul Y. REBBRNeERM
Engineering (BVI) Limited) PEIRRME

HER% .2 AR

Jiangyin Sunan International The PRC RMB400,000,000 40 40 Port operation
Container Terminal Co., Ltd.  # registered capital O s

IRGEHEREEREE (note (a) below)

BRAA ARE
400,000,0007T
&R
(Fx M &t (a)
Nantong Port Group Limited The PRC RMB966,004,400 45 45 Port operation
HABASEARAA H registered capital BO%E
(note (a) below)
ARE
966,004,400 7T
AR
(FxHi&t(a)
Notes: Bt et -

(@) The company is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company.

(b) The company became an associate of the Group as a result
of the deemed disposal of Louis Xl and distribution in
specie completed during the year ended 31 March 2013 (note

43).

@ FEARAPFIEELENT -

b) HREZE2013FE3A31HIEFER
—IEREHERS T =R S K
BEWMHIRTR  ZARKAEAEER
2z —ME & QR (H7E43) »
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HE2014F3A31HIEFE

53. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 53. S EMffBA A" HEAIREE

ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(d) Particulars of the Company’s joint ventures at 31
March 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

TEER @

d ARElZEERER2014F R2013F3A
STBZFHEBENT:

Percentage of

Place of registered capital
incorporation/ Fully paid attributable to
Name of joint venture registration registered capital the Group Principal activities
BHE AREEGERER
BELEER BRI R 2 EMER BO FTEEK
2014 2013
% %
LB EEEREBRAR The PRC RMB22,264,900 - 22.95 Development and
H registered capital investment of properties
(note (a) below) MEBRREE
AR 22,264,900 T
HMER
(FX Kt (a)
WMIEHEEERAF The PRC RMB53,000,000 50 50 (note (b) Investment holding
s (2013: RMB30,000,000) below) 1% & 5 ik
registered capital (Tx
(note (c) below) K3 b))
AR # 53,000,000 7T
(2013 : AR
30,000,0007T)
A ERCFX ()
MM R EAR AR The PRC RMB10,000,000 50 50 (note (b) Property holding
e registered capital below)) #A W%
(note (c) below) (Tx
it (b))
AR #10,000,0007C
A MER(T XN E(C)
Notes: Bz
(@  Being an equity joint venture company which 45% interest @ AEELE QR KR2013F3 A3

was held by Yichang Port Group as at 31 March 2013 and
was disposed of during the year.

(b) The companies became joint ventures of the Company as a
result of the deemed disposal of Louis Xlll completed during
the year ended 31 March 2013 (note 43).

(© Being the wholly-foreign-owned-enterprises.

The above tables list the subsidiaries and associates of
the Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
provide details of other subsidiaries and associates would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in excessive length of
particulars.

HAREESKEETHILZ #
2 URFRRE-

() BREE2013F3A3MBILEFER
—EHBEELERS TN R
K ZERARKRARRAIZEER
% (M5E43) »

© WEFERARRIEEEDLE -

LRI AEERAIBZFEAEEFE
XESIERARERBNEEFEZAR
BAIMBARNBERA -EFERR 7
HMMBARARBERR ZENBSRE
T e
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBBE

For the year ended 31 March
BZE3ABLEE

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
RESULTS E
Turnover B 4,260,421 5,357,200 5,159,142 6,497,590 998,652
Profit before taxation 71 5 A 402,484 466,040 560,612 418,756 318,299
Taxation 18 (165,764) (166,852) (191,595) (114,230) (182,360)
Profit for the year FEHRF 236,720 299,188 369,017 304,526 135,939
Attributable to: FEAL -
Owners of the Company &2 F#EA A 149,298 200,104 334,072 262,343 85,586
Non-controlling interests  JE 4% I% #E 25 87,422 99,084 34,945 42,183 50,353
236,720 299,188 369,017 304,526 135,939
At 31 March
M3A31H
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BER & &
Total assets BEE 14,041,000 14,894,955 11,827,762 9,625,328 9,097,182
Total liabilities waE (8,383,510) (8,569,395) (6,539,504) (4,252,979) (3,590,572)
5,657,490 6,325,560 5,288,258 5,372,349 5,506,610
EQUITY g
Equity attributable to ZN/NSIEZ RSN
owners of the Company  fE{5 #E 25 4,129,679 4,500,613 4,609,939 4,841,175 4,922,674
Non-controlling interests  JE#E A& #E %S 1,527,811 1,824,947 678,319 531,174 583,936
5,657,490 6,325,560 5,288,258 5,372,349 5,506,610
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL\PROPERTIES
FEYEFE

STOCK OF PROPERTIES MERFRE
Group’s
Location and area Existing use Lease term interest
wE
NERBE BRRZ Gzt it RE s
Nantong International Trade Center with gross floor area of Held for sale Leasehold with 100%
about 15,000 sg m F{EHE  medium term
88 Chongchuan Road, Nantong City, FHEERE
Jiangsu Province, the PRC
FEIHEmAmSE)|KesHEAREE ZF 0
A FE 49 15,000 F 75 K
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REYE
Group’s
Location and area Existing use Lease term interest
wE
NERBE RERAZ iz it R
Nantong International Trade Center with gross floor area of Rented for Leasehold with 100%
about 6,000 sgm hotel operation ~ medium term
88 Chongchuan Road, Nantong City, HEE FHESRE
Jiangsu Province, the PRC B JE A
FEVI#HAE BRI KeSRMmBREE S+ 0
& 5 TE 18 96,000 F 75 K
Commercial shops with gross floor area of about 5,000 sg m Rented for Leasehold with 51%
169 Yanjiang Road, Wujiagang District, Yichang City, commercial  medium term
Hubei Province, the PRC use HHHEERE
MEDHIEE EE M MK M &L KB 1695 H 38 1F
%] 473 22 22 T 78 495,000 F 77 oK BER®
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER MEPREYE
DEVELOPMENT
Estimated
Stage of completion Group’s
Location and area Existing use completion date interest
rE
NEREE RRAR TR MR A P4 RE 2
1 sg km land under development located at Undetermined Land leveling ~ March 2015 75%
the west of the outer gate of Yangkou Town, use stage 20154 3 A
Rudong County, Nantong City, MARERSE LTHFEREE

Jiangsu Province, the PRC
BT 34 BT 0 R 0T D EE SN A
1 ERRBREFR T
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS 55/
Chairman and Managing Director FEFREXH
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom gmR
Executive Director HITESE
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan PeR HR ik
Non-Executive Director FHITESE
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles Bk B 0%

(With Chan Yiu Lun, Alan as alternate) (FRBEARETESE)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUIFHITESE
Chan Shu Kin ok H51 B2
Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph . ,. BB R o
Li Chang An FEX
Wong Lai Kin Elsa =EER
BOARD COMMITTEES EERZEES
Audit Committee FEREEE
Chan Shu Kin (Chairman) PRASER (£ /)
Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph ., . BB os
Wong Lai Kin Elsa HEE
Remuneration Committee JiNESEE
Chan Shu Kin (Chairman) PRASER (£ /&)

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom ZlmR

Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph . . RER s
Nomination Committee EEEZEE
Chan Shu Kin (Chairman) PRASER (/&)
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom ZlmR

Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph ., . BER o
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles PR B 5

(Alternate to Lau Ko Yuen, Tom) (BEEZER)
Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee TEELERIHEEES
Chan Shu Kin (Chairman) PRASER (£ /&)
Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph ., . BER o
Wong Lai Kin Elsa =HEE
Ko Hiu Fung = RE g
Share Repurchase Committee BROEEZEE
Chan Shu Kin (Chairman) PRAS ER (£ /E)

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom ZlmR
Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph ., . BB os

(Alternate to Chan Shu Kin) (B EH )
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DEEM

RRENA X
BB R

= B I
E IR
(BEZISRESEE)

BB ED

g e WERS G5ENTT

FEERELT

RERTT (FE)BR QA
RERITIR D B R QA
ZRBITRDER A
TERIRTT
FERIT(BEBR)ERAA
hEERIRIT(EM RO ERRAA
REEREITROER AT
BEBITROER QA
PERERITROER AR
ERBRITARDA
BAERITERRAR
EARTRMNDERRA A
FETEERT(EMNERAF
RETEHERITRNERA A
EBRRERRITBROBRAA
RERITERAA]
KFRITERAA]
KERITTERRA A

EEERE

FRIERRMEBM(BRE)
BRE R =B (BE)

Z= A0 2 B = 75 P (77 )
BRERERMT(EE)
REREREEZ A (ZE)

Bt %

ey EEEERAR

KPMG Transaction Advisory Services Limited
LEXEBHAORN)BERA T
MBEMBERLQA]
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES ADMINISTRATORS

BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited
(Share Award Scheme — Trustee)
BOCI Securities Limited
(Share Financing Plan — Custodian;
Share Option Scheme — Administrator)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

33/F, Paul Y. Centre
51 Hung To Road
Kwun Tong, Kowloon
Hong Kong

Tel : +852 2831 8328
Fax: +852 2372 0641

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
26 Burnaby Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited
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183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

WEBSITE

WWW.pYicorp.com

STOCK CODE

Hong Kong Stock Exchange 498
American Depository Receipt PYIFY
Frankfurt Stock Exchange PYW

ROREFEZ2EEA

FIRBEFREBRBIEEAR DA
(R 17 ZRat ) — ZaEN)

FIRBERESFARAA
(RU7BEANE —REA
BRENE —EEAN)

= i i 3k

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

FTEEEME
HE

hEEEE

5 B 38515k
REDEHR 3318
B i 185228318328
{HH : +8522372 0641

RO BFETRE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
26 Burnaby Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

BROBFETTE

BEWMEABERRAA
EfFKEFR1835%
AR 221

Ak

WWW. pyicorp.com

i 47 4K 5%
BBBRA
EEFEEES
AW R BB

498
PYIFY
PYW
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